Shellnars

Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

Introduction

This catalogue documents over 400 historic structures of Shellman built by 1950, including houses,
commercial buildings, civic buildings, churches, etc. Of the total, over 200 are no longer standing.

The catalogue is sequenced by street number. Some structures do not have a street number, e.g., those
destroyed before Shellman’s streets were numbered. These are given a number consistent with their
location, and denoted by “fictitious street number”.

For each building, the catalogue includes (where available):

An image

Ownership history of the lot

Information about the use of commercial property (e.g., type of store)

A brief biographical sketch of the owners of houses (with links to Ancestry.com or other sources
for the information)

Consider using the catalogue in conjunction with the maps of Shellman, which depict the buildings in
relation to each other. There are several maps:

A map of all buildings in the catalogue can be accessed here.

A map which can be adjusted over time can be accessed here. This map can show the buildings
standing in any given year, or as a “time show”, depicting how Shellman developed year-by-
year.

A map which can be adjusted to show a single street (or group of streets) can be accessed here.
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Z T Phelps Tract

Z T Phelps acquired 53 acres that comprised roughly the northern % of Lot 5/269. The tract extended
from Pearl St west to Dean St, and from Park St north to Phelp’s house on Pearl St. He retained
essentially all of it during his lifetime, and distributed it in his estate. This section details those
transactions.

Purchases

When Benjamin F Adams, Putnam County, purchased 1,700 acres from John P Ward,

including most of what would become Shellman, the deed reveals that Z T Phelps has

8/31/1861 | already been granted “one acre on which Mr. Phelps’s stable lot now stands.” The exact

location is unknown, but it could well be the site of his store (See 40 Payne St).

Source: Deed Book/L/319

From Benjamin F Adams to Zebulon T Phelps.

Notes: 8 acres (approximately 975’ N/S x 400’ E/W). Bounded north by the north-side

fence of Phelps’s house; east by Pearl St; south by the railroad reserve (Park Ave). The

deed was not recorded until 1891, thus title to this 8-acre tract was conveyed to the

Crittendens when they acquired Lot 5/269 in 1871; however, the 1873 deed below

recognizes Phelps’s title. This is the earliest deed subdividing Lot 5/269, and reveals

several things:

e Phelps paid what seems a huge sum ($5,500), but it was in Confederate currency.

e Phelps already lives in the house built for the stationmasters (3377 Pearl St), and

8/7/1863 with this purchase now owns it

e The deed refers to a lot that Phelps has already been granted adjoining the depot
reserve, on which he operates a stable.

e Adams also owned a house, which is almost certainly Buckfoot Lawn (on US Highway
82), the house built by John P Ward. Adams’s primary residence was in Eatonton, but
he lived here for a time during the War.

e This is the first time that a deed prohibits the sale of alcoholic beverages for all
future owners of a tract of land in Shellman. Later the Crittendens added that
provision to their deeds, and the 1883 city charter also included it.

Source: Deed Book/BB/771

From the Crittenden family to Zebulon T Phelps

Notes: An unmeasured portion of Lot 5/269. This strip of land comprises the northern

section of Lot 5/269. The northern boundary is the line between Lot 5/269 and Lot

5/268; the eastern boundary is the line between Lot 5/269 and 5/302 (Pearl St) and the

lands along Pearl St already sold to Phelps; the western boundary is the line between Lot

2/12/1873 | 5/269 and Lot 5/264 (Dean St). The southern boundary is the northern boundary of the

lot of Mrs. Eliza Ellis and children. There is a one-acre exception in the southeastern

corner, for an old blacksmith or woodshop, which is operated by someone whose name
is illegible, but may be Zuniel Pounds. This is probably the blacksmith shop shown on the

1902 map, on the north side of Park St.

Source: Deed Book/0O/383

This deed recaps earlier sales from Crittenden holdings, including two parcels from Lot

5/269:

2/1/1881 | e 53 acres belonging to Z T Phelps (described above)

e 12 acres sold to J W Ellis, now belonging to J B Payne

Source: Deed Book/FF/8
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Bequests/Sales to Family

Pearl St, west side

From the estate of Z T Phelps to the widow, Mrs. Rhoda Phelps

Notes: Deed (partly legible) conveys a house and lot known as the Z T Phelps Place,
approximately 2 acres. Bounded as follows: “fronting east on Pearl St, on the south by
Phelps St to the corner of J B Payne’s lot, thence north to the northeast corner of said J B
Payne’s lot, thence west to the north west corner of W T Jay’s lot, thence north to lands
of Crittenden & Bro. thence east to Pearl St”

e The northern boundary is not clear, but seems to be the northern boundary line of

SigedEsl Lot 5/269.
e J B Payne owned the lot at 173 W Phelps St, so that is likely the western boundary
Using those as boundaries, this tract is about 2.5 acres. The deed clearly conveys the
land on which the original Phelps house stands (3377 Pearl St), as well as the land on
which Wistar T Jay built three additional houses: 3365, 3351, and 3333 Pearl St. It is
thought that the houses were intended for the Jay’s three children.
Source: Deed Book/CC/563
W Phelps St, north side
From the estate of Z T Phelps to daughter Mrs. Virginia V Jay
1891 Notes: 489’ frontage from the Phelps house east to Thompson St. The tract extended
396’ to the north, comprising 4.4 acres.
Source: Deed Book/CC/562
W Phelps St, north side
From the estate of Z T Phelps to daughter Mrs. Tallulah C Dean
1891 Notes: 550’ frontage from Thompson St eastward to 135 W Phelps St. The tract extended
400’ to the north, comprising 5 acres.
Source: Deed Book/EE/15
W Phelps St, north side
1891 From the estate of Z T Phelps to daughter Mrs. E C Bridgeman
Notes: 110’ frontage (149 W Phelps St), barely legible
Source: Deed Book/CC/690
W Phelps St, south side
1896 From the estate of Z T Phelps to daughter Mrs. Mattie J Oliver
Notes: 1221’ frontage, from lands already owned by Mrs. Oliver west to the Worthy lot
Source: Deed Book/EE/592
Park Ave, north side (Storehouse Lots)
Z T Phelps divided a strip of land on the north side of Park Ave into eight “storehouse"
1890-91 lots. These extended from Pearl St on the east to the J B Payne lot on the west, 300’ E/W

(fronting on Park Ave). It appears that most of the lots were eventually built upon (See
Park Ave).
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Arthur St

Arthur St was the gateway to the depot for farmers coming north on the Fountain Bridge Rd. It was
called Depot St in early deeds, and a map from 1902 states that it was known as Georgia St before
being changed to Arthur St. It existed in the early 1880s, and likely earlier. In 1890, the land for
section of the street from W Railroad St to Church St was deeded to the city by the men who owned
the commercial property through which it passed: W J Oliver, G B Arthur, and B K Arthur (Deed
Book/BB/621). In the 1880s Arthur St was a major commercial artery with warehouses, stores, and a
hotel. In 1894, a fire destroyed the stores at the northern end of the street. In the early 1900s, retail
stores were built on Buford St, and Arthur St gradually became home to agri-businesses.

Plats of Arthur St
e Plat Book/5/98 (1979)

Arthur St (East Side)

Oliver Brothers Tract, Arthur St

This 30’-wide strip became the site of the stores lining the eastern side of Arthur St.

From Crittenden Brothers to W J & G B Oliver (the Oliver Brothers)

Notes: (264’ N/S x 30" E/W).

e This tract stretched from the NE corner of the Ferguson-Oliver warehouse lot

8/26/1882 southward for 264’.

o The southern boundary was the B K Arthur Tract, which became the Martin
Triangle.

Source: Deed Book/AA/30

e W J Oliver built a store at the northern boundary of the strip (75 W Railroad St)
e Oliver sold most of the southern portion (see below)

e From W Oliver to W C Bynum in 1885
e  From Bynum to Crittenden Brothers

Notes: 122’ N/S x 30’ E/W. Beginning at the SW corner of the W J Oliver storehouse
4/23/1885, ) —
10/29/1885 lot; bounded west by the warehouse lot of Oliver Brothers and Stephens. This is the
southern end of the 264’ strip purchased by Oliver in 1882. The deed was not
recorded until 1896.
Source: Deed Book/AA/450, DD/637
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50 Arthur St

e Acquired by W C Bynum (Deed not located)

e From Bynum to W J Oliver in 1886

Notes: 42.5" N/S x 30" E/W. Bounded north by Ethridge lot; east by the Arthur store;

south by Shelley and Oliver.

e W ] Oliver owned a store on the lot to the north (75 W Railroad St). Its
north/south dimensions are unknown because it was destroyed in the fire of
1894.

e Oliver owned a 30’ strip along the eastern side of Arthur St, so his store may well

S2TEER6 have extended southward onto this lot.

e This deed expanded Oliver’s strip eastward to include the 30’ below the Ethridge
store. An 1887 newspaper article reports that Oliver had recently enlarged his
store (link).

o All this suggests that Oliver bought this lot as the space on which to expand, and
that the footprint of his store included both 75 W Railroad St and 50 Arthur St,
until it was destroyed in the fire of 1894.

Source: Deed Book/CC/498

e From the Oliver estate (sheriff’s sale) to Mrs. Dixie O Watson & Mrs. Leila O
Watson in 1938

o From the Oliver estate to Mrs. Dixie O Watson & Mrs. Leila O Watson in 1939

12/6/1938, Notes:
4/4/1939 e The vacant lot was sold to satisfy a judgement against the estate of W J Oliver,
and purchased by the Watsons in 1938.

e The sisters then expanded their lot to the east in 1939.

Source: Deed Book/ZZ/399-400, DD1/572, DD1/572-3

From Mrs. Dixie O Watson & Mrs. Leila O Watson to James M Wooten

Notes: Wooten acquired two adjacent vacant lots.

4/25/1945, e Vacant lot (26’ N/S x 32’ E/W) in 1945.The NW corner of this lot is the SE corner
4/26/1948 of the Post Office (75 W Railroad St).

e Vacant lot (27’ N/S x 28’ E/W) in 1948.
Source: Deed Book/DD1/165, FF1/74, J11/14, MM1/191-2, HH2/618-9

Later deeds: XX6/41

James M Wooten Office and Storage Building

O

e Wooten owned two adjacent properties:
the Post Office to the north (75 W Railroad St), and
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Farmers Warehouse across Arthur St, which he sold in 1948.

e In need of an office, he assembled this lot in two transactions.

e In May, 1948, he constructed an office and storage building here. The storage facility was also
used by Shellman Hardware Co., operated by his son Claron.

e The building descended in the Wooten family; eventually his son Brooks acquired sole ownership.

e Sold by the family in 1999.

e Forinformation on the James M Wooten family, refer to 7 E Ward St. For information on the
Brooks Wooten family, refer to 3333 Pearl St.

48 Arthur St (Fictitious street number)

e Part of the tract purchased by the Oliver Brothers in 1882 (See Oliver Brothers Tract on Arthur St).
e Acquired by W C Bynum in 1885.

From W C Bynum to J H Shelley to Nick Shelley to W W Cheney
Notes: 20’ N/S x 60’ E/W.
e Bounded north by Ethridge; east by Arthur Brothers store; south by the Bynums’
5/7/1886, store; west by Oliver.
11/27/1886, e The store was destroyed in the fire of 1894, so its exact location is unknown:
1/31/1887, o It was the northernmost store on the east side of Arthur St before 1894.
2/1/1887 It seems to have been immediately south of the Oliver store (50 Arthur
St). This places it where Peoples St is located today.
o It was directly below the Ethridge store (73 W Railroad St) and east of
the Oliver’s 30’strip along Arthur St.
Source: Deed Book/AA/594, AA/677-79 & CC/497
W W Cheney Store

e Cheney purchased this lot and built a store here in 1887 (link). His store was described as a “fancy
grocery store” (link).

e A fire of unknown cause began in this store on Friday night, 8/24/1894, and burned into Saturday
morning. The store was a total loss, and the surrounding area was heavily damaged. Americus
times-recorder, August 26, 1894 Page 4.

e Forinformation on the W W Cheney family, refer to 3300 Pearl St.

From estate of W W Cheney to W J Oliver

1/11/1897 Notes: The now-vacant lot was absorbed into Oliver’s holdings.
Source: Deed Book/FF/231-2
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46 Arthur St (Fictitious street number)

e From W J Oliver to W C Bynum in 1885

e Part of the tract purchased by the Oliver Brothers in 1882 (See Oliver Brothers Tract on Arthur St).

From W C Bynum to Crittenden Brothers
1/5/1888

Source: Deed Book/EE/446

Notes: 30’ N/S x 60’ E/W. Bounded north by W W Cheney; south by A E Mizell. Bynum
sells the portion of his 1885 purchase which contains the store he built in 1886.

Bynum Brothers Store/Crittenden Brothers Store

Mizell (located on the lot to the south).

Book/AA/677).

Cheatham, Dantzler, & Co.(link).

e In 1885, a newspaper article (link) reported that W C Bynum planned to go unto business with A E
e In 1886, he bought this lot and built a store (link). This is supported by an 1886 deed (Deed
e In 1888, he sold the store to the Crittenden Brothers, who seem to have leased the building.

e |t appears that the building was destroyed by fire on 8/24/1894, being next door to the store in
which the fire began. Occupancy is uncertain, but the most likely occupant was the drugstore of

From H A Crittenden to the Crittenden Brothers

bt Crittenden Brothers holdings.

Source: Deed Book/EE/496

Notes: Now-vacant lot, bounded north by the W W Cheney lot, is absorbed into the
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A4 Arthur St

e Part of the tract purchased by the Oliver Brothers in
1882 (See Oliver Brothers Tract on Arthur St).

e Later probably roughly the site of the Bynum &
Bynum Store which was destroyed in the fire of 1894 and
then absorbed into the Crittenden Brothers holdings (See
46 Arthur St).

e From Crittenden Brothers to T E Allen in 1902
e From Crittenden Brothers Allen & Spurlock in 1903
From T N Spurlock to T E Allen in 1905
Notes: Lot with store (30’ N/S x 85’ E/W). Bounded north by the vacant lot of W J
4/26/1902, Oliver and south by the store house lot of W J Oliver.
11/5/1903, e The Allen & Spurlock Store was not on the 1902 map, but the deed indicates that
3/27/1905 is already on the lot in 1902.
e |n 1905, Allen becomes sole owner of the business.
e A 1905 deed (Deed Book/JJ/531) gives a N/S reference which places this store as
being in the footprint of the current Bynum building.
Source: Deed Book/HH/445, HH/619, NN/164
The Allen & Spurlock Store
e The Allen & Spurlock Store was already operating on this lot when T E Allen purchased it in 1902.
e TE Allen acquired sole ownership in 1905. That deed reveals that Spurlock and W L Allen are
operating the store.
e In 1909, a newspaper article reports that Allen & Allen are operating the store and contemplating
enlarging it (link).
e They sold the building in 1911 to John Mercer Wooten, Sr. They continued to operate the store
for a time. They liquidated their stock in 1917; it was sold to a merchant in Dothan (link).
e Information on the Allens can be found at:
o W LAllen family: 160 W Phelps St.
o TE Allen, Sr, family: 3072 Calhoun St
From Allen & Allen to John Mercer Wooten, Sr.
3/25/1911 Notes:
Source: Deed Book/NN/165, XX/51
A newspaper article from 1921 reveals that W J Oliver has purchased the old Allen store from the
Wooten estate (Deed not located).

3 i T -
REAL ESTATE DEAL. !
Mr. W. J. Oliver has bought of the! REMOVAL NOTICE

J. M. Wooten estate the old gtandi TO OUR MANY FRIENDS AND CUSTOMERS
kno“’n as th(‘ A”C‘Il store. \\"atSOn We are glad to announce that our store has been moved irom g

old Wilion DFSIRER stand to what is known as the Allen & A
store. Our stock has been re-arranged and added to quite a b

Bros. will move from their old store |

into thc .[\“en. store. NCW glass is h(‘- | wlumld bg pleased for every one to make us a call and inspect our ge
ing placed in the front, and the place s
painted throughout, i WATSON BROTHERS
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Watson Brothers Store
e Watson Brothers moved here in 1921 (link), relocating from W Railroad St.
e The 1935 deed for the Oliver estate reveals that this lot remained in the Wooten estate and

was rented to H R Watson (Deed Book/XX/51).

e The Watsons were gone by 1945.

e Acquired by C L Wooten (Deed not located, but by 1944)

e From Wooten to D K Bynum, Jr. in 1945

Notes:

Source: Deed Book/DD1/100

The Bynum Machinery Co.

e D KBynum, Sr. was operating a farm machinery business by 1936 (link).

e Bynum acquired the property at 30 Arthur St in 1944 and 44 Arthur St in 1945. These lots were
used together in his business.

e Bynum’s son, D K (Doc) Bynum, lll, was partner to his father in the business, and continued to
operate it after his father’s death in 1958.

Source: Driving Tour (2015)

e Acquired by ] W Sammons (Deed not located)

e Later deeds: MM4/9-13 (Tract #1), RR4/67-8, RR4/79-81, SS7/157 (Tract #3)

1/16/1945
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30 Arthur St

Part of the tract purchased by the Oliver Brothers in 1882 (See Oliver Brothers Tract on Arthur St).
e Mizell & Co. acquired two adjacent lots facing on Arthur St; only one deed has
been located.
e From Henry Wilson to Ambrose E Mizell & W S Arrington in 1890
Notes: 20’ N/S x 80’ E/W. Bounded north by lands of Mizell; west by street; south by
Charles W Martin.
e |n 1890, Mizell expanded his lot southward. His store to the north was already in
operation.
Source: Deed Book/CC/319
A E Mizell & W S Arrington Store
e Mizell was the son-in-law of Arrington. They formed a partnership, Mizell & Co.
e They acquired a lot on Arthur St and were operating a store by 1887. The store was expanded in
1887 (link).
e Mizell & Arrington acquired the adjacent lot to the south in 1890.
e |n 1891/2, Mizell & Arrington were bankrupted.
o They sold their stock to Comer & Co in 1891. Comer was a Savannah-based receiver,
whose role was to liquidate the assets of bankrupt firms.
o They sold the store to Shellman Banking Co. in 1892.
o They also sold horses, mules, wagons, and other equipment to the bank in this timeframe
(Deed Book/DD/102-3, DD/500)
e The 1891 deed reveals that this was a general merchandise store. The stock of the store and the
accounts receivable are detailed in the deed.
e Forinformation on the Arrington family, refer to 91 E Ward St.
e Forinformation on the Mizell family, refer to 170 E Railroad St.
e From Mizell and Arrington to H M Comer & Co in 1891
e From Mizell & Arrington to Shellman Banking Co in 1892
e From Shellman Banking Co to W J Oliver in 1897
11/13/1891, Notes: Lot with store. Bounded north and east by Crittenden Brothers; south by
2/9/1892, Martins; west by street.
3/8/1897 e Mizell & Arrington sold the stock to the receiver in 1891 and the store to the
bank in 1892.
e The bank sold the store to Oliver in 1897.
Source: Deed Book/ DD/1, EE/278, PP/243

7/16/1890

W J Oliver Stores

e Oliver apparently used the old Arrington & Mizell Store as rental property. In 1898, it was
occupied by the Carter Brick Drugstore. It is shown as a drugstore in the 1902 map. After that,
the use of the store is unknown.

e Oliver built a second store on this lot by 1902. The 1902 map shows that it was operated as a
grocery store. Oliver may have been the proprietor. After the fire of 1894, he temporarily
relocated his grocery store to 69 W Railroad St, but that store was purchased by CJ Greene in
1901.

e The stores were sold from Oliver’s estate in 1935.

e For information on the W J Oliver family, refer to 129 W Railroad St.

4/6/1935, e From the estate of W J Oliver to Shellman Banking Company

8/26/1935 e From the Bank to H C Bower
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Notes: Two brick stores on Arthur St. Bounded north by the store held by Rebecca
Wooten Gurr (as heir of Mercer Wooten); east by the Wooten Block; south by CW
Martin. Oliver had been a major shareholder in the failed Shellman Banking
Company. There was an assessment against his estate; property from the estate was
transferred to the bank’s receiver, and sold by him to Bower.
Source: Deed Book/XX/51, XX/164-5
From the estate of H C Bower to D K Bynum, Jr.

11/16/1944 Notes: This deed conveys two stores. It states that they are bounded north by
Mercer Wooten store (44 Arthur St).
Source: Deed Book/DD1/15

e Acquired by John W Sammons (Deed not located). One of the buildings is no longer standing in

1991.
e Later deeds: MM4/9-13, RR4/79-81, SS7/157 (Tract #3)

20 Arthur St (Fictitious street number)

e Part of the 10-acre tract purchased from the Crittenden family by B K Arthur in 1884.

e Later part of the Martin Triangle (See Buford St).

Martin Storage House

e The Martins acquired this lot in 1890 (See Martin Triangle). The lot seems to have been vacant
when purchased.

e A Martin store was damaged in the fire of 1894. It was described as “a storage room for heavy
groceries” (link). It was probably this store rather than the brick store at 271 Buford St.

e By 1898, the Martins had constructed a corrugated iron store house on this lot (30" N/S x 85’
E/W). Perhaps the original, damaged building was replaced with one that was fire-resistant.
Source: Deed Book/GG/181

e In 1912, Isaac A Martin sold his half interest in the business, including this iron storehouse, to
Charles W Martin. Source: Deed Book/MM/262

e This building was lost by 1971.
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(1830-1950)

Arthur St (West Side)

55 Arthur St (Fictitious street number)

e Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.
e W J Oliver acquired partial ownership of the tract, then full ownership by 1890.
e Oliver operated two different businesses on this lot.
From the Crittenden family to D L Ferguson & W J Oliver in 1882
Notes:
e One-acre vacant lot (264’ N/S x 165’ E/W). The NE corner of this lot is the NW
9/1/1882 corner of the Oliver lot. Bounded by the railroad on the north, W S Edwards on

the west.

e A warehouse was built on the tract in 1881. Later deeds for this parcel add
partners, then consolidate ownership with W J Oliver in 1890.
Source: Deed Book/CC/507, CC/506, CC/496, CC/501, BB/728, CC/508, AA/450

In 1904, the southern portion of the lot was sold to Farmers Warehouse. In 1948, the northern
portion was absorbed into the Shellman Motor Co. lot. Refer to 53 Arthur St. for more information.

Oliver Warehouses

W J Oliver & D L Ferguson operated a cotton warehouse
here beginning in 1881, as shown in the newspaper
advertisement at right (link).

The warehouse had a number of different partners over
time.

In 1890, J W Oliver acquired sole ownership of the
warehouse and lot.

No mention of this warehouse is made in the newspaper
accounts of the fire of 1894 (link), but no references to the
warehouse have been found after the fire.

The warehouse seems to have been incorporated in a
livery stable, with one portion of the operation used to
store cotton seed, by 1896. This is shown on the 1902
map.

PLANTERS WARKHOUSE

Ward Station; Ga.

“'v are pleased to announce to the plan-
ters of this section that we have a
commodious warehouse, at NVl SN
where we are prepared to

Store, Ship or Sell all Cotton

intrusted to our care. No high city rates
to cover insurance, leakage by proféssional
or chronic samplers will be charged, but we
propose to do a strictly legitimate business.
Being planters oursclves we know from
years of observation where and how to save
a large per cent to the producer.

g We will store cotton for 20 cents per
month. Where a longer time is wanted
we will make special and satisfactory rates.
Correct weights guaranteed.

Bagging and Ties always on hand and
for sale.

We will receive morning "and evening
market quotations on cotton for the benefit
of our patrons.

We shall labor to give entire satisfaction
to all patrons.

FERGUSON & OLIVER,
Wird SEon Ga.
August 4, 1881—tljanl.

--Continued on next page--
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https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053287/1881-08-04/ed-1/seq-3/#date1=01%2F01%2F1855&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=Station+Ward&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=8&proxdistance=2&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=ward%27s+station&andtext=&page=1
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053204/1894-08-26/ed-1/seq-4/#date1=08%2F21%2F1894&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F1895&words=Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=2&proxdistance=5&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&andtext=shellman&page=2

g_@_@y Shellman Historic Buildings

* j (1830-1950)

Oliver Stables W. J. Orive, J. M. Cosa.
e By 1896, W J Oliver was operating stables in this location

(Deed Book/EE/496). (W. J. OLIVER & CO0.)

e The 1897 newspaper advertisement at right (link) reveals

that Oliver was in partnership with J M Cobb. Cobb also .
had an interest in stables in Dawson and moved there in LIVERY’
1897 (link).
e The 1902 map provides the location of the stable and SAI_E
reveals that there was a building attached to the stable R o

labeled “cotton seed”. Perhaps a portion of the earlier

warehouse on this tract was still being used to store F l Str bl
Oliver’s seed stock. ee( 161 eS ’

e In 1904, Oliver sold the southern portion of this lot to SHELLINAN G.A.

Farmers Warehouse, retaining 122’ at the northern end Oun:furnioh TRAMN sy 40t o
times, Meet all trains. day or night.

(Corner of Arthur St and W Railroad St, later partly sold t0  Oharges reasonable.  Give us & trial,

Shellman Motor Co., see FF1/121). The new warehouse Batisfaction gnaranteed.
was built on the site of the stables. There is no mention of Oliver operating a commercial stable
after 1904.

e Oliver had a large private barn used as a stable, located about 20’ from Farmers Warehouse. It
burned in 1906 (link) and again in 1907 (link); arson was suspected.

April 7, 2024 © Jim Wooten Page 13 of 503



https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053952/1897-07-30/ed-1/seq-2/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=LiVERY+OLIVER+Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=0&proxdistance=5&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=oliver+livery&andtext=shellman&page=1
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1897-02-24/ed-1/seq-7/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2023&words=depot+Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=0&proxdistance=2&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=shellman+depot&andtext=&page=1
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1906-12-19/ed-1/seq-1/#date1=01%2F01%2F1880&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=J+Oliver+SHELLMAN+Shellman+W&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=10&proxdistance=2&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=w+j+oliver&andtext=shellman&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=5
https://www.newspapers.com/image/969952311/?terms=mule%20auction%20shellman&match=1

Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

51 Arthur St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Oliver Warehouses Lot (See 55 Arthur St)

7/5/1904

From W J Oliver to Farmers’ Warehouse

Notes: .38 acres (250’ N/S x 110’ E/W). Bounded north and west by the land of W J

Oliver; south by an alley separating this lot from the Arthur Hotel lot.

e Known as the Oliver stable lot. The stables were still in operation at the time of
this deed, so this lot is not precisely the same as the stables.

e Oliver was a partner in the Farmers’ Warehouse; this deed transfers his property
to the partnership.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/144,11/144

Farmers Warehouse

Farmers Warehouse was chartered in 1904 by W J Oliver and
other partners, including James M Wooten (link). Wooten
managed the business.

They built the largest warehouse in Shellman with a capacity of
5,000 bales (link). A fire destroyed the warehouse and 3,000
bales of cotton in 1915 (link). The loss, estimated at $175,000,
was partly insured. The warehouse was rebuilt.

The charter lapsed in 1924, but the warehouse continued
operations. In 1943, Wooten, having acquired sole ownership, dissolved the partnership.
Wooten sold the business in 1948 to Shellman Motor Company.

For information on Wooten, refer to 7 E Ward St.

4/24/1948 Notes:

From James M Wooten to Shellman Motor Co.

Source: Deed Book/FF1/71, FF1/70 (mortgage), CC1/163

Shellman Motor Co.

Shellman Motor Co. was organized in 1948. H D McClure was president. Source: Deed
Book/FF1/230

The company renovated the warehouse and opened a Chevrolet dealership in the new facility in
March, 1949 (link). They sold the business in 1960.

For information on the McClure family, refer to 128 W Phelps St.

8/12/1960 Notes:

From Shellman Motor Co. to James Bethea

Source: Deed Book/QQ1/483-4, YY4/245-6
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https://www.google.com/books/edition/Annual_Report_of_the_Secretary_of_State/kYg-AAAAYAAJ?hl=en&gbpv=1&bsq=farmers%20warehouse%20shellman
https://www.newspapers.com/image/969961481/?terms=farmers%20warehouse
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053204/1915-12-12/ed-1/seq-3/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=Shellman+SHELLMAN+Warehouse+WAREHOUSE+WOOTEN+Wooten&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=0&proxdistance=2&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=wooten+warehouse&andtext=shellman&page=1
https://archive.org/details/sim_automotive-news_1949-03-21_24_3177/page/30/mode/2up?q=%22shellman+motor+co%22

Shollmary Shellman Historic Buildings
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49 Arthur St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the W J Oliver tract which was acquired by W R Puckett in 1935 (See 129 Oliver St).

From W R Puckett to N L Holley

Notes: Lot with blacksmith shop (83’ N/S x 75’ E/W). Known as the S W Winn

Blacksmith shop.

Source: Deed Book/EE1/147-8, EE1/156 (mortgage)

Winn/Holley Blacksmith Shops

e Deeds for the Oliver estate reveal that the blacksmith shop of S W Winn was located on this lot by
1935. This is likely a blacksmith named Cince Winn who died in 1936. Refer to 12 Bethea St for
information on Winn.

e Niles Holley was a blacksmith who operated this shop from 1947 until his death in 1967. Refer to
91 E Ward St for information on Holley.

From the estate of N L Holley to D K Bynum, IlI

Notes: Bynum had signed an option to purchase the shop in 1963; this deed

completed that agreement. Bynum used the lot as part of his agri-businesses.

Source: Deed Book/XX1/162, DD2/304 (mortgage)

Acquired by J W Sammons (Deed not located)

Notes: Sammons operated a peanut sheller on the lot.

Source: Deed Book/MM4/9-13 (Tract #3), RR4/33-36 (Tract #2)

2/5/1947

5/2/1967

B K Arthur Tract, Arthur St
Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.
e From the Crittenden family to T A Wall in 1883
e From Wall to B K Arthur in 1884
Notes: Ten acres, vacant in 1883. The NE corner of this lot is the SE corner of the
Ferguson & Oliver warehouse lot.
Source: Deed Book/CC/402, CC/403
The Arthur Tract was to become the southern portion of the Shellman commercial district. It was
divided into two (or three) parcels which became home to a number of businesses, and were
themselves later divided.

12/4/1883,
11/15/1884

Parcel #1
The section east of Arthur St became the Martin Triangle. See Martin Triangle (Arthur St and Buford
St).

Parcel #2

The section west of Arthur St became home to businesses initially owned by the Arthur family.
However, the parcel was divided and sold, and perhaps recombined, in a confusing series of deeds. It
is clear that initially the parcel was the site of a house (the George B Arthur house) as well as a hotel
and stables (the Arthur House Hotel). The location of these structures is shown on the 1902 map. See
15 Arthur St.
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15 Arthur St (Fictitious street number)

e In 1884, B K Arthur purchased 10 acres in what was to become the southern portion of the
Shellman commercial district. This lot was part of that tract (See B K Arthur Tract, Parcel #2).

e The parcel was subdivided, and perhaps then combined, in a series of deeds that are confusing.
This section contains all of the deeds relating to the entire parcel until 1920, when the stables
were permanently separated.

e From B K Arthur to his son, G B Arthur, in 1886

e In 1896, from Arthur to Shellman Banking Co; then back to Arthur’s wife, Mrs. F
L Arthur

e |n 1904, Mrs. Arthur gives half-interest to her brother-in-law, T R Arthur

3/1/1886, T

4/9/1896, . y ’ , .

10/1/1896, e 1.5-acre vacant lot in 1886 (135’ N/S x.630 E/W). This was the NW corner of the
8/3/1904 10-acre lot that B K Arthur purchased in 1884.

e The 1904 deed refers to this as the “hotel and lot recently occupied by me.” This
is ambiguous, but the 1902 deed shows that there is a house on the northern
section of the B K Arthur Tract, and a hotel on the southern section of the tract.

Source: Deed Book/EE/635, EE/504, FF/131-2, JJ/161

e From B K Arthur to Lawson Stapleton (Sumter County) & C G Johnson (Muscogee
County) in 1890

1%3{;22?' e From Stapleton & Johnson to Daniel R Stewart (Randolph County) in 1896
1/2/1897 e From Stewart to his wife, Nancy O Stewart, in 1897

Notes: 7 acres, including the Arthur Hotel

Source: Deed Book/CC/404, DD/644, GG/50

From Nancy O Stewart to W T Saxon

10/21/1902 Notes: 6.5 acres; the tract is reduced by % acre with house, which is separately
deeded to Saxon.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/367, PP/594 (mortgage)

e From T R Arthur (half-interest) to W R Curry

e From the Arthur family (half-interest) to W R Curry

2/2/1910, Notes: One acre; bounded north by Farmers Warehouse; south by W T Saxon.

12/29/1910 Described as “the hotel property known as the Arthur house.” Curry obtains sole
interest in the property, now reduced to one acre. It is not clear if this is the
northern parcel or a portion of the southern parcel.

Source: Deed Book/NN/24, NN/142

e From W R Curry to | J Lunsford to Mrs. G M Sparks in 1917

12/20/1917, e From Sparks to J A Grubbs in 1919
12/27/1917, Notes: One-acre lot. Bounded north by Farmers Warehouse; south by W T Saxon. In
10/25/1919 1917, known as Lunsford House and Stables.

Source: Deed Book/NN/574, 00/351, PP/139

St).

Grubbs divided the lot in 1920.
e The western portion of the lot contained stables, which were sold to W J Oliver (See 13 Arthur

e The eastern portion contained the hotel, and is documented below.

1/1/1920, e FromJ A Grubbs to Oliver Orchard Co & C P Prothro & Sons in 1920
6/7/1923 e From Prothro to Oliver Orchard Co in 1923
April 7, 2024 © Jim Wooten Page 16 of 503
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Notes: 89’ N/S x 158’ E/W. Oliver & Prothro bought the old hotel for use in their agri-
businesses in 1920. Oliver Orchard Co. was a partnership of W J Oliver & A J Evans.
The partnership acquired sole ownership from Prothro in 1923.

Source: Deed Book/PP/204, QQ/547

e From Oliver & Evans (sheriff’s sale) to C V Jones in 1935
11/5/1935, e From Jones to O A Crittenden in 1936

1/21/1936 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/YY/62, YY/62-3

e From O A & Marianna Crittenden to J E McGlaun & J P Gunnells in 1945

e From McGlaun to Gunnells in 1949

e Gunnells sold the property in 1989

4/23/1945, Notes: Lot with old hotel building (93’ N/S x 175’ E/W). McGlaun & Gunnells bought
3/1/1949 the property as partners in 1945. In 1949, they dissolved the partnership and
Gunnells took sole ownership. Gunnells operated an agri-business here, especially
buying and selling pecans.

Source: Deed Book/ DD1/178, DD1/244 DD1/241, FF1/557-8

Later Deeds: ZZ3/33, BB7/335 (Tract #2)

The George B Arthur family

e George Arthur was a son of Basil K Arthur, and grew up on the family farm in Randolph County.
He married Frances (Fanny) Sale in 1873.

e In 1880, the Arthurs were farming in Alabama. In 1886, they were back in Shellman to buy this lot
from his father. They built a house and lived here for a time.

e It's not certain, but the 1900 census (link) suggests the Arthurs are living in and operating the
hotel; their house to the north seems to be rented.

e Fanny Arthur died in 1907. By 1910, George was living alone in rented quarters in Cuthbert,
where he was a livestock dealer. He died there in 1927.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Arthur House Hotel

Note: The information on the Arthur House Hotel is contradictory. There is no doubt that G B Arthur

operated a hotel and stable on his lot by 1900. Several deeds record that the hotel was part of the

parcel that passed from B K Arthur through several hands to W T Saxon in 1902. The hotel was well
documented in newspapers of the time, as recounted below.

e B K Arthur built a hotel, completing it in early 1884 (link). It was Shellman’s only hotel until the
Sasser Hotel was built in 1896. Boarders were also taken at several homes in Shellman.

e |n 1889, Arthur added a second story (link). Will Smith and his wife managed the hotel for Arthur
(link).

e In 1890, Lawson Stapleton of Americus and Charley Johnson of Columbus bought the Arthur
House, proposing “to convert it into a model ‘drummer’s’ home.” (link) They continued to use the
name “Arthur House”.

e The dining room was large enough to accommodate banquets (link).

e Several deeds refer to this as a hotel and a livery stable. An alley ran north/south through the lot
to separate the stable (on the west) from the hotel (fronting the street).

e From 1896-1902, the hotel was owned by Daniel R Stewart, and then his wife Nancy. They were
Randolph County farmers, apparently purchasing the hotel as an investment. G B Arthur was
resident hotel keeper in 1900 (link).

e W T Saxon purchased the hotel in 1902. From this time, details of the hotel are sketchy.
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https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/7602/images/4120081_00579?pId=9396112
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=george+b_arthur&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1854&death=1927_cuthbert-randolph-georgia-usa_19428&count=50
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053287/1886-02-04/ed-1/seq-3/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=B+K_Arthur&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=11&proxdistance=5&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=b+k+arthur&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&andtext=&page=8
https://www.newspapers.com/image/825368528/?terms=%22b%20k%20arthur%22&match=1
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1890-06-18/ed-1/seq-2/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=Arthur+Bros+Shellman+SHELLMAN&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=1&proxdistance=1&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=shellman+ward&proxtext=arthur+bros&andtext=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=3
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn84024799/1890-09-26/ed-1/seq-4/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=Arthur+House+Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=3&proxdistance=1&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=arthur+house&andtext=shellman&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=1
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1892-12-21/ed-1/seq-1/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=Arthur+House+SHELLMAN&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=4&proxdistance=1&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=arthur+house&andtext=shellman&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=1
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/9396112:7602?tid=&pid=&queryId=7761632c227d1b80b96c2b39960b6afe&_phsrc=nzO1577&_phstart=successSource

Shollmary Shellman Historic Buildings
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o No hotel can be found in the 1910 census
o The hotel was known as the Lunsford House and Stables in 1917.
e 1n 1920, J A Grubbs sold the hotel for agribusiness use.

13 Arthur St (Fictitious street number)
This lot was originally part of the Arthur Hotel and Stables (See 15 Arthur St). It was divided in 1920.
From J A Grubbs to W J Oliver
Notes: 103’ N/S x 143’ E/W. Oliver bought the stables on the western part of the
1/1/1920 Arthur Hotel Lot. The deed provides access to Arthur St via an alley on the north
side of the Hotel lot.
Source: Deed Book/PP/204
From W J Oliver to C L Wooten & O H Jordan
2/28/1929 Notes: Lot with stable building, plus access to Arthur St.
Source: Deed Book/UU/9
From O H Jordan to W C Franklin
1/9/1937 Notes: Lot with stable building, plus access to Arthur St.
Source: Deed Book/YY/84, YY/84-5 (mortgage)
e From W C Franklin to D K Bynum, Jr. in 1946
e D KBynum, lll received sole ownership of this lot from his father’s estate in 1964
9/9/1946, Notes:
8/6/1964 e Lot with stable in 1946.
e Lot with two metal-clad buildings and a dwelling in 1964.
Source: Deed Book/DD1/588, UU1/271, UU1/274 (mortgage), DD2/304 (mortgage)
Acquired by ] W Sammons (Deed not located)
Notes: Sammons operated a peanut sheller on the lot.
Source: Deed Book/MM4/9-13 (Tract #3), RR4/33-36 (Tract #2)
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5 Arthur St (Fictitious street number)

In 1884, B K Arthur purchased 10 acres in what was to become the southern portion of the Shellman
commercial district. This lot was part of that tract (See B K Arthur Tract, Parcel #3).

10/3/1921

From W T Saxon to W R Curry

Notes: 2.33-acre lot with house. The NE corner of this lot is the SE corner of the old
George Arthur Hotel lot. Known as the W T Saxon house and lot. Curry acquired the
southern portion of the Saxon parcel, then divided and sold it.

Source: Deed Book/PP/597

10/26/1929,
10/17/1933

e Acquired by Weathers and Crittenden (Deed not located)

e W R Curry acquired the property the property in deeds from 1929 -1937.

Notes: Lot with improvements (80.5’ N/S x 300’ E/W). The NE corner of this lot is 20’
south of the SE corner of the old George Arthur Hotel lot. Known as the Crittenden &
Weathers sales stables.

Source: Deed Book/UU/33 (2), VV/441, YY/383 (2)

Crittenden & Weathers Stables/W R Curry Mule Barn

e The Crittenden & Weathers sales stables were located here, probably from the 1920s.

e In 1933, W R Curry acquired half-interest in the stables. A 1934 deed identifies this lot as the
Crittenden & Weathers stable property (Deed Book/ ZZ/398).

e W R Curry operated a mule barn here in association with his horse and mule exchange at 254
Buford St. The exchange closed by 1950. Later this property was part of J R Curry’s agri-
businesses, with an office at 250 Buford St.

1/7/1977

From the estate of J R Curry to his son, Charles A Curry
Notes: 100’ N/S x 325’ E/W. Known as the W R Curry Mule Barn property.
Source: Deed Book/NN2/85-7 (Tract #5)

Later deeds: YY9/580-2, Plat Book/11/184 (2011)
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Bethea St

Bethea St probably began as an alley providing an entrance to the south side of the gins south of
Church St in the 1880s. It was known variously as Gin St, Joe Johnson Alley, and John Smith Alley
(Johnson and Smith being two of the old landowners along the alley). The street has been home to
both residential property and agri-business.

Censuses of Bethea St Plats of Bethea St

e 1900 link e Plat Book/6/120 (1986)
e 1910link e Plat Book/6/156 (1987)
e 1920 link e Plat Book/6/217 (1988)
e 1930 link

e 1940 link

e 1950 link
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2 Bethea St

Part of the 2-acre tract purchased by Sallie Johnson from J
B Payne in 1885 (See 120 Buford St.

e From Sallie Johnson to Mattie Winn in 1893
e From Mattie Winn to T H Anthony & E R Cheney in 1906
e Quitclaim deed from T H Anthony & E R Cheney to Mattie Winn’s son, Cince

Winn, in 1913
Notes:
10/27/1893, ] . -
11;15;1906 e Quarter-acre lot with house in 1893. Bounded north by Jesse Merritt; south and
7/26/1913 f east by Sallie Johnson; west by Buford St. Winn is buying the house where she

already lives.

e The 1906 and 1913 deeds seem to be mortgages, but they also transfer the
house to Mattie Winn’s son.

Source: Deed Book/EE/90, LL/37 (mortgage), MM/351 (mortgage quitclaim),

TT1/505-6

Notes: This mortgage covers a %-acre lot with two houses (120 Buford St and 12

1/20/1923 Bethea St)

Source: Deed Book/QQ/386 (mortgage)

From the heirs of Cince Winn to Ulysses Davis

11/22/1963 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/TT1/505-6, TT1/506

Later deeds: KK5/5-7 (Tract 2), Plat Book/6/217 (1988)

The Alex Winn family

e Alex and Mattie Thomas Winn were from Eatonton. They moved to Shellman by 1893, when they
purchased this house on Bethea St.

e Alex Winn died between 1893 and 1900. Mattie still lived here in 1940 (link); no later information
on her can be found.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Cince (Cincinnati?) Winn family

e Cince Winn was the son of Alex and Mattie Winn. He was born in Eatonton, and moved to
Shellman with his family in the early 1890s. Cince and Mary Ransom were married soon after
1900.

e In 1913, the Winns purchased this house, where his mother had lived.

e Mary Winn died in 1924. In 1926, Cince and Ethel were married.

e Cince died in 1936; Ethel remained here until she sold the house in 1963.

e Winn was a blacksmith; his shop was on Arthur St. After he died, Ethel became a laundress.

Source: Ancestry.com link, link

April 7, 2024 © Jim Wooten Page 21 of 503



https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/2442/images/M-T0627-00703-00990
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=matte_winn&birth=1845&count=50&race=black&residence=_shellman-randolph-georgia-usa_19431&residence2=_putnam-georgia-usa_2453&spouse=mattie
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=cince_winn&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1885&count=50
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=ethel_winn&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA

Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

%
22 Bethea St

e From H O Crittenden to S T Harden in 1941
e By descent to his widow, Jessie Bell Tillman Harden, in 1943

4/25/1941, e From Mrs. Harden (now Miller) to her children in 1993

6/15/1993 Notes: Approximately 190’ square. Bounded east by the Kenney Gin; south by the
public-school lot; west by Crumley and Winn; north by the gin road.
Source: Deed Book/BB1/454, DD5/109

The Samuel T Harden family

Sam Harden was from Shellman. He married Jessie Bell Tillman in the late 1930s.

Sam was a carpenter who worked for a building contractor; Jessie worked for the Columbian
Peanut Co.

The Hardens rented a house on John Smith St in 1940 before buying this house in 1941.

Sam died in 1943. Jessie then married Leroy Miller.

In 1950, the Millers were living here along with Jessie’s family, the Tillmans.

The original house was replaced in 1980.

In 1993, Jessie gave this lot to two of her children, who still own it.

Source: Ancestry.com link

40 Bethea St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e From H O Crittenden to the Crittenden Brothers in 1913

e From the Crittenden Brothers to the Crittenden Ginnery in 1922
11/1/1913, Y N ; 5

Notes: Lot with gin built in 1922 (175’ N/S x 350’ E/W). Bounded south by the
10/24/1922 "

northern boundary of Lot/5/270; east by the New Pleasant Grove Baptist Church.

Source: Deed Book/NN/377, QQ/284, XX/139

From the Crittenden Ginnery to H O Crittenden & A R Kenney (sheriff’s sale)
6/4/1935, .
12/28/1936 Notes: Foreclosed and sold to members of the family.

Source: Deed Book/ XX/139-41, YY/27, QQ1/395

From J R Curry to J W Sammons
6/22/1970 Notes: The only structure mentioned is a molasses tank.

Source: Deed Book/AA2/599

Later deeds: XX2/356

Crittenden Gin Seat & Crittenden Ginnery

The Crittendens were operating a gin “near Ward’s Station” by 1877 (link).

The Crittenden Brothers owned a gin on Calhoun St known as the Crittenden Gin Seat from 1896-
1904. When they sold the land, they removed the gin equipment (See 2430 Calhoun St).

The gin may have been relocated to this lot on Bethea St.

In 1922, the Crittenden Brothers built a new gin on this lot and sold it to a different Crittenden
entity, the Crittenden Ginnery.

The Ginnery was foreclosed in 1935. It was purchased at the sheriff’s sale by H O Crittenden & AR
Kenney.

By 1970, the gin seems to have been demolished. The property was sold by J R Curry to J W
Sammons; the only structure mentioned is a molasses tank.
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41 Bethea St

Likely part of the 2-acre tract purchased by Sallie Johnson from J B Payne in 1885.

From Mercer Wooten to Nancy King

Notes: Quarter-acre lot with house. Bounded east by the Douglass place; south by
Sallie Johnson; west by Matt Winn; north by Jesse Merritt.

Source: Deed Book/HH/282

e From Nancy King to C W Martin

e From C W Martin to Arthur & Carrie Burks

11/19/1904, Notes: Quarter-acre lot with house. Bounded east by the Douglass place; south by
10/2/1906 Sallie Johnson; west by Matt Winn; north by the Terry estate. The house is
purchased by Burks and his mother, Carrie. Burks already lives here.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/232, KK/120

From Arthur & Lucious Burks to their brother, Alonzo Burks

Notes: Carrie Burks died in 1928; it appears that her interest in the house went to

1/25/1902

Hezileke her sons: Lucious and Arthur sold their interests to a third brother, Alonzo.
Source: Deed Book/ZZ/176

2/amAcssy Wi e o e S

7/9/1946 ' g '

Source: Deed Book/DD1/136, DD1/530

Later deeds: SS2/438, MM12/509

The Arthur Burks, Sr. family

e Arthur Burks was from Randolph County, the son of Harrison and Carrie Burks. He and Lula
Reddick were married in 1903.

e The Burks family rented this house before buying it in 1906. They still lived here in 1910; Arthur
was a self-employed drayman.

e By 1920, the Burks’s were living on (and farming) the nearby land adjacent to the farm of Lula’s
brother, Frank Reddick. This house became rental property.

e Carrie Burks died in 1928. Her interest in the house went to her sons; Lucious and Arthur sold
their interests to a third brother, Alonzo, in 1938. Alonzo sold the house in 1945.

e Arthur Burks died in 1939.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Rufus Toney, Jr. family

e Rufus Toney was the son of Randolph County farmer Rufus Toney, Sr. He and Mary Lou Harris
were married in 1899.

e The Toneys lived on farms in the area before buying this house in 1945. They lived here in 1950.

e This lot was later sold to the adjacent gin property.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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63 Bethea St

Part of the 2-acre tract purchased by Sallie Johnson from J B Payne in 1885.

From Joseph Johnson to Minerva Douglas

Notes:

e Y acre vacant lot purchased by Douglas in 1896.
7/27/1896, e In 1909, Minerva Douglas (now Johnson) mortgaged the lot, now with a house.
2/21/1913, e In 1913, D G Ferguson has been appointed guardian for Douglas. He settled a
2/21/1916 mortgage held by E C McCurdy on the property.

e From Ferguson to | A Martin in 1916.
Source: Deed Book/EE/536, KK/532 (mortgage), MM/323, 00/18 (mortgage

quitclaim)

e From | A Martin to Alonzo Burks in 1918
1/4/1918, e From Burks to Ada Willis in 1919
6/12/1919, e From Willis to Ethel Smith in 1920

10/20/1920 Notes: Bounded west by Arthur Burks. Known as the Minerva Douglas house.
Source: Deed Book/NN1/234 (3 deeds), PP/222 (mortgage)

From the Ethel Smith estate to James Bethea in 1967

11/10/1967 Notes: Lot with house (roughly 75’ N/S x 80’ E/W). Bounded east by Corinne Daniels.
Source: Deed Book/XX1/537 (Tract #2)

Later deeds: HH2/606, EE6/267

Minerva Douglas

Little can be found of Minerva Douglas. She was born in Georgia.

She purchased this house in 1906.

In 1908, she married Lew Johnson and moved to Terrell County.

e In 1913, D G Ferguson was appointed her guardian; by 1920, the house was owned by Ada Willis.
Source: 1900 census link

No information on Ada Willis can be found.

73 Bethea St (Fictitious street number)

e Part of the lot purchased from New Pleasant Grove Baptist Church by Ethel Smith in 1907 (See
101 Bethea St)

e The lot was later divided into four lots on the north side of Bethea St: #113, #101, #91, and #73.

e From Ethel Smith to Corinne Daniels & Effie Mae Greene in 1957

3/18/1957, e Sold from Daniels’ estate in 2004

9/3/2004 Notes: Lot with house (55’ N/S x 60" E/W).

Source: Deed Book/NN1/259, 778/91-2

e The 1957 deed is the only record of a house +on this lot. It cannot be determined from census
records who lived here beforehand, but it is likely that the house was built as rental property
some years in the past.

e The house no longer stands.

April 7, 2024 © Jim Wooten Page 24 of 503



https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/7602/images/4120081_00580

Shollmary Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

88 Bethea St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871. Then acquired by J B Payne.

From J B Payne to Viola Pitman to New Pleasant Grove Baptist Church

2/13/1895, Notes: 1.5 acres, lying in the SE corner of Lot 5/269. Bounded east by Calhoun St;

3/4/1899 west by Sallie Johnson.

Source: Deed Book/HH/307, HH/308

From New Pleasant Grove Baptist Church to Union Baptist Church

Notes: 1 acre. Bounded north by Jeff Wall, east by Calhoun St. The church was

4/5/1921 consolidated with New Harmony Baptist Church to form Union Baptist Church on

Fountain Bridge Rd.

Source: Deed Book/PP/593

From the Trustee of New Pleasant Grove Baptist Church to Ethel Smith

Notes: This deed conveyed the lot because the church had forfeited a loan to Smith

many years before. The lot appears to be vacant.

Source: Deed Book/GG1/281

From Ethel Smith to J R Curry

6/30/1960 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/GG1/281, QQ1/408 (Tract #1)

New Pleasant Grove Baptist Church

e The deacons of the Pleasant Grove Baptist Church (116 Pine St) purchased a lot on the north side
of Bethea St in 1894. They soon sold it back, then reacquired it, before selling it for good in 1907
(See 101 Bethea St). The lot seems to have been vacant the entire time.

e The trustees of the New Pleasant Grove Baptist Church purchased this lot on the south side of
Bethea St in 1899, and presumably built a sanctuary here soon after.

e The new church was probably “planted” by the old church; several of the trustees of the new
church were previously deacons of the old church.

e In 1921, the church merged with the New Harmony Baptist Church to form Union Baptist Church
at 3454 Fountain Bridge Rd.

e This lot was under mortgage to Ethel Smith, who took possession of it at an unknown date. In
1950, a deed was files to formally convey the lot to Mrs. Smith.

4/4/1950
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91 Bethea St

e  Part of the lot purchased from New Pleasant Grove
Baptist Church by Ethel Smith in 1907 (See 101 Bethea St)
e The lot was later divided into four lots on the north
side of Bethea St: #113, #101, #91, and #73.

From Ethel Smith to Jessie Lee Smith Gilbert and her children
11/23/1956 Notes: 70’ N/S x 65’ E/W, with the house where Ethel Smith resided.
Source: Deed Book/MM1/529
From the Gilberts to A C and Josie Guyton
2/19/1969 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/ZZ1/173
e Later deeds: QQ4/105
e Tax records say the house was built 1915

101 Bethea St

e Part of the lot purchased from New Pleasant Grove
Baptist Church by Ethel Smith in 1907 (See 101 Bethea St)
e The lot was later divided into four lots on the north
side of Bethea St: #113, #101, #91, and #73.

From New Pleasant Grove Baptist Church to Ethel Smith

Notes: Half-acre lot, no improvements mentioned. Bounded north by W R Terry;
12/31/1907 east by Calhoun St; south by New Pleasant Grove Baptist Church; west by Joe
Johnson and Minerva Douglass. Known as the northern lot of the church.
Source: Deed Book/NN/65, QQ1/408 (Tract #2)

e From the estate of Ethel Smith to Charlie Will Allen in 1967

11/10/1967, e From Allen to his children in 1971

1/2/1971 Notes: 78’ N/S x 95’ E/W. In 1967, known as the Jessie L Gilbert house.

Source: Deed Book/BB2/343

New Pleasant Grove Baptist Church

This lot was for a time owned by the New Pleasant Grove Baptist Church. Refer to 88 Bethea St for
information on the church.

Tax records say the house was built in 1920.
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113 Bethea St

e Part of the lot purchased from New Pleasant Grove
Baptist Church by Ethel Smith in 1907 (See 101 Bethea St)
e The lot was later divided into four lots on the north
side of Bethea St: #113, #101, #91, and #73.

From John & Ethel Smith to Weda Mae Kaigler

Notes: 100’ N/S x 78’ E/W.

e Tax records say the house was built in 1906.

e Bounded west by house of John Smith. In 1950, the Smiths divided their lot and
sold Kaigler the house she has rented for 14 years.

e |n 2003, the Kaigler estate sold the house.

Source: Deed Book/GG1/363, 008/69

The Wesley Kaigler family

e Very little can be found on the Kaigler family.

e They began renting this house in 1936. In 1950, the Kaiglers were separated; Weda remained in
this house, and purchased it later that year.

Source: Ancestry.com link, link

6/2/1950,
9/10/2003
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Buford Circle

Buford Circle was created around 1910 when M W (Mike) Cox subdivided a large tract acquired from
the old Ferguson holdings. Early deeds refer to the street as New St, and later as Buford Lane and

Buford Alley.

Censuses of Buford Circle Plats of Buford Circle

e 1920 link e Plat Book/3/308 (1968)
e 1930 link

e 1940 link

e 1950 link

Cox Addition, Buford Circle

Part of the David Ferguson holdings acquired in the 1840s.

e From Fergusonto Z T Phelps in 1875
e From Phelps to Joseph B Payne in 1877
e From Payne to M J Turner in 1882

1/16/1875, LoF :
1/3/1877 e From Turner’s heirs to M W Cox in 1909
7/20/188'2 Notes: 40 acres in the NE corner of Lot 5/263, plus the west half of Lot 5/270. By

11/15/1909 1909, several lots on the west side of Fountain Bridge Rd (about 2.75 acres) were
excluded, as Turner sold them to Sandy Anderson, Mollie Brookins, Tom Coates, and
Nathan Harvey.

Source: Deed Book/P/610, Turner’s will, LL/623, NN/514 (mortgage)

e Cox subdivided the tract and began selling lots (See below). When he died in 1917, the remainder
of the tract (114 acres) was sold to T R Arthur. Source: Deed Book/00/305-6 (plat)

e In 1932, Arthur sold the tract to J L Thompson; it remains in the family today. Source: Deed
Book/VV/75

For information on Mary Jane Turner, refer to 50 Church St.

arver Street Cox subdivided the tract. It was surveyed by someone identified as
“Bell” but the survey was not recorded. There were two blocks,
1 each with many lots.

Block 1
° Block 1 was located in the NE corner of the tract; its northern
boundary is Carver St.
o There were at least 39 lots, generally 33 1/3’ E/W x 150" N/S.
_ 0o Thelots were arranged in two rows; the northern row faced
; on Carver St., while the southern row was just below the northern
__ row, facing on an unnamed dirt street on the south.
- =‘ o Coxheld an auction 10/24/1913; it appears that the lots in
' Block 1 were offered at that time. No results have been found, but
we know that not all the lots were sold, because there are later
deeds for many of the lots in Block 1. The sales continued for
many years.
o  The only known early house which is still standing in Block 1
is #19 Buford St. There were undoubtedly other early houses, but most have been
demolished. If any remain, there are no records to identify them.
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Block 2

Block 2 was located further south; those lots are located on the west side of Fountain Bridge Rd,
on both sides of Buford Circle, and the east side of Prince Rd.

Mary Jane Turner had already sold a few residential lots on the northern portion of west side of
Fountain Bridge Rd.

Cox began selling lots further south on Fountain Bridge Rd in 1910.

Cox also created a new street, Buford Circle, to provide access to new lots that he created just
west of Fountain Bridge Rd. He also began selling these lots in 1910.

5 Buford Circle

Part of the tract acquired by M W Cox in 1909.

AW e T
i g

0

B .

e Acquired by Beatrice Brookins in 1921 (See 15 Buford Circle)
e From Beatrice Brookins to Johnnie & Dora Martin & Emmazell Hall in 1949

11/26/1949 Notes: 126’N/S x 106’ E/W. Bounded north by Hattie Wilson; south by Lonnie Hall;
east by Brookins. Brookins created this lot from the lot to the south.
Source: Deed Book/HH1/207-8
From Johnnie & Dora Martin & Emmazell Hall to Mary Sheppard

4/16/1968 Notes: Lot with house. The center portion of the plat.

Source: Deed Book/YY1/155, Plat Book/3/308 (1968)

e Tax records say the house was built in 1941.
e Still owned by the family.

The Lonnie Hall family

The Johnnie Martin family

Refer to 15 Buford St for information on these two families.
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15 Buford Circle (Fictitious street number)

Part of the tract acquired by M W Cox in 1909.

From F C Cox to Beatrice Brookins

8/13/1921 Notes: Vacant lot (210’ N/S x 90’ E/W). Bounded north by Tom Jones; east by
Brookins; south by Tom Coats. This deed conveyed all three lots on 1968 plat.
Source: Deed Book/XX/432, Plat Book/3/308 (1968)
From Beatrice Brookins to Jordan Baines

8/13/1921 Notes: Vacant lot (55’ N/S x 90’ E/W). Brookins sold a small lot from the tract she
had just purchased.
Source: Deed Book/PP/581
e From Mrs. J A Grubbs to Amie Baines & Ada Moody in 1941

7/3/1941 e From Baines & Moody to Lonnie Hall in 1942

9/2/1942: e From Hall (half-interest) to his wife, Emmazell Hall, in 1942

9/22/1942, e The Halls expanded their lot in 1946

3/2/1946 e The Halls transferred a remainder interest in the expanded property to her son,

Johnnie Martin.

Notes: One house and lot. In 194ed Book/BB1/222, BB1/570, FF1/364 (2)

e Thisis Tax Lot SHO3 041.
e The house was replaced in 2000.
e Later Deeds: QQ4/120

The Jordan (Judge) Baines family

e Jordan was from Randolph County, the son of Peter and Arie Baines. He and Amie Daniel were
married in Terrell County in 1887.

e Jordan was a farmer before moving to Shellman. The family owned Lots 5/221 & 5/222 near
Goff’s Mill for several years.

e The family bought this lot in 1921 and built a house here. In Shellman, Baines worked for a
private family as a servant and gardener. Amie was a laundress.

e Jordan died in 1936. Amie remained in the house until 1942. She then moved to Dayton, OH,
where she lived with the family of her daughter, Ada Moody. She died there in 1946 (obituary).

e The Baines’s daughter Gertrude lived to become the world’s oldest person. She died in 2009 at

age 115 (obituary).
Source: Ancestry.com link

The Lonnie Hall family
The Johnnie Martin family
e Lonnie Hall was from Randolph County. He was married and living on a farm near Shellman when
convicted of murder in 1925. He was paroled in 1934.
e Emmazell Cooper Martin was a widow who married Lonnie Hall in the late 1930s. Johnnie Martin
was her son.
e The Halls & Johnnie Martin were renting a house in this immediate area in 1940, perhaps one of
the houses they later purchased.
o In 1942, the Halls purchased the house at 15 Buford Circle.
o Johnnie and Dora Martin were married in the late 1940s.
o The Halls and Martins purchased the house at 5 Buford Circle in 1949.
o Both couples lived in one house in 1950; it seems to have been 15 Buford Circle.
e Lonnie died in 1961. The surviving family sold the house at 5 Buford Circle in 1968.
e They still own the house at 15 Buford Circle. Emmazell remained there until her death in 1994.
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Lonnie Hall was a farmer. In later life, Emmazell was a maid.
e Johnnie Martin drove a truck for Columbian Peanut Co.
Source:

e Johnnie & Dora Martin: Ancestry.com link

e Emmazell Cooper Martin Hall: Ancestry.com link

Lonnie Hall: Ancestry.com link
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25 Buford Circle
Part of the David Ferguson farm acquired by Mary Jane
Turner in 1881.
This lot was assembled from two lots:
e The eastern parcel, facing on Fountain Bridge Rd,

contained a house built for the Thomas Coats family
around 1890
e The western parcel contains a house (still standing)
built in 1931
s 2
/™. 10/06/2014
Eastern Parcel (mapped as 2707 Fountain Bridge Rd)
From Mary J Turner to Thomas Coats
Notes: % acre (52.5’ N/S x 210’ E/W), no improvements. The NE corner of this lot is
4/6/1889 the SE .corner of the Isham B.rook.ins lot. _ .
e This lot faced on Fountain Bridge Rd and did not extend to Buford Cir.
e Coats built a house here facing on Fountain Bridge Rd (Buford Circle did not yet
exist).
Source: Deed Book/EE/199
Western Parcel (mapped as 25 Buford Circle)
Acquired by Thomas Coats (Deed not located)
Combined Parcels
From Thomas Coates to J F & W R Crittenden
2/15/1915 Notes: Expanded lot now extends from Fountain Bridge Rd to Buford Cir. (49.5’" N/S x
300’ E/W). The deed does not mention houses, but later deeds suggest that Coats’s
house was still here.
Source: Deed Book/NN/474
e FromJF & W R Crittenden to Charlie Baldwin (Deed not located)
e Purchased by J D Pipkin (sheriff’s sale) in 1939
e From Pipkin back to Charlie Baldwin in 1945
9/5/1939, Notes: Two houses and lots, half-acre total. Bounded north by Amie Baines; south by
2/7/1945 Grady Thompson; west by Isaac Ford.
The two houses presumably are the Coats house and the house facing Buford Circle,
which tax records say was built in 1931.
Source: Deed Book/BB1/219, DD1/136
e From Charlie Baldwin (son of Charlie Baldwin) to O A Crittenden in 1957
e From Oscar A Crittenden (Quitclaim) to Willie Slocomb in 1964
2/2/1957, e |n 1975, from Slocomb’s estate to his widow, Willie Fred Slocomb (life interest),
3/6/1964, then to Rebecca S Collins and Dorothy S Williams (remainder interest)
1/6/1975 Notes: 60’ N/S x 290’ E/W. Bounded north by Emmazell Hall and the Davises; south
by Arie Adams and Hilda Dozier.
Source: Deed Book/NN1/75, UU1/282, UU1/283 (mortgage), J12/32
Later deeds: JJ9/191
The Thomas Coats family
Almost no information that can be found on Coats:
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He lived in the area by 1880.
e The family was listed in the 1900 census.
Source: Ancestry.com link, link
The Charlie Baldwin family
e Very little information can be found on the family.
e Charlie and Mamie Baldwin were married around 1925.
e They lived here until their deaths around 1956.
Source: Ancestry.com link

44 Buford Circle
Part of the David Ferguson farm acquired by Mary Jane
Turner in 1881.

e From Beatrice Brookins to T J Brown in 1949

e From Brown's estate to his wife (life interest) and his children (remainder
7/12/1949, interest) in 1995

5/15/1995 Notes: Bounded north by F C Cox estate; south by Mattie Barnes: west by John
Jenkins and Ida Harvey.

Source: Deed Book/GG1/365, QQ5/193

Tx records say the house was built in 1953; it is not mapped.
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’ 49 Buford Circle

Part of the David Ferguson farm acquired by Mary Jane
Turner in 1881.

e From Arie Adams to Leonadous Adams in 1949
1/22/1949, e From Leonadous Adams to Alfonza Adams in 1988
7/29/1988 Notes: 58’ N/S x 83’ E/W. Taken from Adams’ home lot on Fountain Bridge Rd.
Source: Deed Book/FF1/358, VV3/241
e Tax records say the house was built in 1941.
e The property is still registered to Alfonza Adams.
The Leonadous (Leondrew) Adams family
e Leonadous was from Shellman, the son of Git & Arie Adams. He grew up in their house on the lot
to the east, 2701 Fountain Bridge Rd. He and Mattie Adams were married in the late 1940s.
e His mother gave him this lot in 1949; the family lived here in 1950. He gave it to his son, Alfonza
Adams in 1988.
e Leonadous moved to Florida in 1957. He died in Orlando in 1994 (obituary).
e In Shellman, he worked for Columbian Peanut Co. In Florida, he worked for Morrison’s Cafeteria.
Source: Ancestry.com link , link
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84 Buford Circle (Fictitious street number)
Part of the tract acquired by M W Cox in 1909.

From M W Cox to Arnold White
Notes:
iggﬁgig' e The White family assembled two vacant lots (a total of 100’ N/S x 150’ E/W) in
8/31/1912: 1910 and 1912.
1/20/1914 e They sold one lot to the Sheffield Brothers in 1912; Matilda bought it back in
1914. This appears to have been a financing arrangement.
Source: Deed Book/NN/187, MM/234, MM/413, 00/91
From Lucretia Green to John & Ethel Smith
11/2/1944 Notes: Green was the daughter of Matilda White. The deed reveals that White died
by 1921, and that Green had either occupied or rented the house since then,
Source: Deed Book/DD1/5
11/22/1955, e From Ethel Smith to Roosevelt Bell in 1955
12/15/1976 e Bell’s heirs conveyed sole ownership to Leola Bell in 1976
Source: Deed Book/LL1/294, NN2/142

e Occupancy of this house is uncertain. It appears to have been rented when the censuses were
taken.

e The property is still owned by the Bell family.

e This is Tax Lot SHO3 030.

The Arnold White family

e Arnold White was from South Carolina. He and Matilda White were married in 1866.

e The Whites lived in Stewart County before moving to a farm north of Shellman between 1887 and
1900.

e They bought two lots in 1910 and 1912 and built a house here.

e The Whites were dead by 1921; their daughter, Lucretia Green, took possession of the house. She
lived there for an unknown time, then rented when not living there, until she sold it in 1944.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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92 Buford Circle

Part of the tract acquired by M W Cox in 1909.

e FromMW Cox to Sam & Lula Nelson in 1912
e From Lula Nelson (half interest) to Sam Nelson in 1924
e From Sam Nelson (remainder interest) to his four daughters in 1959

Notes:
9/4/1912, e The Nelsons bought three vacant lots in 1912 (150’ N/S x 150’ E/W).
1/26/1924, Bounded north by Arnold White.
6/30/1959 e Sam Nelson acquired sole ownership in 1924.

e In 1959, Nelson passed the house to four daughters, but retained life
interest for himself and Lessie. The lot contained two houses: the Nelson
residence, and a house rented to Walter Pace.

Source: Deed Book/NN/351, RR/85, PP1/412

5/23/1970 Notes:

From the Nelson daughters to Johnnie Kemp

Source: Deed Book/AA2/482-3

The Sam Nelson family

houses in 1970.

Source: Ancestry.com link

e Sam and Lula were married in 1906; they bought this house in 1912.

e They were apart by 1920. Sam and Lessie Milner were married in 1921.

e Sam remained here after the divorce. He and Lessie lived here for the rest of their lives.

e By 1959, they had built a second house on the lot which was used as rental property.

e Sam gave a remainder interest in the property to his daughters in 1959; the daughters sold the

e Sam was a house carpenter. Lessie was a cook for the James M Wooten family.
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129 Buford Circle
Part of the tract acquired by M W Cox in 1909.

e From F C Cox to Cennella Thompkins in 1916
e In 1917, Thompkins extends her lot northward
Notes:
iﬁié}i;i} e Lot with house (50’ N/S x 150’ E/W) in 1916. Known as the Will Brooks house.
e The 1917 deeds convey vacant land adjoining her lot; the resulting lot is now
125’ N/S by 150” E/W.
Source: Deed Book/00/98, 00/408 (2)
e From Cenella Thompkins Carter (half interest) to Angeline Frazier in 1921
4/11/1921, e From Frazier and Carter to Mary Harvey in 1962
7/11/1962 Notes: Frazier was living on the lot in 1962
Source: Deed Book/NN1/115-6, S51/438

e Cennella Thompkins also owned the lot to the east (2587 Fountain Bridge Rd) from 1913 to 1959.
It does not appear that she built on it.

e The original house was replaced in 1966.

e Thelotis still registered to Mary Harvey.

Cennella Thompkins Carter

Mary Frazier

e Very little information can be found on Cennella Thompkins Carter or Angeline Frazier. They were
likely the daughters of Emma Thompkins, who appears to have lived in this house from 1920 until
at least 1940.

e In 1940, the house was occupied by Thompkins and her daughter, Angeline Frazier (link). Frazier
was a teacher.

e Angeline Frazier still occupied the house in 1962.

Source: Ancestry.com link

155 Buford Circle
Part of the tract acquired by M W Cox in 1909.
e From F C Cox to Will Bell in 1918
e From Bell’s estate to Roosevelt Bell in 1953
Notes: Lot with house (75’ N/S x 150’ E/W). The SE corner of this lot is the SW
corner of the Reddick lot. Known as the Harvey Smoke house in 1918.
Source: Deed Book/00/451, JJ1/103,
e Acquired by Bertha Hatten (Deed not located)
e From Bertha Hatten to Bennie Lee Hatten in 1979
8/10/1979 Notes: Bertha Hatten retained a life interest; Bennie Lee Hatten received a
remainder interest. Known as the home of Jessie Hatten.
Source: Deed Book/TT2/47-8
Later Deeds: VV2/134
Will Bell family
Will Bell appears to have used this as rental property. Refer to 3370 Fountain Bridge Rd for
information on the family.

1/11/1918,
1/31/1953
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Buford St

Buford St does not follow the grid pattern typical of Shellman’s streets, running from northeast to
southwest at a 24-degree angle. Buford was the name given to the area of Randolph County settled
by James and Hester Martin in 1831 (Lot/5/137). This suggests that Buford St was part of an old road,
perhaps from Brooksville in northern Randolph County, to the area settled by the Martins. If so, the
section of the road north of the railroad was rerouted based on later development of Shellman.

Censuses of Buford St

Plats of Buford St

e 1900 link e Plat Book/2/242 (1962)
e 1910 link, link e Plat Book/4/25 (1969)
e 1920 link e Plat Book/5/212 (1981)
e 1930 link e Plat Book/6/217 (1988)
e 1940 link e Plat Book/7/12 (1990)
e 1950 link e Plat Book/11/184 (2011)
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Buford St (East Side)

290 Buford St

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e Assigned to Oscar A and R S Crittenden in the division of Crittenden assets in
1904

e In 1961, O A Crittenden and R C Bell each had a half-interest

e By descent to Marianna Crittenden & Halcyon Bell

Notes:

e This vacant lot was assembled from two parcels in 1904. The combined
trapezoidal lot filled the triangle formed by Buford St and Randolph St. (14’ E/W
at top, 45’ E/W at the bottom; 60’ along the sides). Bounded south by the

5/17/1904
L Crittenden shop lot.

e Atwo-story brick building was erected which filled the entire lot. A deed for the
lot to the south reveals that the building has been erected by 1909, and it was
occupied by the Knighton Grocery Store.

e In 1961, described as “store building with barber shop in front and grocery store
in back.”

Source: Deed Book/JJ/155 (with plat), JJ/156 (with plat), LL/635, S51/185-6, YY2/858-

9

From Halcyon A Bell & Marianna Crittenden to J W Sammons, Jr.

11/9/1982 Notes: Bounded south by the property of Mrs. Anna Francis Kenney Belisle.

Described as, “store building with barber shop in front and grocery store in back.”
Source: Deed Book/YY2/860-1

e |Later deeds:

RR4/26 (Tract #1), KK5/349

e The first floor of this building is separated into two stores.
o The front store was occupied by a barber shop by 1916 (Deed Book/QQ/433). In the
1950s and 1960s, Roy Parham operated a barber shop here.
o The rear store was initially occupied by the Knighton Grocery Store. Later it was occupied
by the Jernigan Grocery Store.
e The second floor was occupied by the telephone exchange. The first exchange came to Shellman
shortly after 1900; it is possible that the exchange was located here when the building was
erected (link). It was definitely there in 1916 (Deed Book/QQ/433).
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278 Buford St

Deeds for adjacent lots designate this lot as a “Crittenden
Brothers shop lot” in 1904. However, it appears to be

vacant until 1909. Source: Deed Book/JJ/155 (plat), JI/156
(plat)

12/13/1909 storehouse lot.

From the Crittenden Brothers to R F Crittenden

Notes:

e Bounded north by the Knighton Grocery Store; south by the Planters warehouse
lot and the McGlaun storehouse lot; west by Buford St and the C J Greene

e A newspaper article in 1910 reveals that “the R F Crittenden Company has let the
contract for three modern brick stores on the vacant lot at the rear of the
Knighton Grocery Company.” (link)

Source: Deed Book/LL/635

12/31/1975 Notes: Trapezoidal lot with improvements (north: 47’; east: 106’; south: 122’; west:

e Descended to Anna Belle Simpson Kenney
e From the Kenney to her heir, Anna Francis Kenney Belisle, in 1975

95’)
Source: Deed Book/LL2/66-7 (Tract #4),

Later deeds: 7Z2/94, RR4/26-7

Shellman Drug Co.

The northernmost two of these three stores was occupied by the Shellman Drug Co. for many

years.

The company began by 1902; the date in which it

moved to this building is uncertain. For more Prompt Service Phone 66
information, refer to 69 W Railroad St. '
The newspaper ad at right was from 1924 (link).

The Dozier family operated drugstores in Shellman %;Z ) f

for many years. hen 1n hel Iman

o Louis Dozier operated the Shellman Drug Co,
at 69 W Railroad St by 1905 and until 1910.

DON'T FORGET THE

o Bledsoe Dozier, from Dawson, worked with S]]C”lﬂ'dl] Phal‘m‘dCY
the pharmacy of Louis Dozier in LaGrange. In HEADQUARTERS FOR
1925, Bledsoe returned to Dawson to work Drugs - Toilet Goods - Stationery
with the Dozier Pharmacy there (link). Tobaccos - Drinks - Candies

o The Doziers were operating a drugstore in
Shellman, probably in the 1920s, and
certainly in the 1930s. It was located in space rented from Mrs. A R Kenney, likely here at
278 Buford St. Bledsoe Dozier was killed in an automobile accident in 1936; he was
“owner of the Dozier drug store at Shellman” at the time (link).
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e Elmer Cromartie purchased the stock of the Dozier Drugstore from Dozier’s estate (Deed Book
XX/560). He was proprietor of the drugstore until at least 1940 (link).

e In 1947, A (Possum) Gill of Ellaville purchased the business from Dr. J B Cherry of Lumpkin.He
moved to Shellman and operated a Rexall pharmacy (with lunch counter) until around 1970 (link).

e For information on the Gill family, refer to 56 W Phelps St.

274 Buford St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

12/22/1881,
8/31/1882,
11/27/1884

e From Crittenden Brothers to John M Anthony in 1881

e From Anthony back to the Crittenden Brothers in 1882 and 1884

Notes:

e Half-acre lot (105’ N/S x 210’ E/W). The NW corner of the lot is about 100 feet
south of the B K Arthur storehouse.

o Anthony bought this lot in 1881 and built a blacksmith shop and a wood shop.
He also bought a house lot (3338 Pearl St) in the same deed.

e |n 1882, Anthony sold the eastern half of the lot back to the Crittenden Brothers
(105’ square).

e In 1884, Anthony sold the western half (105’) of the lot back to the Crittenden
Brothers. This sale included the two shops.

Source: Deed Book/P/614, AA/110, AA/411

e Anthony’s lot was absorbed into the Crittenden holdings. The eastern half became the site of the
Clark Livery Stables (See 50 Randolph St).

e The blacksmith shop and wood shop are almost certainly those shown in the 1902 map. This
places them here between Buford St and Randolph St, just north of the Payne (later Saxon)
warehouse. It suggests they were still in operation in 1902. Old deeds refer to this as the
“Crittenden shop lot”.

e The two shops were replaced when the Crittendens built their brick stores along Buford St in 1910
(See 278 Buford St).
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270 Buford St

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in
1871.

From J W Jones to George W Schramm

Notes: Vacant lot (12’ x 14’). This is the NW corner of the Jones residence and

garden. Bounded north by the Schramm lot; west by Buford St. There is also an

4/5/1886 illegible reference to J A Payne property. This deed is confusing, but it is likely that
this is when Schramm purchased the lot on which he built his shoe shop, which is
located here by the 1902 map.

Source: Deed Book/CC/126

From Crittenden Brothers to George W Schramm

Notes:

e Trapezoidal lot (north: 11.5’; east: 30’; south: 27’; west: 35’). Bounded on the
east by Crittenden Brothers’ shop lot.

e This unusual shape arises from the fact that Buford St runs at a 24-degree angle

8/9/1891 , b
from northwest to southeast. Due to the unusual shape, a plat was included in
the deed.

e A deed for the lot to the south reveals that Schramm operated a shoe shop here
in 1892.

Source: Deed Book/CC/590

e From George W Schramm to Mrs. Emma Sandlin in 1900

3/8/1900, e From Sandlin to C J Greene in 1900
9/29/1900 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/GG/563, GG/609

From CJ Greene to Crittenden Brothers

Notes:

e Trapezoidal lot, North: 11’; East: 10’; South: 16.5’; West: 11.5’. Begins at NW
corner of Greene’s brick store.

e This deed gives the Crittendens the vacant land north of Greene’s store (137.5
square feet).

R e The result of the deed is that Greens owns a lot with 23.5’ of frontage on Buford
St.

e Greene received land (275 square feet) in return, but it is not identified. Given
the dimensions of the current lot, it seems that Greene received land to the east
of his store that allowed him to expand eastward.

Source: Deed Book/NN/1
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&
e From E H Greene & Jewette Green McGlaun to W C Franklin in 1945
e From Franklin’s estate to his niece in 1962
2/23/1945, ) el
4/18/1962 Notes: Franklin already operated a grocery store here when he bought the building

in 1945. See 71 W Phelps St for information on the Franklin family.
Source: Deed Book/DD1/201, VV1/236

Later deeds: WW1/382-3, XX1/18, NN2/699, EE3/294-5, DD4/33, GG5/141-2, CC5/143-4

The deeds reveal that C J Greene rented his store:

e In 1909, to A J Knighton. Knighton soon moved his store to the new building built by the
Crittendens at 290 Buford St.

e 1In1916,to WY Johnson

e Laterto W C Franklin
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254 Buford St

Part of the property purchased by J A Payne around 1884 (Deed not located).

e Acquired by J A Payne around 1884 (Deed not located).

e From Payne’s widow, Mrs. S J Payne, to the Shellman Cooperative Investment
Co. in 1892

Notes:

e Trapezoidal lot (north: 110’; east: 120’; south: 209’ west: 130’). Bounded on
northwest corner by Schramm shoe shop, east by Payne Gin St, west by Buford
St.

e This deed conveyed both 254 Buford St and 260 Buford St. The deed also
conveyed a 40’ strip on the east side of Dr. G L Clark’s residence lot on Calhoun
St.

e Payne died in 1888; the lot was sold from his estate for S600 in 1892, suggesting
that it had improvements. This is supported by a newspaper article referring to
this as “the old warehouse lot of Mrs. S J Payne”. This original warehouse was
either replaced by, or incorporated within, the new cotton warehouse built here
in 1892 (see below).

Source: Deed Book/EE/634 (with plat)

e The Shellman Cooperative Investment Co. was formed in 1893 (link, link). W T Jay was President.
No deeds have been found for their purchase of any property.

e A newspaper article reports that a cotton
warehouse was built here in 1892 (link). Later
deeds for adjacent lots reveal that the
warehouse was known as the Planters
Warehouse. That name had earlier been used
by the warehouse of David Ferguson & W J
Oliver on Arthur St.

e A 1902 map identifies this as the “Saxon Cotton
Warehouse”, referring to W T Saxon (see 210
Buford St). The map shows the warehouse
having a wedge shape. The building was later
partitioned to house different businesses.

Acquired by J R & C W Curry (Deed not located)

Notes: The Curry family owned this property, perhaps as early as 1909. During this time, they

operated two separate businesses:

e Northern portion: W R Curry Brick Store

e Southern portion: J R Curry Horse & Mule Exchange.

Northern portion: W R Curry Brick Store

o

7/9/1892

Sarxarr
Cottarr Wers fouse.

T e S

GroRG/I4 ST (CHANG

No information
has been found
on this store
other than the
1950 deed selling
it to James
Bethea. It is
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presumably the northern section of the Planters Warehouse built in 1892.

Northern portion: W R Curry Brick Store
From J R & C W Curry to James Bethea
Notes:

Source: Deed Book/GG1/328, GG1/328-9 (mortgage)

Southern portion: J R Curry Horse & Mule Exchange
° This building is very likely southern section of
the Planters Warehouse built in 1892.

° The building then housed the J R Curry Horse
& Mule Exchange until 1950.

° Curry had a stable across the street at 5
Arthur St.

4/29/1950

Southern portion

From J R & C W Curry to James Bethea

Notes:

Source: Deed Book/GG1/153, GG1/153-4 (mortgage)

e In 1950, James Bethea reunited the old Planters E:
Warehouse tract.

e James Bethea was operating the Bethea Tractor &
Implement Co, by January, 1949, when he was listed
as a dealer of Cockshutt tractors.

e The business was presumably located here on
Buford St, with Bethea leasing the buildings.

* In 1950, James Bethea purchased both parcels of the . -G e Tracor . proud owner of a Massey Harrs No.
old Planters Warehouse tract. %;;‘h:i%:f;m‘i; "Pc“‘”’d;‘;’.,hl"d: £ T

e Inthe 1950s, the business was a Massey Ferguson

farm equipment dealership and shop (ad at right, Bethea Tractor CO. Featu res

1/2/1950

PROUD OF MASSEY-HARRIS LINE

link). Combplete Massey-Harris Line
From James Bethea to Calvin Goddard
8/9/1973 Notes:
Source: Deed Book/GG2/648-9, GG2/650-2

Later deeds: MM2/589
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250 Buford St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the property purchased by J A Payne around
1884 (Deed not located).

From S J Murrow, widow of J A Payne, to the Crittenden Brothers
1/20/1904 Notes: Lot with house.
Source: Deed Book/RR/68

e Adeed for the lot to the south (13 Church St) refers to this as Mrs. S J Payne’s lot in 1904, and the
lot of C P Slappey in 1905. Slappey’s wife was a Crittenden.

e The 1900 census places the C P Slappey family in a rented house in this part of town, but it does
not appear to be this house.

e By 1910, the Slappeys had moved to W Phelps St.

e A 1913 deed for the lot to the south (13 Church St) reveals that | J Lunsford lived here.

From R S Crittenden to H O Crittenden

Notes: 1/8 interest in lot (fraction of an acre) with houses. Bounded NE by Planters

1/2/1913 warehouse land, south by Mrs. E M Crittenden and Mrs. M A Young, west by Buford

St. Known as the Slappey House.

Source: Deed Book/NN/333

e Acquired by J R Curry (Deed not located). 3 b Ciy Buddy Clerk
e Curry used the building as his office for the agri-businesses he operated in e E
this vicinity. AUCTION
e The J R Curry Horse & Mule Exchange was located at 254 Buford St until he SALE
sold it in 1950.

CURRY'S BARN

e He continued to sell mules and horses, and cattle and hogs as well, across the
Sheliman, Ga.

street at 5 Arthur St. The ad at right was published in 1952 (link).
BRING YOUR HORSES AND

e He also sold farm supplies and feed from this complex. MULES. 'L GET WHAT
THEY'RE WORTH. SOME
CATTLE AND REGISTERED
DUROCK MALE AND FE-
MALE HOGS. 30 HEAD
GOOD BLACK CATTLE
SOME COWS AND CALVES

SHELLMAN, GA.
2:00 P.M.
THIS SATURDAY
FEB. 16th

Later deeds: 0012/510-2 (Tract #9), Plat Book/4/25 (1969)
Information on the C P Slappey family can be found at 3436 Pearl St.
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210 Buford St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Joseph B Payne Tract purchased in 1882.

1/12/1885

From J B Payne to W A Billingslea

Notes: one-acre lot. 194’ of frontage on Church St to the north, adjoining the Baptist
Church on the east, and Buford St to the west.

Source: Deed Book/AA/787

3/3/1896

From the estate of W A Billingslea to W T Saxon
Notes: Now with a house, occupied by Saxon.
Source: Deed Book/FF/9

1/31/1901

From W T Saxon to R F Watson
Notes: Occupied by W S Arrington at the time of the sale.
Source: Deed Book/HH/89

1/2/1903

From R F Watson to W L Allen
Notes: Occupied by W L Allen at the time of the sale.
Source: Deed Book/JJ/352

5/9/1905

From W L Allen to the Parsonage Committee, Methodist Church South, Shellman
Circuit

Notes: Allen sold his residence for use as a parsonage for Methodist pastors of the
Shellman Circuit. Pastors of the Shellman Methodist Church were housed in a
different parsonage.

Source: Deed Book/11/442

2/20/1913,
3/10/1913

e From the Parsonage Committee, Methodist Church South, Shellman Circuit to
the Sheffield Brothers in February 1913

e From the Sheffield Brothers to H R Faircloth in March 1913

Notes: Known as the old Shellman Circuit Methodist Parsonage

Source: Deed Book/MM/323, MM/390-1 (mortgage), NN/340, QQ/198 (mortgage

release)

10/29/1960

From A B Branan to J E Bethea

Notes: Absorbed into the Shellman Gin lot and used as a tenant house before being
demolished.

Source: Deed Book/RR1/33

Later deeds: JJ2/596-7 (Parcel #1), AA3/244 (Tract #2)

The William Alexander Billingslea family

e Billingslea was from Taliaferro County, Ga. After serving in the Civil War, he married Lucy Ann Hay
in Randolph County in 1872.

e The family lived in Dawson and Albany before buying this lot in 1885. A newspaper article reports
that they built the house shortly afterwards (link).

e In 1880, Billingslea was a farmer. The frequent moves suggest he changed professions.

e Billingslea died only seven months after buying this lot. He had already moved here, because his
will was probated in Randolph County, but not until 1895. His widow moved to Albany to be near
her children; she died in 1934.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The William Thomas Saxon family

e Saxon was from Calhoun County, the son of Rev. Samuel and Nancy Saxon. After losing his leg in
the Civil War, he returned to Calhoun County.
e No longer able to farm, Saxon attended school to become a teacher.
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Source: Ancestry.com link, Martin and Allied Families Page 128

In 1872, he married Jane Curry. They lived on the farm in Calhoun County. She died in 1881; he
married her sister, Addie Curry, in 1882.

They moved to Shellman in 1892, and were living in this house when they bought it in 1896. The
Saxons did not live in this house for long; they were renting it when they sold it in 1901.

Saxon also owned the house across the street (213 Buford St) for an unknown period, and it is
thought that they lived there for a time also.

In the 1900 census, Saxon was a “warehouseman”; in 1902, he operated the cotton warehouse at
254 Buford St. Later he was tax receiver.

In 1909, he was the center of a brouhaha. He opened a “near beer stand” in Shellman (link). The
Town Charter was soon amended to state that the prohibition applied to all beverages with an
alcoholic content of % of 1% or more (link). Saxon challenged, and was granted an injunction by a
lower court, but the Georgia Supreme Court upheld the ordinance in 1910; Shellman remained
dry (link).

The Shellman Sun reported that local opinion was 9-1 against Saxon, a report somewhat at odds
with the fact that Saxon did a brisk business (link); that may have been the reason he moved to
Parrott in 1911. The Saxons lived with their daughters in Parrott and Richland until their deaths.
He died in 1924 (obituary); she died in 1928.

The Walter Lee Allen family

Information on the Allen family can be found at 160 W Phelps St.

The Horace Rufus Faircloth family

Source: Ancestry.com link

Horace Faircloth was from Calhoun Co. He married Mary Alice Wall (daughter of Jeff Wall) in
1904.

The Faircloths lived on their farm south of Shellman until buying this house in 1913.

After moving to Shellman, Faircloth worked as a clerk, first in a grocery store, and later in a
hardware store.

The Faircloths lived in this house as late as 1933 (link); by 1940, they were living with the family of
their daughter, Susie (Mrs. Alton) Branan on Phelps St.

Horace died in 1949. The Branans moved to Cordele, but Mary Faircloth remained in Shellman.
She returned to Buford St, and very possibly to this house, supporting herself as a seamstress. She
died in 1975.
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200 Buford St at Church St (Fictitious street number)
: ¥¥ eThe photo

above left of the
Shellman Gin was
published in The
Atlanta
Constitution in
1903.

eThe photo
above right is

R from around

BN i 2015.

4/1/1904,
1/2/1907,
4/14/1919, Notes:

4/27/1922, .
3/13/1926
[ ]

Acquired by W R Terry (Deed not located)

From the Terry family to the Shellman Gin Co. in 1904
From O H Jordan to the Shellman Gin Co. in 1907

From the Shellman Gin Co. to the Shellman Oil Co.in 1919
From the Shellman Qil Co. to a trustee in 1922

From the trustee back to Shellman Gin Co. in 1926

The transactions in 1904 and 1907 add to the tract on which the gin already sits.;
no deed transferring the gin has been located.

The 1919 deed transfers the gin to the Shellman Qil Co.

The 1922 deeds convey the gin to a trustee; presumably the firm is bankrupt.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/167, LL/78, PP/7, QQ/186-7, QQ/190, QQ/233, VV/219,
VV/220 (mortgage)

From the Shellman Gin Co. to W R Curry
7/16/1945 Notes: Two acres and the gin machinery.
Source: Deed Book/DD1/225

The Shellman Gin Co.

e The first deeds in
that transfer the
company, the tra

1915 was decima

e Cotton gins existed in this area of Shellman by 1877. J B Payne and the Crittenden Brothers were
among the early operators.

e Agin existed on this lot in 1903, described in a newspaper article as “J W Oliver & Son’s Gin” (See
picture above, link).

the name of the Shellman Gin Co. appear in 1904, though none can be found
Oliver gin to Shellman Gin Co. Since Oliver was the primary owner of the
nsfer may have been a corporate action without a deed being recorded.

e The boll weevil came into Texas from Mexico in 1892. It gradually spread into Georgia, and by

ting the cotton crop around Shellman.

e In 1919, the gin was transferred by corporate action to the Shellman Qil Co.; W J Oliver was the
major stockholder of both corporations.
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e The newspaper advertisement at right was published
in 1921, after the gin had been transferred to
Shellman Qil Co. (link).

e In 1922, the gin was transferred to a trustee;
presumably the firm was bankrupt. However, it was
not dissolved; the trustee returned the property to
the Shellman Gin Co. in 1926.

e In 1950, the gin was sold to W R Curry. By 1950, J R
Curry had become sole shareowner.

e In 1950, the gin was sold to James Bethea.

MR. FARMER

Our GINNERY is in first clase shape and will be able to take
care, promptly, all the cotton brought to us. We thank every
one of our customers for previous patronage and still want
your business

Ginning, including bagging and ties, $3.75 for 500 pound

bale.

We will pay you the cash for your cotton seed at the high-
est market price.
SHELLMAN OIL CO.
SHELLMAN, GA

Notes:
8/29/1950 e Bethea acquired the gin in 1950.

side of Buford St.

e From Shellman Gin Co. to James E Bethea in 1950
e From the estate of Ethel Smith to James Bethea in 1967

e In 1967, Bethea expanded the gin lot by adding residential lots on the eastern

Source: Deed Book/GG1/478, 111/99-100 (mortgage), XX1/537

(mortgage), PP2/709

e From James E Bethea to James Maynard Dunn in 1972 and 1973

3/6/1972, e From Dunn to Dunn’s Cotton Gin in 1975
3/30/1973, Notes: In 1974, Dunn was selected “National Ginner of the Year” (link)
1/1/1975 Source: Deed Book/EE2/239-40, EE2/241-3 (mortgage), GG2/623, LL2/70

Later Deeds: AA3/245
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140 Buford St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e Acquired by Simeon Suggs (Deed not located)

e From Simeon Suggs to C W Martin in 1890

5/12/1890 Notes: Half-acre trapezoidal lot (north: 93’; east: 138’; south: 154’; west: 153’).

Bounded west by Buford St; north by the road to Leslie & Swords Gin.

Source: Deed Book/HH/628

From C W Martin to John Smith

Notes: Trapezoidal lot with house (north: 144’; east: 100’; south: 154’; west: 100’).

12/5/1904 The Smiths bought the house they were renting from Martin. This seems to be the

house that Martin bought from Smith’s father-in-law in 1890.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/365

From J W Wall to John Smith

Notes: Smith extended his lots to the south, adding 270’ of frontage on Buford St; no

12/4/1919 improvements mentioned. Bounded south by L Burks. The Smiths may have built

rental houses on this tract.

Source: Deed Book/PP/221-2

From the Smith estate to James Bethea

11/10/1967 Notes: This lot was absorbed into the gin property (See

Source: Deed Book/XX1/537 (Tract #1)

The Simeon Suggs family

No information can be found on Suggs.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The John Thomas Smith family

e John Smith was from Shellman, the son of Isham Smith. He married Ethel Suggs in 1902.

e The Smiths were already living in this house on Buford St when they purchased it in 1904.They
remained here until John Smith died in 1953. Ethel then moved to 91 John Smith St.

e Smith was a self-employed drayman. The Smiths also owned rental property on Buford St and
John Smith St.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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130 Buford St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the tract assembled by John & Ethel Smith (See
140 Buford St)

e XL el

5/6/1961

From Ethel Smith to General J and Jeanette Johnson

Notes: 50’ N/S x 75’ E/W. The house is occupied by the Johnsons at the time of the
deed.

Source: Deed Book/RR1/353

Only one deed for this house can be located. The house is still in the family today.
Tax records say the house was built in 1920

No information can be found on the Johnson family.

Johnson Tract, Buford St

Part of the Joseph B Payne Tract purchased in 1882 (See Joseph B Payne Tract).

From J B Payne to Sallie Johnson
Notes: 2-acre vacant lot. Bounded south by Lot 5/270; west by Buford St. This tract
extends eastward almost to the line of the Douglass School. The northern boundary

e se is a fence line, but the deed seems to convey four present-day lots; three facing on
Buford St (#120, #106, and #100) and #12 Bethea St.
Source: Deed Book/AA/693
From the estate of Joe Johnson to H O Crittenden

10/5/1913 Notes: The description is confusing, but the lot consists of the original tract less the

lots sold during the Johnsons’ lifetimes.
Source: Deed Book/MM/373-4

The Sallie and Joe Johnson family

Note: Tracing the history of the Johnsons was difficult due to the commonality of their names and the
fact that they were born and married while enslaved.

Joe Johnson was from Randolph County. He married Sallie (last name unknown) in 1864.

The Johnsons bought this lot on Buford St in 1885 and lived here in 1900. Source: 1900 census link
Sallie Johnson died in the early 1900s. In 1906, Joe married Mat (last name unknown, but perhaps
Winn). They lived here on Buford St in 1910. Source: 1910 census link

In 1878, Joe Johnson was employed by the Crittenden Brothers. By 1900, he was farming his own
land.

Joe Johnson died in 1913. The administrator of his estate, H O Crittenden, purchased all of this
tract at the ensuing sheriff’s sale.

Source: Ancestry.com link, link
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120 Buford St

e Part of the 2-acre tract purchased by Sallie Johnson
from J B Payne in 1885 (See Johnson Tract)

e Thelotinthe 1923 deed is today split into two lots:
120 Buford St and 12 Bethea St.

Acquired by S W Winn (Deed not located)
Notes: This mortgage covers a ¥%-acre lot with two houses (120 Buford St and 12

1/20/1923 Bethea St). It appears that Mat Winn moved into this house in 1913, when here her
son S W (Cince) Winn acquired 12 Bethea St.
Source: Deed Book/QQ/386 (mortgage)
e By 1923, the lot has been divided. The western quarter-acre has been acquired
by T E Allen (Deed not located).
5/20/1944, e FromT E Allen to Fannie Lee Ealy in 1944.
2/25/2005 e Sold from Ealy’s estate in 2005

Notes: Trapezoidal lot with 2-room house. North: 68’, east: 85’, south: 83’, west: 85’.
In the SE corner of Buford St and John Smith St. Known as the Mat Winn home place.
Source: Deed Book/CC1/533, FF9/191-3, Plat Book/6/217 (1988)

e Tax records say the house was built in 1906.
e Forinformation on the Winn families, refer to 12 Bethea St.

The Rogers Shamball Ealy family

in 2001.

e Roger Ealy was from Shellman, the son of Josh & Rosa Ealy (See 36 Short St). He and Fannie Lee
were married in the 1930s.
e The Ealys bought this house in 1944. They remained here until their deaths; his in 1972 and hers

e Ealy worked for different retail stores in Shellman over the years.
Source: Ancestry.com link, link
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106 Buford St

e Part of the 2-acre tract purchased by Sallie Johnson
from J B Payne in 1885 (See Johnson Tract)

e Part of the Crittenden Ginnery Tract (See 40 Bethea
St)

e From H O Crittenden to James M Wooten in 1936

e From Wooten to Bonnie Belle Crumley in 1937

Notes: Half-acre trapezoidal lot with house (north: 171’; east: 90’; south: 204’; west:

117’ along Buford St). Known as the Odum lot or the Joe Johnson lot.

Source: Deed Book/YY/27,YY27-8,YY/34, YY/50, HH2/351 (mortgage release)

From James Crumley to Jimmy & Millie Marie Allen

Source: Deed Book/AA3/232-3

e Later deeds: AA3/235-7, UU3/170-3 (Tract #2), UU3/174-6 (Tract #2), Plat Book/6/217 (1988)

e Tax records say the house was built in 1890.

The Paul Crumley family

e Paul Crumley was from Benevolence. He married Bonnie Belle Slocomb in 1913.

e Paul was a farm laborer, despite having lost an arm by 1918.

e The Crumleys lived on a farm south of Shellman until moving to this house in 1937.

e Bonnie died in 1940. There is no further record of Paul after the 1940 census.

e In 1950, this house appears to have been occupied by the Tom Newkirk family, who were related
to the Slocombs.

e In 1982, this house was sold by the Crumley’s oldest son, James Crumley.

Source: Ancestry.com link

12/28/1936,
1/2/1937

7/23/1982
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100 Buford St

Part of the 2-acre tract purchased by Sallie Johnson from J B Payne in 1885 (See Johnson Tract)

12/12/1887

From Sallie Johnson to Ben Shed

Notes: %-acre vacant lot (63’ N/S x 180’ E/W). Bounded north and west by Sallie
Johnson; south by Martin Tinsley.

Source: Deed Book/EE/305

12/18/1911 now occupied by Tom Jones.

From Ben Shed to E C McCurdy
Notes:
e Quarter-acre lot. Bounded north and east by Sallie Johnson; south by Tinsley lot

e The 1900 census reveals that Shed owned a house in this area of Buford St in
1900. The Sheds married in late 1899.
Source: Deed Book/NN/221 (Tract #1)

3/31/1947 Notes: Lot with house. Bounded north by Bonnie Belle Crumley; south by Virginia

e From Virginia Jones to James & Clemietee Green in 1947
e Sold from Clemietee Green’s estate in 1993

Jones. Known as the Ben Shed Place.
Source: Deed Book/EE1/195-6, EE1/196 (mortgage)

Later Deeds: DD2/175 (Tract #1), HH5/44

The Ben Shed family

Source: Ancestry.com link, link

Ben and Mattie Shed were married in 1899.

They lived here in the 1900 census. They sold the house in 1911. In 1920, they lived at 3436
Fountain Bridge Rd.

Ben owned and operated a blacksmith shop in Shellman. He also bought and sold lots in this area.
Ben died in 1923 (link). By 1935, Mattie was living in Jacksonville with the family of her daughter,
Roger (Mrs. Henry) Jamison.

Mattie sold the house on Fountain Bridge Rd in 1956. She died in 1965.

The James Green family

Source: Ancestry.com link

James Green was from Ft. Gaines, the son of Samuel & Addie Green. The family soon moved to
Randolph County, where he and Clemietee Gilbert were married.

The Greens rented a house on Fountain Bridge Rd before buying this house in 1947.

Green worked at the planing mill in 1950.

The Greens remained here until their deaths; his in 1970 and hers in 1991.

84 Buford St

Part of a 7/8-acre lot sold by the Crittenden family in 1885. The lot includes four present-day lots: 84
Buford St, 74 Buford St, 66 Buford St, and 58 Buford St (See 74 Buford St)

6/11/1958 by 1950; it is not mapped. This deed confirms that Virginia Jones lived on the lot to

From Virginia Jones to Brunell Logue Griffin
Notes: Vacant lot with 65’ of frontage on Buford St. No house was built on this lot

the south.
Source: Deed Book/001/401
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https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=ben_shed&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1861&count=50
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74 Buford St

Part of a 7/8-acre lot sold by the Crittenden family in
1885. The lot includes four present-day lots: 84 Buford St,
74 Buford St, 66 Buford St, and 58 Buford St.

From Crittenden family to William Scandrett
Notes: 7/8 acres. Bounded north by Joe Johnson lot; east by Crittenden Brothers;
south by street; west by public road from Ward to Goff’s Mill. Tax records say the

Giag Lot house was built in 1891, but it is likely that Scandrett built the house for his new
family around the time he bought the lot.
Source: Deed Book/AA/793
e From Scandrett to | A & C W Martin in 1896
e From|A & CW Martin to Alice Hawk in 1898
Notes: Half-acre lot with house. Known as the Martin Tinsley lot in 1898.
o The Martins likely rented the Scandrett house to Tinsley. They may also have
2/21/1896, ) ) -l )
10/26/1898 built a second house, based on the increase in price from $130 in 1896 to $275

in 1898.

o The Hawks lived on a farm near Shellman in the 1900 census; it appears they
used this house as rental property.

Source: Deed Book/EE/470, GG/271

From Calton Hawk (widower and sole heir of Alice Hawk) to Ben Shed

1/20/1902 Notes: Known as the Martin Tinsley lot.

Source: Deed Book/HH/264

From Ben Shed to Tom Jones

Notes: Bounded north by Ben Shed; east by Crittenden brothers; south by street;

o west by public road to Goff’s Mill. This lot contained two houses.
Source: Deed Book/JJ/423
e From Thomas Jones to R G McCurdy in 1914
e  From McCurdy back to Jones in 1917
e From Jones to E C McCurdy in 1917
e From Alma Haddock McCurdy to Thomas & Virginia Jones in 1945
6/2/1914, Notes: The deeds mortgage three houses:
1/3/1917, e This house on Buford St
10/9/1945 e Two lots and houses on John Smith St. One is #49; the other is unclear.

e Jones sold/mortgaged the houses to R G McCurdy in 1914, which he paid in
1917. He immediately sold/mortgaged the houses to E C McCurdy, brother of R
G McCurdy. That mortgage was paid in 1945.

Source: Deed Book/NN/395 (mortgage), 00/162 (mortgage quitclaim), VV/179-80,

DD1/268
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7/24/1967 Notes:

From Robert & Lula Jones to John Mercer Wooten

Source: Deed Book/YY1/47, Plat Book/2/242 (1962)

Later deeds: NN2/376, AA3/669

William M Scandrett family

Source: Ancestry.com link

William Scandrett was from Butler. He moved to Shellman between 1880-84. He and Lula
Montfort were married in Butler in 1885 (link).

Before his marriage, Scandrett briefly owned the lot across the street (75 Buford St). He bought
this lot a few months after his marriage and likely built the house here. He sold it in 1896.

The family moved to Cordele, then Adel, and then to Jennings, FL. He died there in 1912 (notice,
obituary). Lula moved back to Cordele and died in Miami in 1940.

After leaving Shellman, Scandrett operated sawmills in Cordele and Jennings. There is no record
of his occupation in Shellman. He owned 44 Randolph St in 1888, which by 1893 was the site of a
blacksmith shop.He also briefly owned farmland west of town.

The Thomas J (Tom) Jones family

Source: Ancestry.com link

Early details of the lives of Tom Jones and Virginia Jenkins cannot be located. They were married
in Randolph County in 1892.

The Joneses lived on Pearl St in 1900, before buying this lot in 1905. The house was probably
already here, being used as rental property.

Tom Jones was a farmer. The Joneses also owned several rental houses in this area of Shellman.
After Tom’s death, Virginia operated a boarding house. Source: 1950 census link

They remained he until their deaths; his in the 1940s and hers in 1962.

The Joneses owned several rental houses in this area of Shellman.

66 Buford St

Part of a 7/8-acre lot sold by the Crittenden family in 1885. The lot includes four present-day lots: 84
Buford St, 74 Buford St, 66 Buford St, and 58 Buford St (See 74 Buford St)

2/15/1958,
1/25/2017

e From Virginia Jones to Nathan Harvey in 1958

e Sold by Harvey’s widow, Mildred Harvey, in 2017

Notes: The 1958 deed conveys the lot that is present-day 66 Buford St (66" of
frontage on Buford St). It appears to be vacant. The first known house on this lot
was built in 1958; it is not mapped.

Source: Deed Book/001/239, 001/257 (mortgage), FF12/392, 1920 census link, Plat
Book/5/212 (1981)
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https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn88054004/1885-04-23/ed-1/seq-2/#date1=01%2F01%2F1870&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F1945&words=Payne+ward+Ward+warehouse&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=1&proxdistance=5&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=ward+shellman&proxtext=payne+warehouse&andtext=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=1
https://www.newspapers.com/image/889696456/?article=7bece67e-f44b-48a1-83d8-902f67f408ad&focus=0.03463817,0.3532673,0.2099021,0.4658933&xid=3355
https://www.newspapers.com/image/889696589/?article=ad98e225-06e5-4ac5-a23b-95a7536241c9&focus=0.5114577,0.50419515,0.667902,0.91223156&xid=3355
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=William+M_Scandrett&birth=1857_butler-taylor-georgia-usa_19558&death=1912_jennings-hamilton-florida-usa_16578&child=Richard+Montfort_SCANDRETT&child2=Marie+Clifford_Scandrett&child3=Susan+Janett_Scandrett&father=Robert_Scandrett&gender=m&marriage=1885_butler-taylor-georgia-usa_19558&mother=Susan+Caroline_Smead&residence=_taylor-bacon-georgia-usa_17752&residence2=_butler-taylor-georgia-usa_19558&residence3=_butler-taylor-georgia-usa_19558&residence4=_adel-cook-georgia-usa_18197&searchType=t&sibling=John+H_Scandrett&sibling2=Georgia+L._Scandrett&sibling3=Susa+O._Scandrett&spouse=Lula+Carlton_Montfort&treePerson=9372174_115601059
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/127543806:62308
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=virginia_jenkins&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1878&death=1962&count=50&spouse=tom_jones
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/64076680:6061?tid=&pid=&queryId=7fae05f68bea0f6146886a786ea64c18&_phsrc=nzO2061&_phstart=successSource

e Vi

Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

58 Buford St (Fictitious street number)

Buford St)

Part of a 7/8-acre lot sold by the Crittenden family in
1885. The lot includes four present-day lots: 84 Buford St,
74 Buford St, 66 Buford St, and 58 Buford St (See 74

° Aquired by Huddy McCértHy' (Deed not located, but referenced in a 1958 deed for 66 Buford St)
e Tax records say the house was built in 1948.

Later deeds: HH12/612, Plat Book/5/212 (1981)

The Huddy McCarthy family

George McCarthy.

the Columbian Peanut Co.

Source: Ancestry.com link

e Huddy McCarthy was from the Farmer’s Academy area of Randolph County. He was the son of
e Huddy and Lillian McCarthy were married in the 1930s. They lived on a farm at first, but moved to
this lot in Shellman around 1950.

e Huddy was a farm laborer in his early years. After moving to Shellman, he and Lillian worked at

e Huddie and Lillian both died in 1979.
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24 Buford St

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e From Crittenden family to Floyd Jones in 1887

e From Jones to Sarah Tennell in 1893

11/26/1887, Notes: 1 acre, no improvements. Bounded north by Crittenden Brothers; east by Ben
1/20/1893 Moorman, south by Baptist Church lot; west by road leading to D L Ferguson’s. The
Tennells apparently built the first house on the lot.

Source: Deed Book/AA/769, EE/105

From Sarah Tennell to the United Order of Odd Fellows

Notes: 35’ N/S x 65’ E/W. Tennell sold a tract on the SW corner of her lot. This lot
2/11/1896 seems to have been absorbed into adjacent lots, and no longer exists. An Odd
Fellows Hall was built here, but destroyed by lightening in 1906 (link).

Source: Deed Book/LL/520

e |n 1911, the lot was divided into three parcels, presumably after the death of
Sarah Tennell. It appears that each child received a parcel, with Lennie Tennell
receiving the house. The different parcels seem to have later been recombined.

e |n 1952, Lennie Tennell died. Her sister, Georgia Tennell Hendry, had moved
back into the house by 1950, and continued to live here.

e In 1959, Hendry sold a remainder interest in the house to Alice Pitman Waters.
She retained life interest for herself.

Source: Deed Book/NN/254, NN/255, NN/261

From Alice Pitman Waters to Fannie Johnson

7/31/1968 Notes: One-acre lot, with house.

Source: Deed Book/ZZ1/409

From Fannie Johnson to Willie Nixon

12/6/1982 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/Z72/8

The Peter Tennell family

e Peter Tennell was from Calhoun County. He and Sarah (Sallie) Tennell were married in 1879.

e They lived in Calhoun County before buying this lot in 1893.

e Tennell was a Baptist minister, presumably serving the New Harmony Baptist Church on the lot to
the south.

o Peter died in 1906. His widow still lived in the house in 1910.

e The house descended to widowed daughter Lennie Tennell, who lived in the house until her death
in 1952. Lennie lived alone at first, and supported herself as a laundress. Her divorced sister,
Georgia Tennell Hendry, moved back into the house by 1950, when she was supporting both of
them as a laundress.

Source: Ancestry.com link, link
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https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=peter_tennell&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1847&count=50
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=lennie_tennell&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1888&count=50
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Buford St (West Side)

297 Buford St

From H A Crittenden to a
partnership of W R Terry and R S
Crittenden on 5/17/1904.

Notes: Vacant lot.

e John Mercer Wooten, Sr., joined the partnership in 1905.
e In 1908 and 1909, James M Wooten joined the partnership and W R Terry left,
12/27/1905, leaving a partnership of the two Wootens, who were first cousins.
1/4/1908, o In 1946, James M Wooten acquired John Mercer Wooten’s interest.
3/23/1909, Notes: The Wooten Building was erected in 1909 (link); one long brick building with
1/3/1946 glass fronts (fronting about 95’ on Buford St) subdivided into three stores, which
were rented.
Source: Deed Book/JJ/153, JJ/329, JJ/529, JJ/531, LL/281, LL/522, JJ/155 (with plat),
DD1/347
e From James M Wooten to his son, Claron Wooten, in 1950; by descent to his
wife and daughter in 1971
3/7/1950, e In 1994, the building was divided. The northern section (35’ of frontage on
4/27/1994 Buford St) was sold to Betty Oliver, and the southern section (61’ of frontage on
Buford St) was sold to Erwin Drug Company.
Source: Deed Book/GG1/242, JJ5/259-60, JI5/288

Later deeds: GG9/22-36

The Wooten Building

e The Wootens owned the building and leased it to different businesses over the years.

e When first opened in 1909, two tenants were the Shellman Hardware Co. (See below) and a new
drugstore opened by an unidentified man from Leesburg (link).

e Later tenants included:

o At least three different grocery stores. One of these was the Suwannee Store, managed
by Dan & Susie Spurlock.

o Erwin Drugstore, operated by Frank Erwin (1970s through 1990s).

o The Back Porch restaurant.

Shellman Hardware Co.

e Shellman Hardware Company was first operated by the Bower family. It was started by RM
Bower, probably about the time he moved to Shellman around 1906. When he died in 1925, the
business was taken over by his son, Harry Bower, who operated it until he died in 1936. For
information on the Bowers, see 94 College St and 3455 Pearl St.
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e When Bower died in 1936, his widow ; — P T ARDWARE BUSINESS
. A - | 'O SALE - HARDWARE ISINESS
advertised the business for sale in | KNOWN 38 Shellman Mardware Co.. focated bw |
Hardware Age (at right); it was sold to C L Sauthwest Gesegia, town of 1100 Escellent

o farming section. Clean, comglete stock, mves-
Wooten, son of the owner of the building tory aporoximately $13.000, Worth investigation
(Source; Deed Book/XX/426) Wooten Address—Mrs. M, C. Bower, Shellman, Geargia

continued to operate the business here
into the 1950s.

Martin Triangle (Arthur St and Buford St)

In 1884, B K Arthur purchased 10 acres in what was to become the southern portion of the Shellman
commercial district. This parcel, in the shape of a triangle with its southern tip at the intersection of
Arthur St and Buford St, was included in that tract (See B K Arthur Tract, Parcel #1). The tract was
acquired by D R Stewart and then by Brothers Charles W Martin & Isaac A Martin.

e Charles W Martin made the initial purchases in 1890. One of the deeds also conveyed a store; the
first acquired by Martin (Source: Deed Book/CC/723, CC/724, CC/726, CC/722, CC/698).

e In 1891, Charles W Martin sold a half-interest to his brother, Isaac A Martin (Source: Deed
Book/CC/447).

e The Martins incorporated in 1898; that deed summarizes the several purchases. The Martin
Triangle is 149’ at the top, with 357’ of frontage on Buford St and 312’ of frontage on Arthur St.
(Source: Deed Book/GG/181)

e [saac A Martin sold most of his half-interest back to Charles W Martin between 1912-17.

e The Triangle descended in the Martin family until sold in 1982:

o Deed Book/DD2/613-5 (Parcels #2 and #3)
o Deed Book/YY2/802-3 (Parcels #2 & #3)
e Later deeds: RR4/25-9 (Tracts #4 & #5)
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277 Buford St

Part of the Martin Triangle (See above).

. Frorr_1CharIes W Martin to R B & Charles W Martin in 1909
e In 1922, C W Martin gave his half interest to his son, J Truitt Martin

7/12/1909, e At some point Dr. France Martin acquired a half interest, which he sold back to
3/21/1922, the family in 1963. Dr. Martin used the second floor for his medical practice.
6/20/1963, e From the heirs of J Truitt Martin to his son, C Truitt Martin, in 1971

12/24/1971, Notes: Trapezoidal lot (44’ x 31’ x 28.8’ x 35.5’). Bounded north by the Wooten
building. The Martins erected a two-story brick building on the lot in 1909.
Source: Deed Book/LL/559, ZZ/143, TT1/340, DD2/613-5 (Parcel #1),

From C Truitt Martin to John W Sammons, Jr.

11/1/1982 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/YY2/802-3 (Parcel #1)

Later deeds: RR4/27 (Tract #3), LL9/188

The Martin Family Businesses

e Charles W Martin began purchasing property in Shellman in 1890. His brother, Isaac A Martin,
joined him as an equal partner in 1891.The Martins incorporated in 1898. Isaac A Martin sold
most of his half-interest back to Charles W Martin between 1912-17. The properties descended in
the C W Martin family until they were sold in 1982.

e The Martin Triangle was home to much of the family business. In 1909, the Martins erected a
two-story building here at 277 Buford St to serve as a business office (first floor) and a medical
office for Dr. France Martin (second floor).

e Martin commercial interests included extensive farming, a general merchandise store, the
Shellman Home Mixture Guano Company, and a significant stake in the Peoples Bank.
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271 Buford St/10 Arthur St

e e e e o

TN

= e

e Part of the Martin Triangle (See above).

e The building extends from Buford St to Arthur St. These images show the fagade on Buford St
(left) and Arthur St (right).

Ferguson/ Arthur & Sons Warehouse

A deed for the lot to the north reveals that Ferguson/Arthur & Sons operated a warehouse here by

1885.

Source: Deed Book/AA/450

Martin Dry Goods Stores

e The Martin Brothers purchased this warehouse in 1890. They converted it to a retail store, and
operated it as a partnership.

e |n 1898, the dimensions of the store were 30’ N/S x 85’ E/W. The original warehouse was likely
rectangular. The current store is a trapezoid; the side that fronts on Buford St follows the 24-
degree angle of that street. It is likely that the Martins made this change after 1917.

e [saac A Martin sold his interest in the store and its fixtures and showcases to his brother in 1917,
making C W Martin the sole owner. Source: Deed Book/00/230-1

e CW Martin used the store as rental property. Proprietors include:

o W SShortin 1920.
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e Atthe end of 1921, Short exchanged locations with J A
White (link). White remained here until around the time
of his death in 1956. The advertisement at right is from
1923 (link).

e Ernest Paul operated the store next.

J. A, WHITE

“Shellman’s Leading Dry Goods Store”

' A Beautiful DOLL For
| To our customers who spend as much
| as $10 cash with us we are giving for

99 cents a life-size, handsomely dress-

ed doll, which retails for $3.00. Or if you spend $40 cash
with us we will give you one of these dolls FREE. This is
no make-believe doll, but a real one: one with life-like eyes,
beautiful curly hair and a genuine, unbreakable body. See
them on displa} m our windows.

L & o N\

Hosiery 2% |

in every hosiery desire. We carry only the standard brands

those that have stood the test and bear the stamp of ap-
proval. Beautiful hosiery of sheer chiffon and thread silk;
silk and wool, in all colors and sizes.

| o

e i R

From Isaac A Martin (half-interest) to Charles W Martin. Then by descent to C Truitt

Martin.

11/17/1947, Notes: 58’ N/S, extending E/W from Arthur St to Buford St. The Martin family

12/24/1971 retained ownership of the building until 1971, renting it to others to operate the

store.

Source: Deed Book/EE1/586-7, DD2/613-5 (Parcel #4)

e The store later was sold to George Bell and incorporated into his gas station to be used as a
garage (See 253 Buford St).

e Later deeds: FF2/223-4, FF2/567-8, HH3/126-7 (Tract #2), PP12/311
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269 Buford St
e

 — o - : e e =i = £ Part of the Martin Triangle (See 277
= : < Buford St).

- .\M'A—..‘M'}
Charles W Martin sold his half interest in the 30-foot strip below the Isaac A &
Charles W Martin storehouse to Isaac A Martin.

Notes: The deed reveals that Isaac A Martin’s office is located on the lot. It is not

2 clear if the building used by Martin is the current building on the lot, or another
building which no longer stands.
Source: Deed Book/MM/262-3
e In 1925, Martin’s sale of the lot to the south reveals that this small building is
being operated as a shoe shop by G W Schramm.
12/14/1925 e Subsequent deeds reveal that the building is considered a part of the adjacent

store to the north (10 Arthur St/271 Buford St); it continues to be used as a shoe
shop.

Source: Deed Book/RR/598-9 (plat)

George W Schramm Shoe Shop

e Schramm operated a shoe repair shop in Shellman beginning in the 1880s and continuing until
1938.

e |t appears that his first shop was located on the Phelps Storehouse Lot #8 on Park Ave.

e From circa 1891 until circa 1900, he owned a shoe shop at 270 Buford St.

e This shop at 269 Buford St probably opened when he sold the shop across the street at 270
Buford St.

e Forinformation on the Schramm family, refer to 30 Randolph St.
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253 Buford St

Part of the Martin Triangle (See 277 Buford St).

Charles W Martin acquired soIe ownership of the tract at the intersection of Buford

St and Arthur St (the southern tip of the Martin Triangle) in three deeds.

e Isaac A Martin sold his half interest in the “market house” at the bottom of the
Martin Triangle.

e Charles W Martin sold his half interest in a 10’ strip of vacant land to the north

5/27/1913 of the “market house”.

e | A Martin sold his half-interest in a 26’ strip of vacant land to the north of the
“ice and market house.”

Notes: These deeds reveal that the Martins have constructed a “market house” at

the intersection of Arthur St and Buford St.

Source: Deed Book/MM/343 (2)

The M A Mizell Grocery Store RAD e |
Marvin Arrington Mizell was the son of 1 b IR

Ambrose E Mizell. He operated a grocery M. A. MIZELL

store and butcher shop in Shellman by WHY? Because you Save Money

1920; the advertisement is from July,

1921 (link). FANCY GROCERIES and MEATS

That Good Gulf Gasoline. Supreme Auto OQils
PHONE 15

Shellman Fish Company

By August, 1921, Mizell vacated the store,
and it was occupied by the Shellman Fish Company. The advertisement below places the business
“below Short & Co.”, who at the time were located in the Martin store at 271 Buford St. (link).

F’ISH

We are .,.'; ng t ) : ' :..‘” {resh .‘},...
monts | ’,_uj“ l"" " 18 ."r" elow Short & C«

in the 4-:! \l ll \lu' ct ‘ P"ONE 104

m Fish Company

From Charles W Martin to Standard Oil

Notes: Starting 14’ south of the Martin store: 150’; south along Arthur St to the
12/14/1925 corner, then 170’ northeasterly along Buford St. The plat shows that it was already
used as a gas station.

Source: Deed Book/RR/598-9 (plat)
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e From Standard Qil to A L Wall, then to George F Bell, in 1955

e From Bell to Standard Qil in 1965

Notes:

e Bell acquired the property in 1955. Standard Oil retained the equipment; Bell

11/3/1955, was required to sell Standard Oil products until 1960.

12/29/1955, e Bell leased the business back to Standard Oil in 1965, but continued to operate

7/1/1965 it.

e In 1972, Bell purchased to lot to the north and added a garage to his service
station.

o Bell kept the business until 1986.

Source: Deed Book/LL1/475, LL1/475-6 (mortgage), MM1/21, VV1/273

Later deeds: HH3/126-7 (Tract #1), HH3/129-30 (mortgage), PP12/311

April 7, 2024 © Jim Wooten Page 67 of 503




(1830-1950)

rgg . Shellman Historic Buildings
-

213 Buford St

In 1884, B K Arthur purchased 10 acres in what was to
become the southern portion of the Shellman commercial
district. This lot was part of that tract (See B K Arthur Tract,
Parcel #3).

From Nancy O Stewart to W T Saxon

Notes:
e This deed conveys a 6.5-acres tract (The Arthur Hotel property); it states that a
10/21/1902 half-acre lot with house has been separately deeded to Saxon. (Thought to be

179 Buford St).

e Later Saxon sold off the acreage around the house.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/367

The date of the house on this lot is uncertain, but likely around 1901.

e W T Saxon lived across the street (210 Buford St) until 1901.

e A 1902 deed for the property to the south (179 Buford St, Deed Book/HH/605) reveals that W T
Saxon lived north of that lot, several months before he purchased this lot.

e The 1947 deed referenced below refers to this house as the W T Saxon place.

e Tax records say the house was built in 1927. It is possible that an earlier house has been replaced.

For information on the Saxon family, refer to 210 Buford St.

From W T Saxon to W R Curry
10/3/1921 Notes: 2.33-acre lot with house. The NE corner of this lot is the SE corner of the old
George Arthur Hotel lot. Known as the W T Saxon house and lot.
Source: Deed Book/PP/597
From W R Curry to J A Grubbs
Notes: Lot with house (Parallelogram, 139’ N/S x 290’ E/W). The SE corner of this lot
is the NE corner of the Grubbs’s residence. Known as the W T Saxon house and lot.
3/31/1930 > i 3
Curry has reduced the lot he purchased in 1921 by selling parts to W J Oliver and to
Crittenden & Weathers.
Source: Deed Book/WW/242
From Mrs. Minnie L Daniel to Dan and Susie Spurlock
1/26/1947 Notes: Bounded north by the Curry mule barn. Known as the W T Saxon Place. Later
Mrs. Daniel had resided here for many years.
Source: Deed Book/EE1/145, Plat Book/7/12 (1990), Plat Book/11/184 (2011)

Later deeds: 114/199, TT5/29

The Daniel Stewart Spurlock family

e Dan Spurlock was from Randolph Co. He married Susie Mae Brown in the early 1930s. They
farmed near Fountain Bridge until buying this house in 1947.

e The Spurlocks managed a grocery store, the Suwannee Store, at 278 Buford St for many years.

e Dandiedin 1988 (obituary); Susie died in 1993.
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| Source: Ancestry.com link

165 Buford St

10/19/1904,
10/10/1905,
4/15/1907

Part of the W J Oliver Tract.

e From W T Saxon to Charles W Martin in 1904

e From Martin to Tom Jones in 1905

e From Jones back to C W Martin in 1907

Notes: Trapezoidal lot (121’ x 118’ x 60’ x 114’). Bounded north by the house
occupied by R L Arthur.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/211, 11/141, 11/465-6, Plat Book/7/12

The house in the above deeds seems to be a part of the property conveyed below, but it is not
certain. It is likely that there were two houses on the lot at some point.

11/20/1922,
4/7/1947,
12/24/1971

e From W Oliver to C W Martin in 1922

e By descent through his daughter-in-law, Caro Twitty Martin, (in 1947) to her
descendants (in 1971)

Notes: .24-acre lot. Martin bought this vacant lot in 1922 and built a tenant house

“generally used by our cook”. He later built a second house on the lot, or perhaps

that house was the Tom Jones house described above.

Source: Deed Book/QQ/310, EE1/365, DD2/616-7, Plat Book/7/12 (1990)

Later Deeds: Deed Book/PP3/48, EE13/245, Plat Book/11/184 (2011)
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7 Buford St

In 1884, B K Arthur purchased 10 acres in what
was to become the southern portion of the
Shellman commercial district. This lot was part of
that tract (See B K Arthur Tract, Parcel #3).

Notes: 1/3-acre trapezoidal lot (north: 187’; east: 88’ on Buford St; south: 155’; west:

9/4/1902 69’). South of the dwelling of W T Saxon (213 Buford St). With house occupied by
Mrs. Mary Young, who then moved to 13 Church St.
Source: Deed Book/HH/605
o From W T Saxon to W S Curry in 1903
e From the Curry heirs to their sister, Mrs. Loveda (Love) Curry Arthur, in 1906
Notes:
10/19/1903, e In 1903, Curry purchased the house rented by his daughter and son-in-law, the R
1/9/1906 L Arthurs.
e Love Curry Arthur bought the house from the other heirs in 1906. It was
occupied by W M Curry at the time.
Source: Deed Book/HH/606, J1/580
e From Mrs. Love C Arthur to A J Knighton in 1907
10/2/1907 e From Knighton to his wife, Mrs. AJ Knighton, in 1910
’ Notes: % acre, with house. Bounded north by Saxon lot; south by house of CW
11/25/1910 ]
Martin; west by Saxon. Known as the Robert Lee Arthur House.
Source: Deed Book/LL/198, MM/106, Plat Book/7/12 (1990)
e Acquired by J A Grubbs (Deed not located)
e By descent to Grubbs’ widow, Minnie Lee Wall Grubbs, in 1939
5/17/1922 e Sold from the estate of Mrs. Grubbs (who had remarried, and was now Mrs. H T

Daniel) in 1977
Source: Deed Book/QQ/210-11 (mortgage), SS/474

e Grubbs later acquired adjoining property to the south and west, used for agri-business. Source:
Deed Book/QQ/214, QQ/215, QQ2/448
e Later deeds: Deed Book/002/305-6, Plat Book/11/184 (2011)

The Robert Lee Arthur family

e Arthur was the son of George B Arthur. He married Loveda (Love) Curry in 1898 (link).

e The Arthurs lived at the Arthur Hotel in 1900, and soon moved to 179 Buford St.

e They purchased the house at 149 College St in 1907. It is unclear if they lived there or used it as
rental property (as many of the owners on this section of College St did).

e They lived in Cuthbert in 1910. In Cuthbert, Arthur first worked in, and then owned, a furniture
store. In 1940, he was tax receiver for Randolph County.

e Love Arthur died in 1945; Robert died in 1962.
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Source: Ancestry.com link

The James A Knighton family

James Knighton was from Randolph County, the son of Aaron and Lucretia Knighton. He married

Lula Barfield in 1893.

The Knightons operated a farm south of Shellman in 1900.

Knighton operated a grocery store in Shellman in 1910. That year the family purchased a home at

3455 Pearl St, but sold it by 1915.

In 1920, the family was renting a house in Cuthbert; he was night watchman for a lumber

company.
No further record can be found of the family.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The James Arthur Grubbs Family

James Grubbs was from Randolph County, the son of
John Wesley & Frances Grubbs. He was married in 1911,
but widowed in less than a year (link). He then married
Minnie Lee Wall and was living in Shellman by 1918.
Grubbs owned a country store near Fountain Bridge in
1910, By 1920, he lived in Shellman, where he managed
the Farmers Supply Co (ad at right, link); in 1930, he
again owned a general store.

Grubbs remained here until his death in 1939. His
widow later married H T Daniel. This house was sold in
1977; she died in 1980 (obituary).

Source: Ancestry.com link

|

Mr. Farmer

If you want the best prices
to be obtained for your pro-
duce:

Cotton Seed
Corn
Velvet Beans

Peas
Peanuts

Hay

BRING THEM TO US—
WE PAY CASH.

Farmers Supply Co.

3 A. GRUBBS, Manager
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113 Buford St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the W J Oliver Tract

12/14/1918,
2/28/1928,
5/31/1931

e From the Sheffield Brothers to W J Oliver in 1918

e From Oliver to Ella Riley in 1928

e From Ella Riley McClendon to Wesley Brown in 1931

Notes:

e Half-acre lot (61’ N/S x 360’ E/W) in 1916. The SE corner of this lot is the NE
corner of the Essic Owens lot.

e The Knights of Pythias Lodge (111 Buford St) is already located in the NE corner
of this lot in 1918.

e |n 1931, the lot is used as security for a debt. It has expanded to 1.25 acres;
McClendon lived here at the time.

Source: Deed Book/TT/157, UU/437

7/10/1923,
1/25/1923,
8/4/1936

e From W J Oliver to J P Sutton & R C Goolsby (both of Monroe County) in 1923.
Sutton then acquired Goolsby’s interest.

e From Katherine S Sutton (widow of J P Sutton) to her step-son, J C Sutton
(Randolph County) in 1936.

Notes:

e One-acre vacant lot in 1923. Oliver leased the land for use as a gin site. The
Shellman Gin Co., of which Oliver was primary owner, had been placed in
receivership about this time. Oliver likely was a partner in the new gin to be built
here. The deed stipulated that the property would revert when the lot was no
longer used as a gin.

e ] P Sutton died in 1936. His widow conveyed the gin to her step-son, J C Sutton,
who lived in Shellman and operated the gin. The lot contained “a gin house,
ginnery, and all the tools, etc.”

Source: Deed Book/XX/445, XX/446

3/2/1937

From the estate of Josie Jenkins to J C Sutton

Notes: House and lot formerly used by the Endeavor Lodge #42, Knights of Pythias
(See 111 Buford St). This small lot was absorbed into the gin lot.

Source: Deed Book/YY/123

1/31/1969

From J C Sutton to Herman Hilton

Notes: No improvements are mentioned, but the fact that the land did not revert
suggests the gin still existed.

Source: Deed Book/ZZ1/170, 2Z1/170-1

Later Deeds: YY3/83, 005/240, Plat Book/7/12 (1990), Plat Book/11/184 (2011)

For information on J C Sutton, refer to 172 W Phelps St
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111 Buford St (Fictitious street number)

The early history of this lot in unknown.

From Sheffield Brothers to the Trustees of Endeavor Lodge #42, Knights of Pythias

1/1/1923 Notes: House and lot (47’ N/S). Already in use by the lodge.
Source: Deed Book/TT/264
From the estate of Josie Jenkins to J C Sutton

3/2/1937 Notes: House formerly used by the lodge.

Source: Deed Book/YY/123, 005/240, Plat Book/7/12 (1990), Plat Book/11/184
(2011)

For information on the Lodge, see 47 Park Ave.

95 Buford St W (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

From Fanny A Cheney to Katie Johns
Notes: Half-acre vacant lot (61’ N/S x 360’ E/W). The SE corner of this lot is the NE

Ly corner of the Essic Owens lot.
Source: Deed Book/CC/301
e From Katie Johns to Reddick Jackson in 1893
e In 1894, Reddick sold the lot the deacons of Pleasant Grove Baptist Church, then
12/13/1893, g . -
5/3/1894 bought it back, and then gave it to his wife, Lucy Jackson.
9/19/18921 Notes: Half-acre lot, no improvements mentioned (61’ N/S x 360’ E/W). The SE
10/12/1894 corner of this lot is the NE corner of the Essic Owens lot; bounded east by the public
road.
e Source: Deed Book/JJ/190, JJ/191, 11/192, 11/195
From Lucy Jackson to the Sheffield Brothers
11/15/1909 Notes: Half-acre lot (61’ N/S x 360" E/W). The SE corner of this lot is the NE corner of

the Essic Owens lot.
Source: Deed Book/NN/28, 00/158 (Mortgage)

e No further deeds for this lot have been located.
e Currently owned by the estate of Dolly Royal.

The Reddick Jackson family

e Reddick Jackson was from Shellman. He was a brother of McClendon Jackson Paschal. He and
Lucy Wilson were married in 1883.

e The Jackson family lived in this vicinity in 1900, but likely not on this lot. Perhaps the house was
constructed around the time of the sale to the Sheffield Brothers.

e Reddick was a farmer in Shellman. By 1920, the family had moved to Macon, where he worked for
the railroad. He died in Macon in 1920.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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75 Buford St

The early history of the lot is unknown.

FromBT PoweI.I to »Benjamin W Orr in 1883

[ )
e From Orr to William Scandrett in 1884
e From Scandrett to Essic Owens in 1884
11/2/1883, e From Essic Owens to his wife, Mollie Owens, in 1894
10/18/1884, Notes:
12/10/1884, e Three-acre lot, no improvements. One acre is in Lot 5/269, and two acres are in
1/20/1894 Lot 5/270.
e Bounded south by the land where J W Hicks lived in 1883, and Potherine Melton
lived in 1884.
Source: Deed Book/Q/630-1, AA/319, AA/506, DD/324-5
e From the Owens’s son, Colonel A Owens, to Isaac Ford in 1913
e The lot was acquired by Isaac Ford in a sheriff’s sale in 1928
Notes:
9/2/1913, e Lot with house in 1913.
5/7/1928 e In 1928, there was a suit between Isaac & Mary Ford. As a result, the three-acre
lot, described as vacant, was sold at a sheriff’s sale to Isaac Ford.
e In 1929, Isaac Ford sold the lot to his wife, Mary Ford, and their minor children.
Source: Deed Book/NN/362, TT/319, UU/41, Plat Book/7/12 (1990)

e No further deeds for this lot have been found. In 2022, Mary Ford owned the lot.

e According to tax records, the house on this lot was built in 1931. It is not clear if this the house
that was described in the 1913 deed, or a replacement.

The Essex Owens family

e Essex and Mollie Owens were married in 1881.

e Essex was a farmer, and later made crossties for the railroad.

e No further information can be found on the family.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Isaac Ford family

e Ford was the son of Emmanuel Ford. He grew up on E Railroad St.

e He married Mary Melton(?) around 1917. They lived here on Buford St in 1920 (Source: 1920
census link).

e In 1928, there was a suit between Isaac & Mary Ford. As a result, the three-acre lot on Buford St,
described as vacant, was sold at a sheriff’s sale to Isaac Ford. In 1929, Isaac Ford sold the lot to his
wife, Mary Ford, and their minor children.
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e Mary Ford also is the owner of 564 Prince Rd. The legal action suggests that Isaac and Mary lived
apart. Isaac Ford was in prison (see below) in 1931. If the house at 75 Buford St was indeed built
in 1931, it was built by Mary Ford.

e Isaac Ford operated a tailoring and dry-cleaning shop. Mary Ford managed a grocery store.

e Ford spent time in prison around 1909 (link), and was in prison for murder from 1930-1935 (link).
He returned to Randolph County, where he died in 1955.

Source: Ancestry.com link

21 Buford St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

Crittenden family transfers

Notes: Half-acre lot.

e The deeds say that all land in the NW corner of 5/270 cut off by Buford St is
included. This is a mistake, probably caused by the fact that the Crittendens only
owned the eastern half of 5/270. The boundary follows Fountain Bridge Rd; if
that line is extended northward, the creates the triangle that is defines this lot.

e Deeds for the lot to the north reveal that J W Hicks lived here in 1883. Potherine
Melton lived here in 1884 and 1894.

Source: Deed Book/HH/466, NN/30

From H O Crittenden to Virginia Jones

Notes: Quarter-acre lot. Originally known as the Potherine Melton lot, now known as

the Elmira Gore lot.

Source: Deed Book/00/260, PP/328 (mortgage)

e Reacquired by Oscar Crittenden (Deed not located)

e From Crittenden to Belle Hansell in 1944

Notes: Quarter-acre lot with house. Known as the Elmira Gore lot.

Source: Deed Book/CC1/511-2

From Hansell (sheriff’s sale) to Ceola Lumpkin in 1973

Notes: Trapezoidal lot with house: north: 134’; east: 110’; south: 64’; west: 120’. The

10/2/1973 house was sold due to default on a 1936 mortgage secured by 550 Prince Rd (Deed

Book/XX/290). Hansell was no longer the owner, so this property was seized instead.

Source: Deed Book/HH2/94

e By 1894, the Crittenden Brothers had a rental house here known as the Potherine Melton place
(Deed Book/DD/324)

e The original house was replaced in 1998.

e Later Deeds: HH2/251, TT6/104, MM7/182, WW7/128

The Belle Hansell family

For information on the family, refer to 550 Prince Rd.

12/31/1902,
3/2/1910

6/1/1917

9/16/1944
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19 Buford St

e Part of the tract acquired by M W Cox in 1909.
e Cox Addition, Block 1, Lots #2, #3, and #4.

e From Sam C Haddock to John Cooledge in 1918

e From S C Haddock to Virginia Jones in 1925

Notes: .37-acre lot (160’ N/S x 100’ E/W) with house. Cox Addition Lots #2, #3, and

#4 are combined.

e The 1918 sale was subject to a mortgage, which was apparently never satisfied.
The house was occupied by William Jackson.

e In 1925, the house was occupied by Oscar Carter.

Source: Deed Book/00/439 (mortgage), SS/17, SS/277 (mortgage)

12/15/1943

e From Virginia Jones to Willie Owens & Rosa Bell Shipp Owens in 1943
e By descent to Mildred Harvey in 1994

Notes:

Source: Deed Book/DD1/51

Later Deeds: HH7/207

The Willie Owens family

e Little record can be found of the Owens family.
e The family bought this house in 1943. It remained in her estate in 1994.
Source: Ancestry.com link, link
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Calhoun St

and rental homes were built further south.

Calhoun St is the southern extension of Pearl St. It existed before Ward was incorporated, referenced
in deeds by 1882. Those early deeds referred to it simply as the “public road” and later as the
“Shellman and Morgan Road”. In the early 1900s, some deeds referred to the street now known as
Randolph St as Calhoun St. However, the 1910 census used the name “Calhoun St” for this section of
road, as it is known today. Fine homes were built on the northern end of the street. Agri-businesses

Censuses of Calhoun St

e 1900 link

e 1910 link

e 1920 link (Note: The census taker missed
several residences, and later listed them in
random order under “Catchup Road” link)

e 1930 link
e 1940 link
e 1950 link

Plats of Calhoun St

e Plat Book/4/187 (1975)

e Plat Book/5/122 (1979)

e Plat Book/6/112 (1985)

e Plat Book/6/156 (1987)

e Plat Book/7/10 (1984)

e Plat Book/12/80 (2013)

e Plat Book/12/189 (2016)

e Plat Book/E2017/128 (2020)
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3127 Calhoun St

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

The early history of this lot is unknown. A 1914 deed for the property to the south reveals that this lot
is vacant and belongs to Peoples Warehouse.

Source: Deed Book/MM/432

From Peoples Warehouse to Crittenden Brothers

Notes: Conveys the SE corner of the Peoples Warehouse lot (115’ E/W), on which
stands an ironclad building known as the Peoples Warehouse annex. Bounded on
the south by lands of the Crittenden Brothers, who agree to keep the land south of
the building open as an alley.

Source: Deed Book/00/148

e Acquired by the Crittenden Guano Co. (Deed not located)

e From the Crittenden Guano Co. to the Curry Co.

8/29/1932 Notes: 50’ N/S x 77’ E/W. This is the SW corner of the old feed mill lot, including a
building (24’ x 65’).

Source: Deed Book/VV/203

From Crittenden Guano Co. to H O Crittenden

Notes: Conveyed the land and improvements north and east of the parcel sold to the

12/20/1916

L2 e? Curry Co. earlier that year.
Source: Deed Book/WW/529
e From H O Crittenden to T E Allen, Sr. in 1937
12/1/1937, e From Allen to his son, T E Allen, Jr., in 1970
6/27/1970 Notes: Includes an ironclad seed house.
Source: Deed Book/AA1/572-3, AA1/573 (mortgage), AA2/644
From T E Allen, Jr. to Peoples Warehouse
3/12/1976 Notes: Used as a storage house by the Allens, before being sold back to Peoples

Warehouse.
Source: Deed Book/LL2/98
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3110 Calhoun St

e Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in
1871.

e Part of the 2.5-acre lot purchased by Dr. W R Terry
from H A Crittenden in 1906 (See 6 E Railroad St).

Dr. Terry built this house on the southern portion of his lot for his mother, Mary Terry, and his sister,
Fanny Terry, by 1910. Tax records say the house was built in 1911.

From the estate of Fanny Terry to Isabel, Elizabeth & Anna Ruth Terry

Notes: Lot with house (70’ N/S x 180’ E/W). This is the first deed found for this
property.

Source: Deed Book/VV1/139 (2)

From Elizabeth and Ruth Terry to J H Boyd in 1970

10/15/1970, Notes: Known as the Fanny Terry House. The two deeds assemble a tract running
10/30/1970 75’ N/S.

Source: Deed Book/BB2/177, BB2/199

Later Deeds: TT2/226-7, TT2/314-5, XX2/622, Plat Book/5/122 (1979), E2017/128 (2020)

Mary King Terry and Fanny Mahala Terry

e Mary Terry was the mother of Dr. W R Terry. She was widowed in 1901 in Webster County.

e Fannie Terry was the unmarried sister of Dr. W R Terry who lived with her parents.

e By 1910, Mary and Fanny lived here on Calhoun St.

e Mary Terry returned to Webster County for a time, but was back here in 1930. She died in 1936.
e Fanny Terry remained here until her death in 1964.

Source: Ancestry.com link

5/25/1964

April 7, 2024 © Jim Wooten Page 79 of 503



https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=fanny_terry&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1871&count=50

(1830-1950)

% Shellman Historic Buildings

3109 Calhoun St

N; A Deeds for adjacent lots reveal that J W Clark
2 owned the livery stable (30 Peoples St) and two
nearby lots on Calhoun St (#3109 and #3091). He
sold the lots at 30 Peoples and 3091 Calhoun St in
1885; it is not known when he sold this lot.

° A newspaper article reports that Dr. Clark
had a house built in 1885 (link). It is unclear if the
article refers to Dr. J W Clark, who lived here, or his
son, Dr. G L Clark, who moved into the lot next door
in 1886.

° The Driving Tour (2015) states that this house

was built in 1886.

e Acquired by J W Bynum (Deed not located)

e FromJW Bynum to Mary Standley in 1890

e From the heirs of Charles Standley to Maggie G Standley

Notes: Half-acre lot with house (212.5’ N/S x 110’ E/W). Bounded north by the

Alliance Warehouse; east by the Shellman-Morgan Public Road; south by the lot of

Alzoah Lester; west by the lot of W S Edwards.

Source: Deed Book/CC/250, DD/352

Acquired by Stanley L Arthur (Deed not located)

Notes: The Arthur family sold their house at 124 E Railroad St in 1893. They owned

this house in 1900.

Source: Deed Book/HH/485, 1900 census link

e Acquired by John Bius (Deed not located, but around 1911)

e From Bius to his wife, Mrs. Ruby Bius, in 1914

Notes: Lot with house. Bounded north by vacant lot of Peoples warehouse; east by

Calhoun St; south by lot of R L Hart; west by lots belonging to William Paschal and

Tom Barnes. Known as the house and lot formerly belonging to S L Arthur.

Source: Deed Book/MM/432

e From Ruby Bius Beard to Mrs. Young (Susie E) Johnson in 1917

e Sold from the estate of Johnson’s son in 2002

Notes:

Source: Deed Book/00/288, TT7/217

The John W Clark family

e Clark was from Monroe County. He married Charlotte Lawrence in 1850. He was a physician. The
family settled in Smithville in 1880.

e The Clarks arrived in Shellman in the early 1880s; he was the first recorded owner of the livery
stables at 30 Peoples St.

e Charlotte Clark died in 1885. That year, Clark sold the livery stables and the lot on the southern
side of this lot. He sold this lot at an unknown date, but probably fairly soon after his wife’s death.
He may have moved into the house which his son, Gilbert L Clark, built on the lot to the south
(3091 Calhoun St).

e In 1890, a newspaper article declared Clark a “horse trader” and said he intended to move to
Americus (link).

e In 1900, John was a widower, living alone in Americus, and again practicing medicine.

1/2/1890,
1/31/1894

1890s

3/24/1914

10/3/1917
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https://www.newspapers.com/image/825357033/?terms=%22shellman%20news%22&match=1
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Source: Ancestry.com link

The Charles Standley family

e Charles was from Tattnall County. He was in Randolph County by 1840, where he and Mary Dunn
were married in 1842.He later served in the Civil War.

e Charles was a prominent farmer and attorney who was involved in local politics.

e He died in 1878 (obituary). Mary remained on the family farm for a time. In 1890, she purchased
this house; her daughter, Alzoah Standley Lester, lived next door.

e Marydied in 1893. Her heirs sold the house to her widowed daughter-in-law, Maggie Goneke
(Mrs. Charles W) Standley.

e Maggie had become a widow in 1891. Her husband contracted a serious case of flu which evolved
into consumption (tuberculosis) in the winter of 1890. He died in Cuthbert in 1891 (notice).

e Itis not known how long Maggie and her children lived here; by 1900, they were living in Dawson
with her brother. By 1920, they were living in Birmingham, where she died in 1951.

Source: Ancestry.com: Charles Standley link; Charles W Standley link

The Stanley L Arthur family

e Stanley Arthur was from Randolph County, a son of Basil K & Sarah Arthur. He married Mollie
Bridges in 1884.

e Arthur owned a house at 124 E Railroad St from 1890-93. He owned this house on Calhoun St by
1900.

e The Arthur family was active in the commercial life of Shellman. Stanley was involved with the
stores the family operated on W Railroad St. In 1900, he listed his profession as clerk.

e In 1910, the family moved to 3696 Pearl St, where Stanley was a farmer.

e In 1922, Stanley opened a grocery store (link).

e By 1930, Arthur was retired, and the family was renting a house on Phelps St. Both Stanley and
Mollie died in 1943 (obituary).

Source: Ancestry.com link

The William Young Johnson family

e Young Johnson was from Randolph County. He and Susie Mercer (?) were married in 1907.

e In 1910, the family lived in Dougherty County, where he was a salesman in a retail store.

e The family moved to Shellman and purchased this house in 1917.

e In Shellman, Johnson practiced several occupations:
o In 1916, he operated a store at 290 Buford St.
o In 1930, he sold farm machinery.
o In 1940, he operated a general merchandise store.

Johnson died in 1944. His widow remained here; in 1950, her daughter and son-in-law (James &

Susie MacDonald), were also here.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=John+W._Clark&birth=1831_georgia-usa_13&child=Gilbert+Lawrence+(M.D.)_Clark&child2=John+C._Clark&gender=m&priority=usa&residence=_smithville-lee-georgia-usa_19003&searchType=t&spouse=Charlotte_Unk+Clark&treePerson=89386735_310046524549
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn85034045/1878-11-01/ed-1/seq-3/#date1=01%2F01%2F1876&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2023&words=Charles+Standley&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=4&proxdistance=2&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=charles+standley&andtext=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=1
https://www.newspapers.com/image/26669379/?terms=standley&match=1
https://www.ancestry.com/family-tree/person/tree/47098575/person/6896223969/facts
https://www.ancestry.com/family-tree/person/tree/47098575/person/6896223969/facts
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1922-12-26/ed-1/seq-6/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2023&words=cafe+Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=11&proxdistance=2&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=shellman+cafe&andtext=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=3
https://www.newspapers.com/image/852905945/?terms=arthur%20fire%20shellman&match=1
https://www.ancestry.com/family-tree/person/tree/110264747/person/370079013386/facts
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=w+young_johnson&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1881&death=1944&count=50&location=2&priority=usa
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3098 Calhoun St

e Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e Site of one of the Crittenden’s first houses. H A Crittenden
lived here in 1891. This may have been his first residence from
the time he moved to Shellman, which would date the house to
circa 1870.

e The house is no longer standing, The image is circa 1984.

From C D Crittenden to Crittenden Brothers

Notes: 1 acre (148’ N/S x 295.5’ E/W). Starting 24’ north of the NW corner of CW

Martin’s residence, bounded “west by Ferguson place, where C P Slappy now lives.”

e H A Crittenden lived on this lot in 1891.

e CD Crittenden lived on the lot by 1895 until 1898, when he moved to Alabama.

Source: Deed Book/EE/462, EE/488

From Crittenden Brothers to H A Crittenden to Mrs. Lizzie Terry

Notes: Town lot occupied by C D Crittenden. Bounded south by Charles W Martin;

north by H A Crittenden. Also, an acre on the east side of this lot extending eastward

12/13/1898, to the Ethridge lot, bounded on the south by the Goode estate.

12/14/1898 e H A Crittenden bought the lot for his newly married daughter.

e C D Crittenden moved to Alabama, then returned to Shellman to live at 3374
Pearl St.

Source: Deed Book/GG/306, GG/308

From Lizzie H Terry to R B Saxon.

Notes: Irregular lot (145’ frontage on Calhoun St, 840’ E/W on southern boundary,

480’ on northern boundary), with house. Bounded south by Allen, north by W R

12/21/1891

7/15/1909, Terry.
1/7/1913 e The Terrys lived in the house in 1909, but soon moved to their new house at 6 E
Railroad St.

e In 1913, Saxon’s estate pays the remaining balance on the 1909 mortgage.
Source: Deed Book/KK/513, NN/317

e From the heirs of R B Saxon to E E Ivey in 1921

e From Mrs. Annie Ivey to R D Ivey in 1932

12/13/1921, . ) h
9/23/1932 Notes: Mrs. Ivey lived in the house until November, 1930.
Source: Deed Book/QQ/80, RR/27 (mortgage), SS/489-90 (mortgage), TT/60
(mortgage), VV/242
e FromRD lveytoW R Curryin 1933
6/1/1933, e From W R Curry to Mrs. W J Wall in 1934
7/30/1934 Notes:
Source: Deed Book/VV/368, WW/269-70, WW/270 (mortgage)
3/1/1954 From Mrs. W J Wall to Dennard Beard

Source: Deed Book/KK1/99-100
11/29/1957 From Dennard Beard to T L Goddard
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Notes:
Source: Deed Book/001/94, UU1/196

Later Deeds: UU6/335, MM11/504

The Hiram Albert Crittenden family

H A Crittenden was from Talbot County. He was the son of C D Crittenden, Sr. and one of four
brothers who played a prominent role in the development of Shellman (RF, HA,JF, and CD Jr.).
He was in active service in the Civil War when he married Isabella Indiana (Anna) Reid in Putnam
County in 1864. His brother, R F Crittenden, had married Anna’s sister, Fannie Reid, in 1860. Five
months after his marriage, H A was wounded in Virginia, and returned to Putnam County. The war
ended before he could return to active duty.
In 1869, the two Crittenden/Reid families (R F & Fannie; H A & Anna) moved to Ward’s Station.
The wives’ father, Alexander S Reid, had promised them land to do so.
The location of the Crittenden’s home when they first moved to Shellman is unclear. The 1870
census reveals that they owned a home near R F & Fanny Crittenden, who had moved into the
John Ward home (2864 US Highway 82). The most likely location for their house is here on
Calhoun St.

o Later deeds refer to the lot to the north as “H A Crittenden’s patch”, or garden, which

likely would have been adjacent to his home.

o An 1891 deed confirms he was living here.
Anna Crittenden died in childbirth in 1879 (obituary). H A then married Mary E (Mollie) Jenkins in
Terrell County in 1880.
In 1898, Crittenden gave this house to his newlywed daughter, Lizzie Terry. The 1900 census
reveals that the Crittendens lived in an unidentified house on E Ward St.
In 1909, the Terrys built a fine new home on the lot to the north, and the Crittendens moved in
with them.
The Crittendens lived with the Terrys until their deaths; hers in 1914 and his in 1922 (obituary).
Crittenden was the first mayor of Ward and later state senator, a civic leader, president of the
Peoples Bank, and an organizer of the Shellman Methodist Church and Shellman Institute.
For information on Crittenden’s business interests, refer to W Railroad St, Crittenden Brothers
Business Interests.

Source: Ancestry.com link, RANDOLPH COUNTY, GEORGIA. A COMPILATION OF FACTS,
RECOLLECTIONS, AND FAMILY HISTORIES. Randolph County Historical Society. 1977: [Pages 162-173].

The Robert Bankey Saxon family

Saxon was born in Early County. His father was a minister, and moved to Morgan by 1860. Saxon
married Tyree Martin in 1877.

Saxon was a farmer in Randolph County, probably on land acquired from his father-in-law, John S
Martin. They lived on the farm until buying this house in 1909. The house was near those of her
brothers, Robert B Martin and Charles W Martin.

Ernest Saxon died in 1912. His widow was living in Macon with her daughter, Tennyson, by 1920.
She died in 1932.

Source: Ancestry.com link, R B Saxon family biography link, Martin and Allied Families link

The Ernest Edward Ivey family

Ernest lvey was from Baker County. He married Annie Pounds in Baker County in 1898.

The couple farmed in Baker County until moving to Shellman in 1905, buying the lot at 33 Cheney
St. In 1908, they bought the house at 47 E Phelps St. Ivey’s brother, R F lvey, had moved to
Shellman in 1901.
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https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn85034045/1879-06-06/ed-1/seq-3/#date1=01%2F01%2F1850&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2023&words=peaches+Station+Wards&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=9&proxdistance=1&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=ward+station&andtext=peach&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=8
https://www.newspapers.com/image/825863997/?terms=%22crittenden%20brothers%22&match=1
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=LT.+HIRAM+ALBERT_CRITTENDEN&birth=1840_talbot-georgia-usa_2848&death=1922_shellman-randolph-georgia-usa_19431&child=Robert+Butler_Crittenden&child2=Frances+Ann+Fannie+_Crittenden&child3=HIRAM+OSCAR_CRITTENDEN&child4=Elizabeth+M.+Lizzie_Crittenden+(Terry)&child5=Fernando+Reid_Crittenden&child6=Roger+Shumbal_Crittenden&child7=Cincinnatus+Anner_Crittenden&father=CINCINNATUS+DECATUR_CRITTENDEN&gender=m&marriage=1864_putnam-georgia-usa_2453&mother=EMMALINE+AMANDA_MAHONE&residence=_randolph-jackson-georgia-usa_18862&residence2=_schley-georgia-usa_2634&residence3=_randolph-jackson-georgia-usa_18862&residence4=_sumter-georgia-usa_2830&searchType=t&sibling=COL+Roberty+Flournoy_Crittenden&sibling2=Cincinnatus+Decatur_Crittenden&sibling3=Elizabeth+Marshall_Crittenden&sibling4=Nancy+Crowder_Crittenden&sibling5=Cincinnatus+Decatur+(%232)_CRITTENDEN&sibling6=Martha+Caroline+Mattie_Crittenden&sibling7=Emmaline+Amanda_Crittenden&sibling8=Joashley+Fernando_Crittenden&sibling9=Virginia+Leonard+Jennie_Crittenden&sibling10=Frances+Massey+(Mary+)_CRITTENDEN&spouse=ISABEL+INDIANA+ANNA_REID&spouse2=Mary+E+(Mollie)_Jenkins&treePerson=12000366_420064033334
https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/20682/images/dvm_GenMono004915-00074-0?treeid=14145134&personid=220130351947&usePUB=true&_phsrc=kDT441&_phstart=successSource&pId=142&rcstate=dvm_GenMono004915-00074-0%3A627%2C858%2C907%2C919%3B539%2C947%2C835%2C1024%3B2143%2C944%2C2414%2C1003%3B1118%2C1034%2C1381%2C1096%3B1589%2C1034%2C1818%2C1111%3B1923%2C1033%2C2195%2C1093%3B2194%2C1032%2C2416%2C1093%3B543%2C1497%2C842%2C1573%3B855%2C2135%2C1089%2C2202%3B1117%2C2224%2C1340%2C2284%3B1877%2C2401%2C2145%2C2462%3B798%2C302%2C1064%2C350%3B1544%2C458%2C1861%2C551%3B865%2C591%2C1096%2C669%3B290%2C683%2C478%2C742%3B1558%2C679%2C1785%2C738%3B2192%2C765%2C2413%2C843
https://babel.hathitrust.org/cgi/pt?id=wu.89061968418&view=2up&seq=149&skin=2021&q1=%22john%20truitt%20martin%22

Shollmary Shellman Historic Buildings
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e |vey was a carpenter and house painter.

e By 1920, the Iveys were renting this house on Calhoun St; they purchased it in 1921. The family
remained here until Annie Ivey died in 1933.

e By 1935, Ivey had moved to Florida to live with the family of his deceased daughter, Charley
Gainey. Ivey died in 1943.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Willie Joe Wall family
e Joe Wall was from Randolph County, the son of Jeff & Josie Wall (See 3041 Calhoun St). He
and Eddie Mae Avera were married in Alabama in 1930.
e The Walls purchased this house in 1934 and lived here until 1954.
e In Shellman, Joe Wall was a bailiff, then a policeman. He later was a policeman in Cuthbert.

e Eddie Mae Wall died in 1972; Joe Wall died in 1988 (obituary).
Source: Ancestry.com link
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https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=joe_wall&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1901&death=1988&count=50
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: 3072 Calhoun St

The NW corner of the tract purchased from the
Crittenden Brothers by O B Stevens in 1882.

Notes: 1 acre (126’ N/S x 363’ E/W), no improvements. Bounded on the north by the
patch of H A Crittenden. It is the NW corner of the Stephens purchase in 1882.
Source: Deed Book/AA/479

From Crittenden family to Charles W Martin

7/21/1888 Notes: Added 30’ frontage on Calhoun St to the north side of Martin’s lot.

Source: Deed Book/AA/773

e From Charles W Martin to T E Allen, Sr. in 1900, with a mortgage satisfied in

8/27/1885

1902.
9/8/1900, e Allen’s daughter, Susie Allen Land, purchased the interests of the other heirs in
12/8/1902, 1935.
10/26/1935, e The property was sold by Mrs. Land’s granddaughters in 2005.
4/8/2005 Notes: (150’ N/S x 360’ E/W), bounded on the north by the Terry lot. Known as the

Charles W Martin original home place.

Source: Deed Book/FF/522, HH/443 (mortgage), XX/215, 119/251

The Charles Wiley Martin family

e C W Martin was the son of Rev. John and Martha Truett Martin, growing up on their farm in the
fourth district of Randolph County. He married Susie Pruett in 1883.

e The couple made their home in Shellman; they built a house at 3072 Calhoun St in 1885/6.

e Martin was a prominent farmer and businessman who was featured in several newspaper articles,
including especially one in 1914 link. He was partners in a retail business and cotton brokerage
with his brother, | A Martin. In addition, he organized and was president of the Shellman Home
Mixture Guano Company.

e In 1900/1, the Martins built a new home at 30 E Railroad St (link). They remained there until their
deaths; hers in 1942 and his in 1943.

Source: Ancestry.com link, Martin and Allied Families link, Men of Mark link

The Thomas Eugene Allen, Sr., family

e Allen was from Randolph County. He married Sallie Lee in Terrell County in 1878.

e The Allens farmed in Randolph County. They lived on the farm until moving here in 1900. Allen
almost did not live to make the move; he was poisoned, almost fatally, in 1899 (link).

e In 1901, Allen and his neighbor, Mrs. R B Saxon, purchased a lot across Calhoun St on which they
built a Christian Science Hall. Allen was first reader.

e The Allens lived here until they died (he in 1915, she in 1929).

e In 1930, the house was occupied by their son, Walter L Allen. Source: 1930 census link
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https://www.newspapers.com/image/825439021/?terms=%22c%20w%20Martin%22%20shellman&match=1
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1901-02-06/ed-1/seq-3/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=NEWS+SHELLMAN+Wooten&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=1&proxdistance=2&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=shellman+news&andtext=wooten&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=1
https://www.ancestry.com/family-tree/person/tree/14145134/person/220130351937/facts
https://babel.hathitrust.org/cgi/pt?id=wu.89061968418&view=page&seq=53&skin=2021
https://babel.hathitrust.org/cgi/pt?id=nyp.33433067301766&view=2up&seq=316&skin=2021&q1=martin
https://www.newspapers.com/image/26859651/?terms=%22t%20e%20allen%22&match=1
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/17912671:6224?tid=&pid=&queryId=47549d24566e47f1ed2a1b2c8bc6c1e8&_phsrc=nzO1946&_phstart=successSource
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Source: Ancestry.com link

In 1935, their daughter, Mrs. William L (Susie Allen) Land, bought the interests of the other heirs
and became sole owner (See below). She operated a boarding house here. Source: 1940 census
link

The Lands lived here until their deaths; his in 1958 and hers in 1974.

The William Nathanial Land family

Source: Ancestry.com link, biographical sketch

Susie Allen was the daughter of T E Allen, Sr. (See above). Willie Land was from Jackson, Georgia.
He moved to Shellman around 1910 to be a bookkeeper for his brother-in-law, O A Crittenden.
Susie and Willie were married in 1919.

Initially the Lands lived on a farm near Martin’s Academy. In 1935, Susie Land bought the interests
of the other heirs and became sole owner of the house on Calhoun St. Willie Land operated a
grocery store. In 1940, they operated a boarding house. Source: 1940 census link

The Lands lived here until their deaths; his in 1958 and hers in 1974.By the 1960s, the family of
her daughter, Sara Lee (Mrs. Ree) Fulford, also lived here. They occupied the house until around
2000, and sold it in 2005.
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https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/48987919:2442?tid=&pid=&queryId=665c1ecddabc9a77721fec8243c9ab04&_phsrc=kDT447&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=Thomas+Eugene_Allen&birth=1857_georgia-usa_13&child=Walter+Lee_Allen&child2=Thomas+Eugene_Allen&child3=Clyde+H_Allen&child4=Susie+M_Allen&child5=Nettie+Virginia_Allen&child6=Charlie+Wesley_Allen&child7=Leta+Erma_Allen&gender=m&marriage=1878_terrell-georgia-usa_2875&residence=_randolph-jackson-georgia-usa_18862&residence2=_randolph-jackson-georgia-usa_18862&residence3=_randolph-jackson-georgia-usa_18862&searchType=t&spouse=Sarah+Jane_Lee&treePerson=33270344_282058735305
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/48987919:2442?tid=&pid=&queryId=665c1ecddabc9a77721fec8243c9ab04&_phsrc=kDT447&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=William+Nathaniel+Willie_Land&birth=1885_georgia-usa_13&death=1958_randolph-georgia-usa_2477&child=Sara+Lee_Land&child2=Susie+Jean_Land&father=John+Thomas_Land&gender=m&mother=Sarah+Hall_Sasnett&residence=_hancock-georgia-usa_1275&residence2=_Randolph&residence3=_randolph-jackson-georgia-usa_18862&residence4=_randolph-jackson-georgia-usa_18862&searchType=t&sibling=Eva+Mae_Land&sibling2=Sarah+Helen_Land&spouse=Susie+M_Allen&treePerson=4772807_25776287149
https://babel.hathitrust.org/cgi/pt?id=uva.x001260488&view=1up&seq=171&q1=shellman
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3091 Calhoun St

e No early deeds for this lot have been located.

e Deeds for adjacent lots reveal that J W Clark owned
the livery stable (30 Peoples St) and two nearby lots on
Calhoun St (#3109 and #3091) by 1885.

e FromJ W Clark to J B Payne in 1885
e From J B Payne to Hiram A Crittenden in 1885
7/28/1885, e From Crittenden to Gilbert L Clark in 1886
11/24/1885, Notes: “Nearly half-acre” lot, apparently with house in 1885. Bounded north by lot
1/16/1886, of J W Clark; west by J W Jones; south by land of J B Payne (Church St has not yet
4/8/1886 been opened). The deed from 4/8/1886 expands the lot to the south, and reveals
that Gilbert Clark has built a house and lives on the lot.
Source: Deed Book/GG/542, GG/544, GG/545, GG/543
From Gilbert L Clark to Mrs. A S Lester
Notes: Half-acre lot with house (roughly 141’ N/S x 170’ E/W). Bounded north by lot
8/19/1887 of J W Clark; west by J W Jones; south by land of J B Payne (Church St has not yet
been opened}.
Source: Deed Book/GG/546
From Mrs. A S Lester to Mrs. S J Payne to H A Crittenden to the Trustees of the
Shellman Methodist Church
1/17/1900, Notes: % acre lot with house. Bounded east by Calhoun St; south by Church St; west
2/10/1900 by the Sandlin lot; and north by the Standley lot. The house becomes the Methodist
parsonage.
Source: Deed Book/GG/547, FF/488 (2 deeds)
From Trustees of the Methodist Church to R L Hart
11/22/1911, Notes: Now bounded on the north by the John Bius lot. This Methodist parsonage is
9/30/1912 replaced by one at 160 W Phelps St
Source: Deed Book/MM/208, NN/285
e From HJ Williams (the Hart’s nephew) to Mrs. W E Jernigan in 1928
3/15/1928 e From Mrs. Jernigan to her son, Gene Jernigan, in 1979
l Notes: Bounded north by Mrs. W Y Johnson; east by Farmers Supply Co. (formerly
7/23/1979 [
Sandlin).
Source: Deed Book/TT/171, SS2/615
e Built “in 1886 of heart pine, prepared by the lumberman who built it.” Source: Driving Tour (2015).
Tax records also say the house was built in 1886.
e Later deeds: SS6/361
The Gilbert L Clark family
For information on the Clark family, see 173 W Phelps St.
The Barnard Hill Lester family
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B H Hill was the son of a prominent Methodist minister who served in many towns in SW Georgia,
including Cuthbert. B H followed his father by becoming a Methodist minister in 1872; was assigned
to Ft. Gaines.

e He and Alzoah Standly from Coleman were married in 1873.

e In 1874, he lost nearly all of his sight (link). He resigned from the ministry the next year (link), and
the family lived on a farm near Coleman.

e In 1887, the family bought this house on Calhoun St. B H studied law in Dawson and was admitted
to the bar in 1888 (link, link). He practice law in Shellman and became city clerk (link). He was
Shellman'’s first known lawyer, and one of the few who over practiced here. In 1894 he argued a
case involving his wife which reached the Supreme Court of Georgia (link).

e Alzoah and her two children all suffered serious illnesses, which may have been consumption
(tuberculosis). Her son moved to Ocala for his health in the 1890s. Alzoah and her daughter joined
him in 1900 (link), where she died in 1901 (obituary). Her son and daughter died in the next few
years.

e Alzoah sold this house when she moved to Ocala in 1900. B H moved to Worth County, probably
by 1897, where he taught school (link). He died there in 1924.

Source: Ancestry.com: B H Lester link, Alzoah Standley Lester link

The Robert L Hart family

e Hart was from Alabama. He was in Randolph County by 1881, when he married Martha Williams.

e The Harts lived on their farm in Randolph County until buying this house in 1912. Robert Hart died
in 1918. By 1920, his widow had moved back to the farm, where she died in 1926.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The William (Willie) Eugene Jernigan family

e Willie Jernigan was from Randolph County. He married Donnie Wall in 1921. The Jernigans bought
this house in 1928 and remained here until their deaths; his in 1976 and hers in 1988.

e Jernigan operated a store on Buford St which sold groceries and dry goods.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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https://www.newspapers.com/image/77788554/?terms=%22shellman%20georgia%22&match=1
https://www.newspapers.com/image/73814230/?terms=%22shellman%20georgia%22&match=1
https://archive.org/details/per_atlanta-constitution_1897-07-13_30/page/n1/mode/2up?q=%22b+h+lester%22
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=barnhard+h_lester&event=_randolph-georgia-usa_2477&birth=1852&death=1924&count=50&marriage=1873
https://www.ancestry.com/family-tree/person/tree/47098575/person/6896223965/facts
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=robert+l_hart&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1857&death=1918&count=50&location=2&priority=usa
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=willie+e_jernigan&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1890&death=1976&count=50&location=2&priority=usa
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3041 Calhoun St

Part of a tract sold to Mrs. S A Daniel by Joseph B Payne in 1889.

e Acquired by Dr. W R Terry (Deed not located)

e In 1901, from Dr. Terry to his mother, Mary Terry (life interest), and then to his
unmarried daughters, Ella & Fanny Terry (remainder interest)

Notes: Seven-acre tract. The 1910 census suggests that there was a rental house

here, occupied by the C B George family (link).

Source: Deed Book/HH/138

11/27/1901

From the Terry family to Jeff Wall

10/4/1918 Notes: Four acres, including a house occupied by H W Prothro.

Source: Deed Book/00/513, UU/431 (mortgage)

From the heirs of Jeff Wall to A J Wall

e Notes: The lot is reduced to 250’ N/S x 125’ E/W. No house is mentioned, and

2/26/1954 tax records say the current house was built in 1960. Presumably the original
house was replaced.

Source: Deed Book/KK1/245-6

e From AJWallto ABBranan

e From A B Brananto AL & Mrs. Grace Wall

Notes: Lot with house (100’ N/S x 200’ E/W). Bounded north by the Mamie

Hammock estate; south by the Wall estate. Sold by the family in 2019.

Source: Deed Book/QQ1/436, QQ1/452

Later Deeds: SS12/441 (Tract #1)

The Jefferson Wall family

o Jeff Wall was from Randolph County, the son of Enoch and Susan Wall. He married Josephine
(Josie) West in 1885.

e Wall was a farmer. The family lived on their farm south of Shellman for many years. In 1910, Wall
bought the property of W S Edwards in Lot/5/257, consisting of a gin, store, and residence (Deed
Book/NN/100).

e The family moved to this house on Calhoun St in 1918. They remained here until their deaths; his
in 1942 and hers in 1949.

Source: Ancestry.com link

4/4/1960,
6/14/1960
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3020 Calhoun St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

8/7/1882,
9/14/1895

e From the Crittenden family to O B Stevens in 1882

e  From the Crittenden family to O B Stevens in 1895

Notes: These two lots were adjacent to lands of H A Crittenden on the north.
e 10 acres (660’ square) in 1882.

e 3 acres, extending the lot 198’ eastward, in 1895

Source: Deed Book/HH/321, EE/521

11/1/1896,
1900-2,
10/29/1914,
9/26/1919,
1/1/1937

e From O B Stevens to Luraney (Mrs. Thomas S) Goode in 1896
e The Goode heirs sold their shares to J O Hammock, husband of their sister,
Mattie (Three deeds from 1900-1902)
e FromJ O Hammock to Mrs. Mattie A Hammock in 1914
e From Mattie Hammock to her son, Olin Hammock, in 1937
Notes: The tract size changed over time:
e 12-acre tract by 1902 (the original tract has been reduced by one acre sold
to C W Martin). Known as the Goode Place. A house was likely built between
1900 and 1910.
e In 1912, a 74-acre tract to the south was added, but later sold and became
part of the Crittenden orchard.
e In 1919, Hammock acquired six acres from the widow of R L Hart (See 3010
Calhoun St).
e In 1937, the tract was 19 acres; Mattie gave it to her son Olin shortly before
she died.
Source: Deed Book/EE/522, HH/10, HH/81, HH/323, NN/298, NN/450, 00/217
(mortgage), 00/237 (mortgage), PP/104, TT/527 (Mortgage), YY/274

12/28/1949

From J O Hammock to L D Crittenden
Notes: Crittenden used the houses as rental property.
Source: Deed Book/GG1/164

5/7/1951

From L D Crittenden to Assembly of God Church

Notes: Crittenden sold % acre on which a church was built (now 3010 Calhoun St).
The deed located the driveway to the Hammock house, still standing, just north of
the lot conveyed in this deed. Plat Book/6/112 (1986) shows the path of the
driveway.

Source: Deed Book/111/193

1/1/1965

From L D Crittenden to Jack & Ann Laye
Notes:
Source: Deed Book/UU1/553

5/1/1979

From Jack & Ann Lay to J H Boyd

Notes: By this time, the lot has been reduced by the sale of a vacant portion of the
lot to the Assembly of God congregation.

Source: Deed Book/ AA2/461

Later deeds: MM3/295-8 (Tract #4), MM4/9-13 (Tract #5), GG6/247-8, Plat Book/6/112 (1986), Plat
Book/12/80 (2013)

Obediah B Stephens

e Stephens was from Dawson; he owned a good amount of land in Terrell County.
e He bought this tract on Calhoun St in 1882 and expanded it in 1895.
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Source: Ancestry.com link

He operated a cotton warehouse nearby between 1888 and 1892 (See 10 Peoples St).
There is no indication that he built a house on this lot or lived in Shellman.

The Joseph Oscar Hammock family

Source: Ancestry.com link

Joseph Hammock was from Cuthbert, the son of Vincent & Amanda Hammock. He married Mattie

Goode in 1884.

The Hammocks initially lived on a farm south of Shellman.

They moved to Calhoun St between 1900 and

1910. They likely built a house on the lot, facing RANDOLPH COUNTY NURSERY
SHELLMAN, GEORGIA

on Calhoun St.

P 2ells finest Pecan trees. Straight, healthy
In 1911, they sold a 7/8-acre parcel with house *3 Fgroee ;Wm‘.‘”-]“_ Straight, healthy
facing on Calhoun St to R L Hart. It is thought Grown in best pochs soil on earth 14'.~'l~sn;-
. F . alist 1n peéecan trees lor years. o v
that the Hammocks lived in a house behind the feet high. Prices 40 to 80 cents.
Hart house, connected to Calhoun St by a “IT PAYS TO SET OUR TREES”

driveway on the north boundary of the Hart

house. Hart used his house as rental property (See 3010 Calhoun St).

Hammock continued to farm. He also operated a pecan nursery (link), as shown in the ad at right
from The Progressive Farmer (link).

They remained here until their deaths; his in 1929, and hers in 1938 (obituary).

Their son Olin lived here in 1940, but moved to Macon by 1950. Another son, Joseph, sold the
house in 1949.

The Lewis D Crittenden family

For information on the Crittendens, see 3338 Pearl St.

3010 Calhoun St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Goode/Hammock Place (See 3020 Calhoun St)

11/13/1911 Notes: 7/8-acre lot with house. Hart used the house as rental property.

From H O Hammock to R L Hart

Source: Deed Book/NN/210

9/26/1919 St, which his widow sold back to Hammock. The property conveyed in 1911 was

From Hart’s widow to J O Hammock
Notes: Six-acre tract. Hart had acquired six acres from Hammock, facing on Calhoun

included in this deed.
Source: Deed Book/PP/104

12/28/1949 The house is thought to have still been standing; if so, Crittenden used it as rental

From J O Hammock to L D Crittenden
Notes: The Hart property was absorbed back into the Hammock property in 1919.

property.
Source: Deed Book/GG1/164

In 1951, Crittenden sold % acre in approximately this location, to the Assembly of God Church.
They built a new sanctuary here.
For further information on the property, refer to 3020 Calhoun St.
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~ 2935 Calhoun St
& Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

From ACritenden to H O Crittenden
Notes: 1 1/8 acre, with improvements. Bounded “on east by street known as
Calhoun, on the south by the street running by the Negro school house and church

2/2/1910 (now called John Smith St), on the west by church property, and on the north by the
land line separating Lot 269 and Lot 270...now familiarly known as the John Butts
Lot.”

Source: Deed Book/NN/23

e From the estate of Mary Ada Crittenden to her daughter, Anna Lumpkin, and
son, H Albert Crittenden, in 1944

e From the estate of H Albert Crittenden to Anna Lumpkin in 1966 (half interest,

12/28/1944, giving Anna Lumpkin sole ownership)

8/1/1966 Notes: The lot has now been divided. This deed conveys the northern portion (110’
N/S x 185’ E/W). Bounded north by the vacant lot of the estate of John Smith; south
by Leroy Melton and Sarah Gardner; west by Sarah Gardner.

Source: Deed Book/LL1/191, WW1/370
From Anna Lumpkin to Hubert and Alice Jewell Melton
12/10/1984 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/DD3/299, Plat Book/7/10 (1984)

e Tax records say the house was built in 1866. If so, it was built when the lot was owned by
Benjamin Franklin Adams, before it was acquired by the Crittenden family.
e The house was kept as rental property by the Crittenden family in 1984.

John Butts

Little information can be found on Butts.
Source: Ancestry.com link
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2920 Calhoun St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

Original location, south of Shellman

e From H A Crittenden to the Trustees of Sweet Home Colored Methodist
Episcopal (CME) Church in 1896

e From the church toJ M Curry & L P Jay

Notes: 100’ N/s x 150’ E/W. The original church was located in Lot 5/273, just south

of the Cuthbert-Dover Rd.

Source: Deed Book/EE/546, YY/136

Shellman location

e Acquired by the Trustees of Sweet Home CME Church (Deed not located, but
likely in 1937)

11/20/1937, e From the Trustees of Sweet Home CME Church to Anna C Lumpkin and H Albert

3/4/1959 Crittenden.

Notes: 100’ N/s x 150’ E/W. The church relocated from Lot 5/273 to Calhoun St for

22 years.

Source: Deed Book/BB1/163, PP1/205, Plat Book/7/203

Later Deeds: RR5/134 (Part of Tract #1)

Sweet Home Colored Methodist Episcopal (CME) Church

e The deeds are the only record of this church.

e It was located in Lot 5/273, just south of the Cuthbert-Dover Rd from 1896-1937

e It was located on Calhoun St from 1937-1959.

2/3/1896,
3/17/1937

April 7, 2024 © Jim Wooten Page 93 of 503




Shollmar Shellman Historic Buildings
*

(1830-1950)

2911 Calhoun St
{ Part of the lot sold by H A Crittenden to H O Crittenden on
2/2/1910 (see 2935 Calhoun St)

From H O Crittenden to A L Stallings
7/5/1935 Notes: 60’ N/S x 115’ E/W. Located in the NW corner of the intersection of Douglass
St and Calhoun St. Tax records say the house was built in 1891.
Source: Deed Book/XX/140 (mortgage), XX/161, XX/314 (mortgage)
e From A L Stallings to Susie Aycock (sheriff’s sale)
7/6/1937, e From Aycock to D K Bynum, Jr.
5/20/1940 Notes:
Source: Deed Book/YY/275-6, AA1/262
9/7/1946 e From D K Bynum, Jr. to Leroy & Annie Bell Melton in 1946
8/17/199;9 e Sold by the estate of Annie Bell Melton in 1999
Source: Deed Book/DD1/591-2, AA8/93, Plat Book/12/189 (2016)
A L Stallings

No information can be found on Stallings.

The Leroy Melton family

e Melton was from Randolph County. After his first wife died, he married a much younger Annie
Bell Coleman in the 1930s.

e The Meltons bought this house on Calhoun St in 1946. Leroy died in 1970; Annie kept the house
until she died in 1999.

e Melton was a farmer in 1920. By 1940, he was a truck driver. In 1950, he was a trucking
contractor.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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2910 Calhoun St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

1/3/1896

e From the Crittenden family to R L Hart

e From Hart to the Crittenden Brothers in 1896

Notes: One-acre lot (210 square).

e |t appears Hart rented this land from the Crittenden family, on which he built
and operated a gin. One of these two deeds conveys the lot to Hart. The other
conveys the lot and the gin equipment to the Crittenden Brothers.

e Thelotis located on the east side of Calhoun St, but the N/S location is not
specific.

Source: Deed Book/EE/486, EE/487

It is likely that the Hart Gin above and the Crittenden Gin below are the same gin. There is no
evidence that the Crittendens owned a second gin in this timeframe.

e From the Crittenden Brothers to Shellman Gin Co. in 1904
e From Shellman Gin Co to C W Martin in 1904
e From Martin to his wife, Mrs. S E Martin, in 1905

4/20/1904, Notes: 270’ N/S x 162’ E/W. Known as the Crittenden Gin Seat.
12/2/1904, e The Crittendens removed their gin equipment in 1904, presumably installing it in
3/17/1905 their lot on 40 Bethea St.
e The deed says the lot is located in Lot 5/300, but later deeds show that this is
incorrect; it is located in Lot 5/301.
Source: Deed Book/JJ/101, JJ/255, 1)/324
e From Mrs. S E Martin to AL & W R Crittenden in 1918
2/6/1918, e From the Crittendens to the Crittenden Fruit Co. in 1923
1/1/1923 Notes: The lot was absorbed into the Crittenden Fruit Co. (See 2850 Calhoun St)

Source: Deed Book/QQ/429 (2)
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2850 Calhoun St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

From O A Crittenden to J F & H O Crittenden
Notes: This deed conveyed a one-third interest in the NW corner of Lot 5/301. It is

Lot ey Tl the earliest deed that identifies this tract as a peach orchard.
Source: Deed Book/HH/265
e The Crittendens sold 74 acres from this tract to W O Hammock in 1912, and
repurchased it in 1915 under the name of “Crittenden Grove Co.”.
11/13/1912, e This tract became a pecan grove. Hammock operated a pecan nursery on his
3/12/1915 adjacent land; it is possible he planted the tract in pecan trees during his

ownership.
Source: Deed Book/NN/298, NN/481

e The Crittenden Fruit Company consolidated the NW corner of Lot 5/301 in 1923 (Source: Deed
Book/QQ/430)

e Later deeds transfer the plot within the Crittenden family. By 1937, the tract is known as the
Crittenden Pecan Orchard Tract.

Source: Deed Book/SS/4, BB1/163, 111/192

Later Deeds: RR5/134 (Part of Tract #1), Plat Book/5/43 (1977)

Crittenden Fruit Co.

e The company was formed by 1921, when it was the third-largest peach grower in Shellman (link).
It was an equal partnership of five Crittendens: JF,HO, RS, AL, & W R.

e The company acquired 128 acres in the NE corner of Lot 5/301 for use as an orchard in 1923. Part
of the tract had been planted as a peach orchard by 1901. The orchard was connected to Calhoun
St by a road on its northern boundary already known as Peach Orchard St.

e The Dawson News gave an account of the firm in October, 1923 (link):

o Peaches: The article reported that the company was introducing 40 acres of a new
variety, Hiley.

o Pecans: the company had planted 65 acres in pecans since 1916, and were the largest of
the early growers in Shellman.

o Grapes: The company planned to plant 25 acres in grapes.

o The acreage reported in the article equals the total tract owned by the company, so it is a
complete inventory of their orchard.

e |t is likely that the peach orchard was located on a 54-acre tract fronting on Calhoun St, with the
pecan grove on the 74-acre tract to the east).

e By 1937, the tract was known as the Crittenden Pecan Orchard Tract, suggesting the peach
orchard was no longer in operation. Of the original partners, only R S & H O Crittenden were still
alive and deeds no longer referred to the Fruit Co. H O Crittenden was sole owner, and ownership
descended in his family.
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2845 Calhoun St (Fictitious street number)
Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.
e From H A Crittenden to his daughter, Lizzie (Mrs. W R) Terry in 1902
e From Mrs. Terry’s estate to her daughter, Carrie Frances (Mrs. C W) Pullen, in

1934
8/20/1902, e Acquired by Mrs. Anna C Pipkin by 1939 (Deed not located)
3/3/1934 Notes: Five-acre tract. The NE corner of the lot is the corner of Calhoun St and John

Smith St. The lot contained one rental house in 1902 and five rental houses in 1939.

Source: Deed Book/HH/475, WW/27, YY/149 (mortgage), ZZ/298 (mortgage), YY/292

(mortgage)

e |t appears that these houses were always used as rental property.

e The tract was converted to agri-business use by the 1960s.

The Patterson Phillips family

e Pat Phillips and Mariah Branch were married in Randolph County in 1869.

e The family lived on a farm east of Ward’s Station in 1880. By 1900, they were renting one of the
houses on this tract.

e Phillips was a farm laborer.

e Mariah died between 1900 and 1910. Patt was still living and farming in this area in 1920, but the
specific location isn’t known.

Source: Ancestry.com link

2705 Calhoun St
Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.
From H A Crittenden to H O Crittenden
Notes: Half-acre lot with cabin (105’ N/S x 210" E/W). Cabin in which Hamp Stevens
11/10/1902 lived. Bounded north by the Jesse Melton house and lot; south by the Anthony
Adams house and lot (both owned by Roger S Crittenden).
Source: Deed Book/HH/501
e From H O Crittenden to A M Roberts, Sr., in 1929
e From Roberts’ estate to his son, | V Roberts, in 1956
e Descended in the family in 2010
Notes: Bounded south by the Bounce Robinson lot.
Source: Deed Book/BB1/454, VV10/503-5
| V Roberts family
e |V Roberts was the son of A M Roberts. He moved to Shellman as a child with his parents. He and
Cloudie Roberts were married around 1940.
e Roberts was a farmer.
Source: Ancestry.com link

3/17/1942,
6/13/1956
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2689 Calhoun St
0&3 e  Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in
N 1871.
e By descent to Mrs. Massie Crittenden Lane.

From Mrs. Massie Crittenden Lane to Augustus M Roberts, Sr.
e By descent to his widow (life interest), Mamie Roberts, in 1956; then to his

children.
Notes: 20-acre tract with house. Known as the Jim Lippett Place in 1929.
Source: Deed Book/UU/28-9, MM1/247

10/22/1929,
6/13/1956

e Tax records say the house was built in 1926.
e Still owned by the family

Augustus Malachi Roberts, Sr. family

e Guss Roberts was from Shorterville, Alabama; he moved to Clay County, GA by 1900. He and
Mamie Brown were married in Ft. Gaines in 1900.

e The family moved to Shellman, where they purchased this 20-acre tract and the house on the lot
to the north in 1929. They seem to have lived in this house, and remained here until their deaths;
his in 1956 and hers in 1975 (obituary).

e Roberts was a Methodist minister (Bethel AME Church on John Smith St) and farmer.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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2534 Calhoun St

11/11/1907,
2/19/1946

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e FromR F & F M Crittenden to John Mercer Wooten, Sr. in 1907

e From Mrs. Wooten to Mrs. Pauline Bower Stewart in 1946

Notes:

e 82-acre tract that is the southern strip of Land Lot 5/301 and the northern sliver
of Land Lot 5/300 that lies north of the Shellman-Cordrays Rd.

e No improvements are listed in either deed. Tax records say the house was built
in 1941.

Source: Deed Book/ LL/229, DD1/401

e The Stewart family lived in this house in the 1940s before moving back to the Bower house at
3455 Pearl St. Refer there for more information on the family.

e The house was used as rental property before being occupied by the family of their daughter. The
lot has been reduced to ten acres.

e Later Deeds: UU4/42, Plat Book/7/203 (1992)

2499 Calhoun St (Fictitious street number)

Owned as farmland by Z T Phelps, Mrs. M J Oliver, and B K Arthur

From B K Arthur to Chance Reddick

8/10/1891 Notes: Two vacant acres, the NE corner of Lot 5/271
Source: Deed Book/ 00/130
From the Reddick family to T R Arthur & J G Thompson
3/12/1917 Notes: There is no further mention of this house, which likely was used as rental

property until it was demolished.
Source: Deed Book/ 00/207

Chance Reddick family

e Chance Reddick was from Houston County. He and Mariah Willis were married in Randolph
County in 1876.

e Chance was a farm laborer.

e Chance died by 1900. Mariah remained here until the property was sold in 1917. She moved to
Macon with her daughter, Annie. She died in Macon in 1951 (link).

Source: Ancestry.com link
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Carver St

Carver St was probably created in 1913 when Mike Cox developed the Cox Addition (Refer to Cox
Addition under Buford Circle). It was not named at the time. There were residential lots on the south
side of the street; most were vacant until at least 1950. A few were undoubtedly the site of homes,
but neither the tax records nor deeds allow them to be identified. The north side of the street was
undeveloped until the Douglass School was closed and replaced by a new school in 1953. At that time,
the street was referred to as New School St, and later Carver St.

Censuses of Carver St

e The few residents of Carver St residents were
listed on Buford St until 1950; refer there for
links.

e The 1950 census listed five families on an
“unnamed street” that is Carver St.: 1950

Plats of Carver St:

e Plat Book/1/200 (1952)
e Plat Book/1/220 (1953)
e Plat Book/4/30 (1969)
e Plat Book/9/37 (1988)

10 Carver St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the tract acquired by M W Cox in 1909 (See Cox Addition).

Notes: 165" N/S x 33 1/3" E/W.

e From M W Cox to Ethel Smith in 1914
e From Smith to James Bridges in 1922

e Vacantin 1922; the mortgage in 1928 reveals that there was a house on the lot.
e The deed identifies the tract as Cox Addition, Lot #2. This conflicts with deeds for
19 Buford St, also identified as Lot #2.

10/6/1914, e This lot cannot be precisely located.
11/13/1922 o No subsequent deeds can be located, and the house has been lost, so no
tax records can be found.

o The censuses locate the Bridges family in this vicinity. The 1930 and

1940 censuses do not separately identify Carver St; any residents were
listed on Buford St. The 1950 census places the family on an “unnamed
street”, which must be Carver St.
Source: Deed Book/QQ/311 (2), TT/73 (mortgage), Plat Book/9/37 (1988)

The James Bridges family

record of the family or this house.

e James Bridges was from Alabama. He and Evaline Hightower were married in 1899.

e The family lived in Georgetown in 1910. They bought this lot in 1922 and built this house.

e James was a farmer. After his death, Evaline was a laundress.

e James remained here until he died in the 1930s. Evaline lived here with two daughters in 1940. In
1950, she was still here; her mother and a granddaughter lived with her. There is no further

Source: Ancestry.com link , censuses: 1930, 1940, 1950
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Cheney St

Cheney St extends from College St on the west to Division St on the east. It was created in 1905 to
allow C M Cheney to divide his newly acquired land and sell lots. He began doing so in 1905, and
completed the process with his College Place Addition in 1910.

Censuses of Cheney St Plats of Cheney St

e 1910 link e Deed Book/MM/40-41 (1910)

e 1920 link e Plat Book/2/118 (Recorded in 1960, but it
e 1930 link appears to have been drawn circa 1910)
e 1940 link e Plat Book/2/260 (1962)

e 1950 link e Plat Book/6/35 (1983)

Fanny Cheney Tract, Cheney St

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e From the Crittenden family to Fanny A Cheney, daughter of Hiram A Crittenden,
in 1895

e  From Cheney’s estate to her husband, C M Cheney, in 1904.

Notes: 70.7 acres, less about 10 acres previously sold. The tract stretches from

College St on the west to the boundary of Lot/4/17, and from E Phelps St on the

12/30/1895, south to Pine St on the north. Exceptions are:

11/1/1904 e 2.5 acresinthe SW corner for the lot of Mrs. S J Payne and the lot of Ellie Wilson

e 1 acrein the SE corner, unidentified

e 1 acre, formerly the AME parsonage, known as the Frank Melton lot

e 4 acres in the NW corner (the cemetery lot)

e A 30’ strip for the street later named Division St.

Source: Deed Book/EE/485 (Tract #2, with plat), KK/115-7 (Tract #3)

e This tract was later subdivided to create the College Place Addition and other lots on Cheney St
and Division St.

e Adrawing of the tract is shown in Deed Book/EE/485. A later view, after subdivision, is shown in
Plat Book/2/118.

e Forinformation on Fanny Cheney, refer to 4001 Pearl St.
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33 Cheney St

Part of the 60-acre tract purchased from the Crittenden
family by Fanny Crittenden Cheney in 1895 (See Fanny
Cheney Tract)

e From CM Cheney to E E Ivey in 1905
e From lvey to Tucker Curry in 1907
e  From Tucker Curry to his wife, Belle Curry, in 1909
12/19/1905, e From Belle Curry to her son, John M Curry, who kept a life interest, giving the
11/8/1907, remainder interest to his children in 1958.
12/6/1909, Notes:
5/15/1958 e One-acre vacant lot (210’ square) in 1905. Bounded east by Coxwell’s lot.

e lvey probably built a house here by the time of the 1907 sale; the Currys were
here in the 1910 census link.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/577, LL/234, MM/6, 001/365, Plat Book/2/118 (1960)

From the Curry family to Lorene Sullivan & Lorene Yvonne Sullivan

3/20/1967 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/XX1/96, GG7/76

Tax records say the current house on the lot was built in 1957. It appears that the original house was

replaced.

The William Marion (Tucker) Curry family

e Curry was from Randolph County. He married Lucy Belle Manry in 1901. They lived here in 1910
and 1920.

e Curry owned a barber shop.

e Curry died in 1926; Belle remained here until her death in 1958. Their son John lived here with his
family from the 1930s until 1967.

Source: Ancestry.com: W M Curry link, Belle Curry link
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48 Cheney St

e Part of the 60-acre tract purchased from the Crittenden family by Fanny Crittenden Cheney in
1895 (See Fanny Cheney Tract)

e The present-day lot was assembled from two separate lots after 1972.

Western portion

e From C M Cheney to Alice Lee Dennis in 1906

e From Miss Dennis’s heirs to Robert Lee and Elizabeth Price in 1972

9/8/1906, Notes: 1-acre vacant lot (“practically” square dimensions). In 1906, bounded east by

9/11/1972 C M Cheney; south by Susan Wilson; west by Dr. E C McCurdy. There is no evidence

of a house on this lot during the time it was owned by Ms. Dennis; the Prices appear

to have built the first house in 1977.

Source: Deed Book/LL/15, FF2/193, LL2/68-9

Eastern portion

e From CM Cheney to W D Bryant in 1909. Bryant bought a 2.5-acre tract. He
built a house in the NW corner of the lot; it may have been rented to G A
Roberts in 1910. Source: Deed Book/NN/17

11/15/1908, e Bryant sold that 5-acre NW corner to D W Roberts in 1910. Source: Deed
Tofaisss, | BookNTE , ,
6/1/1928 ° In_1921, TH Halllburton.purchased th.e house from Roberts’ estate. Roberts
10/1/192;9 widow wa.s now remarriedto R L Halllbu.rton. Source: Deed Book/QQ/60
12/21/193’9 e From Halliburton to S J Payne, both of Bibb County Source: Deed Book/TT/235-6
7/26/1947, i e From Payne to Mrs. Nellie Johnson in 1929. Source: Deed Book/UU/17
6/5/1957 e From Mrs. Johnson to J W Walker in 1939 Source: Deed Book/AA1/70

From Walker to J E McGlaun & J P Gunnells in 1947 Source: Deed Book/EE1/362
McGlaun acquired sole ownership in 1949 Source: Deed Book/FF1/557

From McGlaun to George & Fannie Mae McSwain in 1957. Source: Deed
Book/FF1/559, NN1/379-80, Plat Book/2/260 (1962)

Combined Lot

e The deed(s) combining these two lots have not been located.

e The house on the eastern portion of the lot was destroyed at an unknown date.

The William D Bryant family

e Bryant sold this house on Cheney St in 1910. He purchased the house at 239 E Ward St in 1917. It
is not clear where the Bryants lived in the interim.

e See 239 E Ward St for information on the family.

The Daniel Washington Roberts family

e Roberts was from Georgetown. He married Mamie Walker in Randolph County in 1901.

e Roberts was an employee of the railroad. The family sems to have lived in Macon. It is unclear
whether they occupied this house in Shellman. Perhaps they bought with the intent of living near
Mamie’s family.

e Roberts died in Macon in 1918 as a result of a fall from a railroad trestle (link).

e Mamie then married Robert L Halliburton of Macon, who also lost his spouse in 1918. She sold
the house in Shellman to T W Halliburton in 1921.

e Mamie died in Macon in 1952.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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College Place Addition, Cheney St
The College Place Addition was a subdivision developed by C M Cheney on land inherited from his
wife, Fanny Cheney (See Fanny Cheney Tract). Located along Cheney St and E Phelps St, it consisted of
54 lots, the majority being .17 acres (50’ x 150’). The lots were sold at auction on 3/24/1910 (link).
These lots have not been listed individually; some deeds have been located, and are listed below, as

well as plats from 1910 and 1960.
THE DAWSON NEWS. MARCH 28, 194

PAGE TWELVE.
ey

Grand Avuction Sale of Lots
At “00llege Place”

Shellman, Geo;gia Beglnniné at IOMO’clock, A. M,

50 beautifully located lots in this new residential addition to Shellman will positively be sold on the above date
to the highest bidder. Shellman is on the eve of great expansion and has outgrown her original limitations. New
territory has to be opened up for the homeseeker who would make Shellman his home. It is to meet the demand
for choice residence property within reasonable distance from the business section that College Place has been devel-
oped, and it is to encourage immediate building that 50 desirable lots in this addition will be offered for sale. New
streets are laid out and being graded; the lots are all surveyed and numbered; shade trees are being planted, and every
improvement added that will make it a thoroughly up-to-date residence section.

Why 7Pa;' Rent - A Hint for Couniry Folks.

You could not move to a better community to educate your children, for here

when f‘”.' a m.nl»l sum invested here ‘}‘)" e t_’eyour own landlord? Easy in Shellman you will have the best educational facilities. College Place is within one
terms will permit you to do this. Shellman is growing fast. Buy nmow | minute’s walk of the Public School building. Your family here will be surrounded
and reap the reward in the rapid grewth of values sure to come in an ‘-~ | Dy the most healthful and refined influences of a splendid society of folks. Real es-
: : Pl Plal | tate is the safest investment and most productive investment in the world. College
vestment it Coliege ace. : Place is your opportuity, ~

A $250 Lot Wlll Be Given Away Free on th‘é vDay of Sﬁle. Also-$20 in Gold.

The Shellman Military Band has been specially engaged for the day and will give one of their famous band concerts for the entertainment of those pres-
ent. Col. J. C. Morrow of Pittsburg, Pa., the famous real estate auctioneer, will conduct the sale. It will be a treat to hear him alone.  Hailroad fare re-
turned to persons purchasing a lot who reside within 106 miles of Shellman. Everybody invited. Everybody welcome. Remember the date,

Thursday, March 24th,"1910 -

Southern Land Development Co.

\ R. E. MORROW, Sales Manager. i Shellman, Georgia.

Plats: Deed Book/MM/40-41 (1910); Plat Book/2/118 (1960), 6/35 (1983)

Deeds:

e MM/40-41

e NN/38-41 & 43-4 & 47-50, 52-3, 263, 351, 433-4, 476
e XX1/365
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Church St

In the early days of Shellman, new homes were being built in the area south of the downtown
commercial district. This street was opened in 1884/5 to connect Calhoun St with Buford St. It
acquired its name, Church St, in 1888 when the newly formed Shellman Baptist Church purchased a
lot, which they later described as "a lot in the southeast portion of town, acclaimed at that time to be
the most desirable residential section.” Over time, the street took on more of a commercial/industrial
character; only one residential lot remains today.

Plats of Church St

e Plat Book/7/269 (1994)

e Plat Book/11/123 (2010)
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13 Church St

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e FromJ B Payne to J H Ellerbee in 1884

e From Ellerbe to Joseph O Hammock in 1891

12/10/1884, e From Hammock to Martha] Hart in 1892

1/14/1891, e FromHarttoHA (.Zrlttenden in 1892

12/14/1892, Notes: % acre trapezoidal lot; south along Buford St (96’); west along Church St

12/26/1892 (303’); north along street running by Wall’s stables (90°); west (to starting point)

along the southern line of Mrs. S J Payne’s lot. The price suggests there are

improvements on the lot by 1884, but they are not mentioned.

Source: Deed Book/AA/384, CC/424, CC/774, CC/795

e From H A Crittenden to T N Spurlock in 1900

e From Crittenden to the Peoples Bank of Shellman in 1902

Notes: Same dimensions as in 1892. Bounded north by the lot of Mrs. S J Payne.

e The 1900 deed reveals that Crittenden has erected a house and was renting it to
J S Sale, who was a policeman.

e Spurlock purchased the lot on credit. He did not pay the note, moving instead
across the street to 46 Church St. Crittenden then sold the lot to his family’s
bank.

Source: Deed Book/I1/432, HH/397, 1900 census link

o Peoples Bank divided the lot in 1902: 13 Church St and 37 Church St.

e Referto 37 Church St for subsequent history of that lot.

10/1/1900,
11/5/1902

e From Peoples Bank to E W Plowden in 1904
e From Plowden to J J Roberts in 1904
e From Roberts to Mrs. E M Crittenden in 1905
10/7/1904, Notes: Half-acre trapezoidal lot; south along Buford St (96’); west along Church St
10/30/1905 (223’); north along lot of Mrs. M A Young (90’); west (to starting point) along the
southern line of the lot of Mrs. S J Payne (now Murrow). A 1902 deed for 37 Church
St reveals that Roberts was living on this lot in 1902 while it was still owned by
Peoples Bank.
Source: Deed Book/11/433-4, 11/431-2, J1/459, NN/64
From Mrs. E M Crittenden to R W Dean
Notes:
11/14/1913, e Same dimensions as previous deed. Now bounded east by T W Wall; north by
3/3/1920 residence of | J Lunsford.
e In 1920, Dean mortgaged the lot; he lived on the lot at the time.
Source: Deed Book/MM/386, PP/269, XX/505 (mortgage)
e From the estate of R W Dean to W | Thurman in 1943
e From Thurman to Ruby Belle Thurman Ferguson in 1957
8/23/1943, ) i L .
Notes: The lot contained a house and a store in both deeds. Dean lived in the house
8/15/1957 ) P
and operated the store during his lifetime.
Source: Deed Book/CC1/165-6, NN1/499
From Ruby Belle Thurman Ferguson to J R Melton
1/30/1970 Notes: The store and house were still standing.
Source: Deed Book/AA2/76

Later deeds: TT2/557, TT2/692, XX2/505, AA3/222, AA3/230
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The J J Roberts family

e Roberts was a blacksmith when he lived here on Church St.

e The family moved to College St, and later to 3422 Pearl St; refer there for information on the
family.

The Robert Whitman Dean family

e Whit Dean was from Harris County, the son of T E and Elmina Dean. He married Dorothy Belle
Devane in Randolph County in 1893. She died in 1900; later that year, he married her widowed
sister, Mrs. Katie Tison.

e Dean was a farmer in Randolph County until buying this lot in 1913. He operated a grocery store
here in 1920, and a general merchandise store in 1930 and 1940.

e The Deans lived here until their deaths; hers in 1929 and his in 1940.

e By 1930, the family of their daughter, Ruby (Mrs. Edward) Nichols, also lived here.

Source: Ancestry.com link

20 Church St (Fictitious street number)
The early history of this lot is unknown.
From W S Edwards to Shellman Baptist Church
Notes: Half-acre vacant lot. Bounded west by Mrs. Billingslea, south by J B Payne,
east by A A Dantzler. Known as the W S Edwards lot.
Source: Deed Book/CC/96
From O H Jordan to the Shellman Gin Co
Notes: Half-acre lot with house. Bounded on the north by Church St, on the east by
1/2/1907 lot of J A Knighton, on the west by District Methodist Church parsonage, and on the
south by a street running from the church to the gin.
Source: Deed Book/LL/78
e This lot is combined with the gin property in 1907. The church building was lost at an unknown
date.
e Later Deeds: QQ/186, AA2/268, UU3/55
For information on the First Baptist Church of Shellman, refer to 3317 Pearl St.

10/8/1888
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37 Church St

Originally combined with the lot at 13 Church St. Refer there for the early history of this lot.

From the Peoples Bank of Shellman to Mrs. Mary A Young
Notes: % acre vacant lot (95’ N/S x 82.5’ E/W). Bounded north by Planters

11/24/1902 Warehouse; east by Randolph St; south by Church St; west by land of Peoples Bank
where J J Roberts lives.
Source: Deed Book/NN/64
e From Mrs. M AYoungtoTW Wallin 1911
e In 1942, from the estate of Robert Wall to Mrs. Minnie Lee Wall Grubbs Daniel
(life interest), then to Gene Jernigan & Walter Wall (remainder interest) (Deed
not located)
11/28/1911 | OteS:
A e |n 1911, there is a house on the lot; bounded west by Mrs. E M Crittenden.
e |n 1922, described as a vacant lot (Source: Deed Book/QQ/239)
e In 1942, the lot is known as the “Robert Wall storage barn”.
o Wall also owned the storage house across the street (See 10 Randolph St).
Source: Deed Book/NN/220
From Gene Jernigan & Walter Wall to Man Holt (life interest), then to Charles Ragan
(remainder interest)
4/15/1982 Notes: The lot is larger (106’ N/S x 72’ E/W). Man Holt has lived here for a number of

years.
Source: Deed Book/YY2/192

Mrs. Mary A Young

e Little is known of Mrs. Young. She was married to John Young. The family lived on a small farm
east of Shellman, probably by the mid-1870s.

e Mrs. Young was renting the house at 179 Buford St when she bought this lot in 1902. She built a
house here, which she sold in 1911. By 1910, she had moved, possibly to Moultrie.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Tilden Washington Wall family

Refer to 50 Church St for information on the Wall family.

30 Church St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Pitman & Crenshaw Gin Lot (See 40 Church St)

From J T Barnes to the Trustees of the Masonic Hall
Notes: The gin lot is reduced to one acre. The remainder will soon be sold for a

ey 00 Christian Science Hall.
Source: Deed Book/HH/297, Plat Book/7/269 (1994)
From Purity Lodge #93 to Quality Gin
3/31/2010 Notes: 196’ N/S x 222’ E/W. The Lodge swaps its lot for the adjacent lot to the east.

Source: Deed Book/S510/564-6, Plat Book/11/123 (2010)

For information on the Lodge, refer to 47 Park Ave
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Shollmary Shellman Historic Buildings
*

(1830-1950)

40 Church St (Fictitious street number)

e Part of the Joseph B Payne Tract purchased in 1882 (See Joseph B Payne Tract).

e Known as the Gin Lot.

e The original gin on this lot was likely built by J B Payne. Payne had earlier operated a gin in
partnership with his father-in-law, Z T Phelps, and a Mr. Chambless; it was destroyed by fire in
1877 (link). It was likely located on Phelps’s land rather than here.

o Payne purchased this lot in 1882. He operated a gin in partnership with his brother, J A
Payne. When J A Payne died in 1888, J B Payne continued the business in partnership with
one of the Deans (link).

o An 1888 deed refers to Randolph St as Payne Gin St. The extension of the street leads to
this location.

o A 1900 deed refers to the “old Payne gin lot” (Deed Book/HH/138).

e Later known as the Pitman & Crenshaw Gin Lot

o An 1892 deed refers to this as “the gin lot”, owned by E W Pitman.

Leslie & Sword obtained a mortgage from Pitman & Crenshaw, presumably for this

property (Deed of purchase not located)

From W J Leslie to J T Barnes

Notes: 1.375-acre lot, seemingly vacant. Bounded north by Church St; east by Mrs. H

G Powell and Reid Crittenden.

Source: Deed Book/GG/524

Barnes divided the lot:

e One acre to the Trustees of the African-American Masonic Lodge (See 30 Church
St)

e 3/8acreto ST Turner, then to the Christian Science Hall (See 60 Church St)

3/27/1893

1/3/1899

2/6/1900

44 Church St (Fictitious street number)
Probably part of the old First Baptist Church lot which was sold to the Shellman Gin Co. in 1907 (See
20 Church St)

From the Shellman Gin Co. to the Shellman Garage Co.

Notes: 110’ N/S x 52" E/W. The NE corner of this lot is the NW corner of T W Wall’s

residence lot. This is a portion of the old First Baptist Church lot.

Source: Deed Book/MM/287

e Acquired by Sam Sheffield (Deed not located, but by 1922)

e From Sheffield to his wife, Minnie Sheffield, in 1940

Notes: Bounded north by Church St.

e In 1922, a deed for adjacent property refers to this as the Sheffield garage

e In 1940, referred to as the “old Shellman Garage.”

Source: Deed Book/AA1/376-7 (Tract #8)

From Sam & Minnie Sheffield to Harvey Jordan

Notes: The building still stood, but did not appear to be in use as a garage any

longer.

Source: Deed Book/KK1/114

e The building was still standing in 1963, but the lot is vacant today; it has been reassimilated into
the Quality Gin Co.

e later deeds: TT1/112, PP5/37

11/23/1912

6/15/1940

1/21/1954
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https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn88054001/1877-11-16/ed-1/seq-3/#date1=01%2F01%2F1870&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2021&words=Payne+Phelps&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=0&proxdistance=2&sort=relevance&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=payne+phelps&andtext=&page=2
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn88054004/1887-07-28/ed-1/seq-2/#date1=01%2F01%2F1865&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F1920&words=guano+Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&lccn=sn88054004&lccn=sn88054000&lccn=sn88054001&lccn=sn89053958&lccn=sn85034045&lccn=sn89053952&index=5&proxdistance=10&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=guano&andtext=shellman&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=1

Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

50 Church St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the six-acre tract purchased by Joseph B Payne in 1884 (See Joseph B Payne Tract)

3/16/1885

From J B Payne to Allen A Dantzler

Notes: % acre (219’ N/S x 132’ E/W). Bounded by Church St on the north, J B Payne
on the south and east, and Billingslea on the west.

Source: Deed Book/BB/275

7/14/1892 the lot. Bounded east and south by “lands of E W Pitman known as gin lot”, and west

From Allen A Dantzler to W R Curry
Notes: % acre (219’ N/S x 132’ E/W). The price of $600 suggests there is a house on

by Baptist Church.
Source: Deed Book/CC/687

9/11/1900 Notes: Known originally as the Allen Dantzler place.

From W R Curry to ST Turner

Source: Deed Book/GG/590

11/5/1902 The lot to the east is now owned by the Christian Science Church, and to the south

From S T Turner to Thomas N Spurlock
Notes: % acre lot; this deed confirms that there is a house in which Turner resides.

by the Colored Masonic Lodge.
Source: Deed Book/HH/432

11/27/1905,
9/22/1909

e From Thomas N Spurlock to John Mercer Wooten, Sr. in 1905

e From Wooten to T W Wall in 1909

Notes: Bounded “on the east by street running by Christian Science Hall, and south
by Masonic Lodge”. This confirms that the Lodge was built by 1905.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/513, LL/587, QQ/239 (mortgage), 1910 census link

No further deeds have been located for this lot. Deeds for adjacent lots reveal that the lot was owned
by Mrs. H T Daniel by 1945 until at least 1958.

The Allen A Dantzler family

Source: Ancestry.com link

Allen Dantzler was from South Carolina. He married Martha Miller in South Carolina in 1853.

By 1856, he had moved to Weston, where he was a wagonmaker. After serving in the Civil war, he
returned to Weston.

Around 1882, the Dantzlers moved near Dover. In 1885, Dantzler bought this lot on Church St. It is
likely he built the first house on the lot. In 1888, Dantzler operated a wood shop (link). This may
have been the blacksmith shop and wood shop built by John M Anthony and sold back to the
Crittendens in 1884.

In 1892, Dantzler moved to Dawson, where he opened a new brick wood shop with blacksmith
shop attached (link).

Dantzler listed his profession as carpenter and farmer before opening the shop in Dawson.

His obituary listed him a prominent churchman and mason (link).

Dantzler died in 1899. Martha Dantzler lived with the family of her son at 3299 Pearl St when she
died in 1900 (notice).

The Simeon P Turner and Mary Jane Ferguson Ward Turner families

Simeon Turner was from Hancock County. Both his parents died in 1849; John McClendon of
Randolph County was appointed his guardian in 1853. After serving in the Georgia Calvary in the
Civil War, he returned to Randolph County.
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https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/3739257:7884?tid=&pid=&queryId=24ce73cdd6cbf5817efbe826b0eb444e&_phsrc=nzO1833&_phstart=successSource
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053284/1888-07-18/ed-1/seq-2/#date1=01%2F01%2F1885&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F1889&words=Paschal+Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=8&proxdistance=1&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=paschal&andtext=shellman&page=1
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1892-10-12/ed-1/seq-5/#date1=01%2F01%2F1880&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F1922&words=Ellerbee+Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=1&proxdistance=5&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&andtext=shellman+ellerbee&page=2
https://www.newspapers.com/image/308689422/?terms=dantzler&match=1
https://www.newspapers.com/image/349561244/?terms=dantzler&match=1
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=allen+a_dantzler&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1826&death=1899_shellman-randolph-georgia-usa_19431&count=50

Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

Source: Ancestry.com link, link

Mary Jane Ferguson was from Randolph County. She married William Abner Ward in 1858. The
family lived on a farm near Coleman, where he died in 1867.

Simeon and Mary Jane married in 1873. They lived on her farm until 1882, when she purchased
land in the SW section of Shellman from J B Payne: 40 acres of Lot 5/263 (NE corner) and the west
half of Lot 5/270. The land was part of the old David Ferguson Place; Mary Jane was likely his
daughter. The family moved to Shellman, possibly living in a house that Payne vacated; the
location is unknown.

Mary Jane died in 1899. In 1900, Simeon purchased this house on Church St, and lived here with
his two children. In 1906, he and his newly married daughter bought the lot at 84 E Railroad St,
but did not build on it. By 1909, Turner had moved to Atlanta, where he lived with the family of
his daughter. He died there in 1910, only five days after his daughter died (obituary).

In 1888-1890, Mary Jane sold 2.75 acres from her holdings in Lot 5/270. Simeon and Mary sold
the rest to M W Cox in 1909 (See Cox Addition).

The Tilden Washington Wall family

Source: Ancestry.com link

Wall was from Shellman, the son of Enoch & Susan Wall. He married a widow, Sallie Franklin West
Culpepper, in 1900.
The Walls acquired three lots at the intersection of Randolph and Church Streets:

o 50 Church St in 1909

o 37 Church Stin 1911

o 10 Randolph St (Deed not located)
The Walls lived in the house at 50 Church St. The other houses were apparently used as “storage
houses.”
By 1918, the Walls had moved back to the farm. It does not appear that they moved back here.
He died in 1926; she died in 1939.
The house was occupied by Man Holt in 1982 when the remainder interest was sold by Wall’s
descendants.
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https://www.newspapers.com/image/26783177/?terms=turner&match=1
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=s+p_turner&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1832&death=1910_fulton-georgia-usa_1094&count=50
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=Mary+J.+Mollie_Furguson+Ward+Turner&birth=1843_georgia-usa_13&death=1899_randolph-georgia-usa_2477&child=Sarah+Ida_Ward&child2=William+A._Ward&child3=Mary+Bessie_Turner&child4=Simeon+F._Turner&gender=f&marriage=1873_randolph-georgia-usa_2477&residence=_randolph-jackson-georgia-usa_18862&searchType=t&spouse=William+A._Ward&spouse2=Simeon+P_Turner&treePerson=41153931_28446172636
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=t+w_wall&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1877&death=1926&count=50

Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

60 Church St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Pitman & Crenshaw Gin Lot (See 40 Church St)

e FromJTBarnesto ST Turnerin 1900
e From Turner to Christian Science Organization of Shellman in 1901

12/19/1900, Notes: .375-acre vacant lot. Bounded north by Church St; east by lots of Mrs. Powell
8/29/1901 and W R Terry; south by the vacant lot of the Colored Masonic Lodge; west by ST

Turner. Known as the north part of the Pitman & Crenshaw Gin Lot.
Source: Deed Book/FF/552, HH/161, HH/162

6/24/1942

From the Trustees of the Christian Science Society to the Assembly of God, Shellman
Notes: Bounded west by Mrs. H T Daniel; on east by Mrs. Mamie Hammock Self and
Mrs. J W Wall.

Source: Deed Book/CC1/57

4/20/1945,
8/23/1945

e From Trustees of Assembly of God, Shellman, to Mrs. H T Daniel

e From Mrs. Daniel to Willie Joe Wall

Notes: Bounded west by Mrs. H T Daniel; on east by Mrs. Mamie Hammock Self and
Mrs. J W Wall.

Source: Deed Book/DD1/239, DD1/240, FF1/393

10/4/1958

From Willie Joe Wall to Herman Hilton

Notes: Wall sells the northern half of the lot, which includes to still-standing church
building.

Source: Deed Book/RR1/63

Later deeds: NN2/85 (Tract #2), PP5/37, Plat Book/7/269 (1994)

Christian Science Hall

This lot was purchased in 1901 by T E Allen (First Reader) and Mrs. Tyree Martin Saxon (Second
Reader) on behalf of the Christian Science Organization of Shellman. Two weeks earlier, the
Organization had sold property adjacent to the Cristian Science Reading Room near Fountain
Bridge (Deed Book/HH/157), likely to fund this purchase.

Mrs. Saxon came from a family of prominent Baptists; she converted to Christian Science after a
miraculous healing (link). Allen was poisoned, almost fatally, in 1899 (link); perhaps that was a
factor in his conversion.

The Hall was dedicated in October, 1902 (link).

The Christian Science congregation sold the hall in 1942. There is no further mention of a
Christian Science congregation in Shellman, so presumably they were inactive by this time.

The Hall was purchased by the Assembly of God congregation. They sold it in 1945. They built a
sanctuary at 3010 Calhoun St in 1953; it is not known where they worshipped in the interim.
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https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/20682/images/dvm_GenMono004915-00074-0?treeid=14145134&personid=220130351947&usePUB=true&_phsrc=kDT441&_phstart=successSource&pId=142&rcstate=dvm_GenMono004915-00074-0%3A627%2C858%2C907%2C919%3B539%2C947%2C835%2C1024%3B2143%2C944%2C2414%2C1003%3B1118%2C1034%2C1381%2C1096%3B1589%2C1034%2C1818%2C1111%3B1923%2C1033%2C2195%2C1093%3B2194%2C1032%2C2416%2C1093%3B543%2C1497%2C842%2C1573%3B855%2C2135%2C1089%2C2202%3B1117%2C2224%2C1340%2C2284%3B1877%2C2401%2C2145%2C2462%3B798%2C302%2C1064%2C350%3B1544%2C458%2C1861%2C551%3B865%2C591%2C1096%2C669%3B290%2C683%2C478%2C742%3B1558%2C679%2C1785%2C738%3B2192%2C765%2C2413%2C843
https://www.newspapers.com/image/26859651/?terms=%22t%20e%20allen%22&match=1
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn85034007/1902-10-23/ed-1/seq-4/#date1=01%2F01%2F1900&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F1950&words=Christian+Science+Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=11&proxdistance=2&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=christian+science&andtext=shellman&page=1

Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

66 Church St (at Calhoun St)

Part of the Joseph B Payne Tract purchased in 1882 (See Joseph B Payne Tract).

e FromJ B Payne to F B Arthur to H G Powell in 1884
e From Powell to J R Mercer (possibly his father-in-law) in 1890
Notes: One-acre lot, “lying west of the public road leading by the residence of H A
Crittenden and south of the street to be opened to road leading by the residence of
4/1884, - , "
G W Oliver”. The “street to be opened” is Church St.
11/27/1884, h . y
12/4/1890 e |t appears that a house was built on the property in 1884, between the April
and November deeds; the price of the lot increased from $75 to $525.
e The salein 1890 seems to be a sale by Powell to his wife’s family; perhaps her
father purchased the house for her.
Source: Deed Book/AA/318, AA/472, CC/380
From Mrs. Hattie J Powell to B F Crittenden
Notes: Half-acre lot, with improvements. Bounded north by Church St; east by
9/3/1903 Calhoun St; south by W R Curry; west within 3’ of the Christian Science Hall. The lot
has been reduced by half, presumably by selling the southern half to W R Curry.
Source: Deed Book/HH/594
From B F Crittendento A C, C M, & W S Hammock in 1906/7
Notes: Bounded north by Church St; east by Calhoun St; south by W R Terry; west
ithin 3’ of the Christian Science Hall.
11/19/1906, | . d . ] i
e The 1906 purchase was subject to a mortgage by Crittenden, which was paid in
11/21/1907, full
12/5/1921 ot ) .
e Mamie Hammock (daughter of Amanda Powell, now Mrs. Mamie Self) again
mortgaged the house in 1921.
Source: Deed Book/KK/48-9, LL/236, QQ/54

Later deeds: 114/223

The Hiram Graves Powell family

Hiram (Hight) Powell was from Crawford County. He was in Shellman by 1884, when he purchased
this house. Three months later he married Harriet Mercer in Bibb County.

Powell owned a store in Shellman in partnership with his brother (link). In 1898, he was operating
as Powell & Dean, carrying “fancy groceries, dry goods, and shoes” (link).

In 1903, the Powells sold this house and moved to Fitzgerald (link). They remained there until
their deaths: his in 1939 and hers in 1950.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Amanda Powell Hammock family

Amanda Powell Haommock was the mother of ] O Hammock (see 3020 Calhoun St). She was a
widow when she moved here in 1906, across the street from her son’s family.

She lived here with two children in 1910, and remained here until she died in 1919.

Her widowed daughter, Mamie Hammock Self, occupied the house until at least 1950. No further
record of her can be located after the 1950 census.

Source: Ancestry.com link, link
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https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1890-12-24/ed-1/seq-3/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=Powell+Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=4&proxdistance=5&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=powell+shellman&andtext=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=1
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053952/1898-08-18/ed-1/seq-5/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=Powell+Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=9&proxdistance=5&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=powell+shellman&andtext=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=1
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053307/1903-02-06/ed-1/seq-5/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=Powell+Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=2&proxdistance=5&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=powell+shellman&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&andtext=&page=2
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=hiram+g_powell&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1859&death=1939&count=50&location=2&priority=usa
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=Amanda+Catherine_Powell+Hammock&birth=1835_terrell-georgia-usa_2875&death=1919_shellman-randolph-georgia-usa_19431&child=Benjamin+F_Hammock&child2=Joseph+Oscar_Hammock&child3=Alonzo+Vinson_Hammock&child4=Albert+Dewitt_Hammock&child5=James+Monroe_Hammock&child6=Charlie_Hammock&child7=Mary_Hammock&child8=Estell_Hammock&child9=Morgan+Colquitt_Hammock&child10=Walter+S_Hammock&gender=f&marriage=1855_randolph-georgia-usa_2477&priority=usa&searchType=t&spouse=Vinson+Oscar+V+O_Hammock&treePerson=90177005_390071560948
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=mamie_self&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1880&count=50&location=2&mother=amanda_hammock&priority=usa&spouse=_self

Shollmar Shellman Historic Buildings
4 (1830-1950)

College St

College St extends from the RR northward past Eastview Cemetery.

e The section north of E Phelps St (previously Plum St) is referenced in deeds by 1891. It was known
as Cemetery St in its early days. No deed transferring it to the town has been located.

e The section from E Ward St north to Cemetery St (some 873’) was sold to the town in 1901. It was
called College St because the new Shellman Institute was built there. Source: Deed Book/NN/32

Censuses of College St Plats of College St

e 1910 link e Plat Book/2/210 (1960)

e 1920 link e Plat Book/2/118 (1960)

e 1930 link, link e Plat Book/3/279 (1967)

e 1940 link e Plat Book/4/72 (1964)

e 1950 link e Plat Book/4/82 (1964)
e Plat Book/6/279 (1989)
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https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/62308/images/43290879-Georgia-052469-0009?pId=127543695

!% Ynase Shellman Historic Buildings
* j (1830-1950)

26 College St

Part of the 7-acre tract purchased by Fernando Crittenden
in 1883 (See 27 E Ward St).

e From Fernando Crittenden to R G McCurdy in 1904

e From the estate of Sara McCurdy Weathers to her son in 2001

Notes: 1 acre (167’ N/S x 265’ E/W). Starting 285’ along the east side of College St

north of the center of the RR track.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/267, 007/193-5

The Robert Grant McCurdy family

e  McCurdy was born in Villa Rica, the twin brother of E C McCurdy. He moved to Shellman from
Carroll County in 1895 to take a position as a telegraph operator.

e In 1898, McCurdy married Ella Ethridge. The family rented a house on E Railroad St in 1900, and
moved here circa 1904. Tax records say the house was built in 1906.

e  McCurdy was a salesman for Crittenden Brothers for many years, and afterwards a farmer. He
was also an investor in real estate and a agent of the Life Insurance Co. of Virginia.

e The McCurdys remained here for the rest of their lives; he died in 1942 (obituary) and she died in
1956.

e Their daughter, Sarah, married A F Weathers Ir., in the 1930s. The Weathers were living here by
1940, and remained here until their deaths; his in 1994 and hers in 2001 (See below).

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Andrew Fletcher Weathers, Jr. family

e A F Weathers, Jr. grew up in Shellman, the son of Dr. A F Weathers, Sr. He and Sarah McCurdy
were married in 1933 (link).

e The Weathers were living here by 1940, and remained here until their deaths; his in 1994
(obituary) and hers in 2001.

e A F Weathers was a farmer, and also operated a dry-cleaning business in Shellman. He twice
served as mayor of Shellman.

Source: Ancestry.com link

6/17/1904,
8/10/2001
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https://www.newspapers.com/image/823699463/?terms=%22crittenden%20brothers%22%20shellman&match=1
https://www.ancestry.com/family-tree/person/tree/25720540/person/26067490360/facts
https://www.newspapers.com/image/973844204/?terms=oliver%20shellman&match=1
https://www.newspapers.com/image/858533962/?article=ae732c34-e3e6-4804-87f3-08694f189009&focus=0.357911,0.5660077,0.51193637,0.7373255&xid=3355
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=Andrew+Fletcher_Weathers&birth=1912_georgia-usa_13&death=1994_shellman-randolph-georgia-usa_19431&gender=m&priority=usa&residence=_shellman-randolph-georgia-usa_19431&residence2=_shellman-randolph-georgia-usa_19431&searchType=t&spouse=Sara+Lou_McCurdy&treePerson=80484906_42496531972

Shollmar Shellman Historic Buildings
*

} (1830-1950)

29 College St

Part of the 7-acre tract purchased by Fernando Crittenden
in 1883 (See 27 E Ward St)

From Fernando Crittenden to his son, Dr. Albert Leroy Crittenden (Deed not
located, but around 1906)
5/21/1935 e From Dr. Crittenden’s widow to J D Pipkin in 1935
Notes: 330" N/Sx 176’ E/W.
Source: Deed Book/XX/87

After the Pipkins died, the house was occupied by the family of their daughter, Betty (Mrs. Dean)
Robinett

From Pipkin’s heirs to J R Curry, Jr.
12/16/1971 Notes: Occupied by the family of Charles Adams Curry for many years.
Source: Deed Book/DD2/628-9

Later deeds: 0012/510-2 (Tract #6)

Dr. Albert Leroy Crittenden family

e Crittenden was the son of Fernando Crittenden, growing up around the corner on E Ward St. After
graduation from medical school in Atlanta, he returned to Shellman to practice. Crittenden went
on to become a prominent physician and civic leader in Shellman.

e In 1903, he married Pearl Reid of Eatonton. The house was likely constructed about this time.
Fernando Crittenden provided contiguous lots for three of his children: sons WR & A L, and
daughter Lillian Sears).

e Dr. Crittenden was murdered while playing a round of golf at Magnolia Lake. The event was
widely covered in the press (Butler Herald, February 1, 1934, Page 1 & Page 4, and Macon
Telegraph, January 26, 1934 link)

e His family sold the house after a year; by 1940, Pearl was living with the family of her daughter,
Ada, in East Point. She died there in 1963 (obituary).

Source: Ancestry.com family tree link, biographical sketch from 1926

The Jefferson Davis Pipkin, Sr, family

e Pipkin was from Alabama. He came to Shellman by 1910, when he was a boarder at the Sasser
house. That year, he joined a partnership (C M Cheney, J A White, and Pipkin) operating Cheney’s
commercial interests (See 57 W Railroad St).

e Pipkin and Anna Cheney (daughter of his partner, C M Cheney) were married in 1914 (link). After
the marriage, Pipkin became a farmer, and the family appears to have lived on the farm.

e In 1930, the family purchased the house at 2734 Fountain Bridge Rd, and lived there until 1935.

e The Pipkins moved to College St. in 1935. Anna Pipkin died in 1943. Jeff remained here until he
died in 1958. The family of his daughter, Betty (Mrs. Dean) Robinett, also lived here after Anna
Pipkin’s death.
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Source: Ancestry.com link, 1950 census link

The Dean Henderson Robinett family

more information.

Source: Ancestry.com link

e Dean Robinett was born in North Carolina, the son of G E (Edgar) and Eula Robinett. The family
moved to Shellman in the late 1920s.

e Robinett married Betty Pipkin in 1938 (link, link). They purchased the house at 266 E Railroad St in
1939 and lived there until 1943.

e They moved into this house shortly after Anna Pipkin died in 1943. They remained here until
moving to Texas around 1970. They later returned to Shellman.

e Dean was involved with the Robinett Family Lumber Businesses. Refer to 670 E Railroad St for

e Deandied in 1987(obituary); Betty died in 2004.
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50 College St

° Part of the 7-acre tract
purchased by Fernando Crittenden
in 1883 (See 27 E Ward St) : . :
° The image at left is of the ‘ /ﬂ - ’%f‘:, f FL!HHB
original school, probably taken ' 7@ .
when newly built in 1901. R & s

. The image at right shows ' '

the rear of the school, taken after the 1921 renovation.

R i,

From Crittenden Brothers to Shellman institute
12/7/1901 Notes: 2.8 acres (210’ N/S x 582’ E/W). The SW corner of the lot is 50’ east of the NE
corner of J F Crittenden’s patch (his garden). A 2-story school had already been built.
Source: Deed Book/KK/486
e From Shellman Institute to Town of Shellman in 1910
e From the Town of Shellman and its Board of Education (BOE) to the Randolph
County BOE in 1929
7/5/1910, e From the Randolph County BOE to the City of Shellman in 1960
ST 08 Notes: 2.8 acres (210’ N/S x 582’ E/W). Bounded north by O A Crittenden; east by CJ
4/13/1960 Greene. The school was transferred to the Shellman BOE when it formed, and to the
Randolph County BOE when public schools in the county were consolidated into a
county-wide system.
Source: Deed Book/NN/237, UU/113, QQ1/287-8
From the City of Shellman to Wyman Rice & Bruce Johnson
11/10/1963 Note:s:.The school was no longer us.,ed. and in disrepair. It was sold under the
condition that the lot be cleared within 180 days.
Source: Deed Book/WW1/302-3

Later deeds: 0012/510-2 (Tract #5)

Shellman Institute and Shellman Public Schools

This school was the second location of Shellman Institute, the first being on E Ward St. It opened
in 1901.
In 1909, the city charter of Shellman was amended to authorize a board of education (link). The
Trustees of Shellman Institute formally transferred the school property to the town in 1910.
In 1916, a survey of Randolph County Schools gave a description of the Shellman school (link).

o 180 pupils were enrolled in 11 grades.

o Staff consisted of a superintendent, six assistants, and seven teachers.
In 1921, a major renovation of the school took place, including steam heat, brick veneer, and a
new room (link). Funds were raised by donation (link) and bonds were issued for $16,000 (link).
In 1929, the schools in eastern Randolph County were consolidated. An election was called for
April 9, 1929; Shellman voted to annul the law authorizing its system, and to consolidate with the
County system. This school was sold to the County BOE in November 1929.
The County BOE built a new public high school at 185 Pecan St; it opened in the fall of 1930. The
elementary grades remained on College St until 1958, when they too transferred to Pecan St
(link).
The unused school building was sold in 1963 and demolished within 180 days.

April 7, 2024 © Jim Wooten Page 118 of 503



https://babel.hathitrust.org/cgi/pt?id=umn.31951d022170513&view=1up&seq=1364&skin=2021&q1=allen
https://babel.hathitrust.org/cgi/pt?id=mdp.39015005657658&view=1up&seq=27&skin=2021&q1=shellman
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1921-06-07/ed-1/seq-8/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2023&words=Anna+Shellman+SHELLMAN+Simpson&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=5&proxdistance=2&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=anna+simpson&andtext=shellman&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=3
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1921-07-12/ed-1/seq-6/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=SHELLMAN+Shellman+Ward&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=10&proxdistance=5&sort=relevance&rows=12&ortext=ward+shellman+fire&proxtext=&andtext=&page=14
https://babel.hathitrust.org/cgi/pt?id=nyp.33433109947766&view=1up&seq=932&skin=2021&q1=shellman
https://www.newspapers.com/image/826793151/?terms=%22james%20e%20nix%22&match=1

Shollmary Shellman Historic Buildings
2 _

(1830-1950)

71 College St

e Part of the 7-acre tract purchased by Fernando Crittenden in 1883 (See 27 E Ward St)

e After 1956, this tract was divided into three lots: 61 College St, 81 College St, and this lot which is
between them.

From Fernando Crittenden to his son, W R Crittenden

Notes: 1.6 acres (330" N/S x 210’ E/W). The NE corner of this lot is the SW corner of

the intersection of E Phelps St and College St. Crittenden already lived on the lot.

Source: Deed Book/TT/131-2, TT/135 (mortgage)

From Crittenden’s heirs to Herman Hilton

1/17/1956 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/MM1/173-4, 1950 census link

e The Crittendens died in 1937; the heirs kept the lot until 1956.

e The house was likely rented to George Robinett in 1940.

e The house seems to have been lost by 1950.

e Later deeds: Z22/198-9, PP3/354, YY1/323, VV1/243, VV1/459, XX1/123, GG2/21, XX6/149-50

The William Robert Crittenden family

e Crittenden was the son of Fernando Crittenden, growing up around the corner on E Ward St.

e He married Clyde Allen in 1909. In 1910, they were living here. Fernando Crittenden provided
contiguous lots for three of his children: sons W R & A L, and daughter Lillian Sears.

e Crittenden managed a dry goods store in 1920; in 1930, he owned a retail store, suggesting that
he took over his father’s store after his death in 1929.

e In 1936, the family moved to Waycross, where he was employed by The Georgia Cotton
Cooperative. In 1937, both adults were killed in an auto accident while returning to Shellman; a
son was with them, but survived (link).

Source: Ancestry.com link

2/8/1928

74 College St (Crittenden’s Orchard, fictitious street number)
Known as Crittenden’s orchard. No structure is known to have been built on this tract.
From Crittenden Brothers to H O Crittenden
Notes: .64-acre vacant lot (90’ N/S x 308’ E/W). Bounded by College St on the west,
by 80 College St on the north, and on the south by the school lot. Source: Deed
Book/NN/334
From H O Crittenden to the Board of Education of Randolph County
9/17/1937 Notes: The lot is expanded to roughly three acres.
Source: Deed Book/YY/546
e The lot was at one time a pecan orchard, but is today wooded.
e Later deeds: HH6/343-4, 0012/510-2 (Tract #4)

1/2/1913
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80 College St (Fictitious street number)

Part of H O Crittenden’s 3.3-acre tract in the SE corner of the intersection of College St and E Phelps

St.
e From Crittenden Brothers to J F Crittenden in 1913
e From J F Crittenden to his son, Beverly Malcolm Crittenden, Sr., in 1928
e From Crittenden to his sister, Martha Frances Crittenden.
e Then from her estate to the children of Beverly Malcolm Crittenden, Sr. in 1988.
Notes: 1.15-acre vacant lot (162’ N/S x 308’ E/W) in 1913. Bounded west by College
1/2/1913, St: north by Plum St; east and south by H O Crittenden.
12/14/1928, | e This is the NW corner of the H O Crittenden tract, split off in 1913.
5/3/1988 e The 1928 deed conveys the lot and house in which Malcolm Crittenden already
lives.
e A deed for 74 College St reveals that this lot is vacant in 1937. The 1988 deed for
this lot reveals the house was destroyed by fire.
Source: Deed Book/NN/335, TT/367, UU/390 (mortgage), AA1/29-30, UU3/161-2,
KK6/316-8, KK6/319-20

Later deeds: 0012/510-2 (Tract #3)

The Beverly Malcolm Crittenden family

e Malcolm Crittenden was born in Shellman, the son of Fernando Crittenden. He served briefly in
the Army during WW |, before returning to Shellman, where he married Marilu Pinkston in 1921.

e The Crittendens built this home in 1923 (link).

e Malcolm was a bookkeeper in his father’s retail company until his father died. By 1943, he was
employed by the WPA in Albany.

e In 1930, the Crittendens were living in this house on College St. The house was destroyed by fire,
probably in the 1930s. In 1940, the family lived in the house of his deceased parents at 27 E Ward
St. They moved to Albany by 1943, but eventually returned to the house on E Ward St. They
remained there until their deaths; his in 1974, hers in 1978.

Source: Ancestry.com link, biographical sketch
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94 College St

11/20/1891, estate to C M Cheney
10/24/1892, Notes: ¥ -acre lot, no improvements through 1906. Bounded north by land of Mr.
3/5/1900 McCurdy and where Owen Sale now lives; south by street running east to town lot of

This lot was purchased from the Crittenden Brothers as
two half-acre lots in 1891 and 1892. The two were joined
in 1905 by C M Cheney, and remain together today.

Western Half
From Crittenden family to Robert L Cheshire to Mrs. J A Payne, then from the Payne

Susan Wilson; west by Cemetery St.
Source: Deed Book/CC/736, CC/737, FF/577-8

12/2/1892, From Crittenden family to Susan Wilson to C M Cheney
3/18/1905 Notes: % -acre lot (210’ N/S x 105’ E/W), no improvements through 1905.

Eastern Half

Source: Deed Book/EE/71

Combined Lot

From C M Cheney to Mrs. Annie L Bower. Then from her heirs to her daughter, Mrs.
Lois Bower Latimer.

Notes: 1 acre (210’ square).

6/25/1906, e The two lots are combined in a 1-acre lot, which is shown in a 1964 plat.
2/17/1936 .
e The Bowers soon built a house on the lot.
e After Mrs. Bower moved to Pearl St, the family used this house as rental
property until the 1960s, when Lois Bower Latimer moved back to Shellman.
Source: Deed Book/LL/180, XX/307-8, XX/308; Plat Book/4/72 (1964)
e From the estate of Mrs. Lois Bower Latimer to Ann Harbison
7/27/1971 e Sold by Harbison in 1988

Notes: Occupied by Mrs. Latimer at the time of her death.
Source: Deed Book/DD2/3-5, XX2/274 (mortgage), VV3/151

Later deeds: FF4/116

The Richmond Marmien Bower family

Bower was from Whigham. He married Annie Laurie Buchannon of Blakely in 1884.

The family initially lived in Whigham; in 1900, Bower was a dry goods merchant there.

The family moved to Shellman around 1906, where Bower was proprietor of the Shellman
Hardware Co. and served in the Legislature.

They purchased this lot and in 1906 and built a house here. He lived here until his death in 1925
(obituary); she moved in with the family of her son Harry on Pearl St, living there until she died in
1933 Source: 1930 census link.
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Source: Ancestry.

e This house on College St remained in the family. It appears to have been rental property.

e After R M Bower died in 1925, it his son Harry took over the hardware store. Refer to 297 Buford
St for information on the business.

e In 1936, this house passed to the Bowers’ daughter, Lois Bower Latimer. She lived in Sparta, and
apparently kept the house as rental property. She was widowed in 1961, and moved back to
Shellman. She lived in this house at the time of her death in 1970.

com link

Mrs. Harold (Ann) Harbison

For information on the Harbison family, see 57 W Phelps St.

12/18/1889

105 College St

e Part of the Crittenden family holdings
acquired in 1871.

e The original lot now is divided into three lots:
47 E Phelps St, 105 College St and 111 College St.

From the Crittdn Brothers to CJ Greene
Notes: 1-acre vacant lot (210’ square). The SW corner of this lot is the SE corner of

the JG Sasser lot.
Source: Deed Book/EE/447

A deed for an adjacent lot reveals that this lot belongs to the Crittenden Brothers,
1/2/1903 and it has a rental house occupied by a Mr. Jones.
Source: Deed Book/HH/468

e From the estate of R F Crittenden to R M Bower in 1923
e From Bower’s estate to his daughter, Mae Bower White, in 1936

iﬁ;‘ﬁggg' Notes: .79-acre lot with house (163’ fronting on Plum St; 210’ fronting on College St).
Known as the “old Orr Lot”.
Source: Deed Book/QQ/474, XX/306-7
e From the estate of Mae Bower White to Carl Lawhorn in 1969
2/1/1969, e From Lawhorn’s estate to his widow, Maudine Thurmond Lawhorn, in 1974
11/1/1974 Notes: The lot has now been divided; this northern portion is 104’ N/S (fronting on

College St) x 163’ E/W. This portion contains the house.
Source: Deed Book/ZZ1/66-67, JJ2/33-4, Plat Book/4/82 (1964)

lot in 1903.

e Censuses indi

e Tax records say the house was built in 1920, but there was perhaps a rental house on the larger

o The 1923 deed refers to this as the “old Orr lot”, but no record can be found of an Orr family living
in this vicinity.

cate this house was rented until acquired by Carl Lawhorn in 1969.
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| o Later deeds: TT11/507-9

111 College St

From H A Crittenden to W S Curry on 1/2/1903

Notes: 3/8-acre vacant lot. Bounded north by Jane Culbreth; south by lot of Crittenden Brothers
where Tom Jones lives; west by Mrs. C D Crittenden.

Source: Deed Book/HH/468

2/3/1931,

2/17/1936,
6/17/1969,
7/27/1971

e Purchased by Mrs. Annie L Bower (sheriff’s sale) in 1931

e From Bower’s estate to her daughter, Mae Bower White, in 1936

e From White’s estate to her sister, Lois Bower Latimer, in 1969.

e From Latimer’s estate to Ben F Lunsford in 1971

Notes:

e Y -acre lot with house in 1931 (67’ frontage on College St). Known as the “old
Dannelly house and lot”. Dannelly lived here in 1920. Source: 1920 census link

e Vacant lotin 1969

Source: Deed Book/UU/427-8, XX/306, ZZ1/315 (Tract 2), DD2/17-9, Plat Book/4/82

(1964)

only one.

e Itisunclear as to whether there were two houses on the adjacent lots (105 and 111 College St) or

e Later deeds: TT2/10-1, WW3/100-2, GG4/345-51, Plat Book/6/279 (1989)
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119 College St

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e Acquired by J D Dantzler (Deed not located)
e From Dantzler to Crittenden Brothers in 1903
Notes: 1/3-acre lot, likely with house. Bounded north by H O Crittenden; south by
12/14/1903 Crittenden Brothers; west by the Glaze estate. Known as the Jane Culbreth Place
(she rented from Dantzler by 1902, see Deed Book/HH/501). Dantzler moved to
Eufaula shortly before the sale in 1903.
Source: Deed Book/J)/77
e Acquired by H O Crittenden (sheriff’s sale) in 1931
e From Crittenden to his wife, Mrs. Mary Ada Crittenden, in 1933
2/3/1931, Notes: Bounded north by vacant lot of Mrs. H L Walker.
2/18/1933 e The house was occupied by Warren MclLeod in 1931.
e The house was occupied by L G Brown in 1933.
Source: Deed Book/UU/427, WW/519
e From Mrs. Mary Ada Crittenden to W R Puckett in 1948
e From Puckett to A Floyd Scarborough in 1958
1/1/1948, e From Slcarborougf'l’s heirs to Walker Hurt
3/25/1958, Notes: 100’ N/S x 173’ E/W.
5/6/1970 e Puckett appears to have purchased this house to rent to Scarborough, who was
his employee. The Scarboroughs lived here by 1950, then bought the house in
1958. They were the first owners to occupy the house.
Source: Deed Book/EE1/550, AA2/528-30

Later deeds: WW3/100 (Tract 1), EE7/103

The Astor Floyd Scarborough family

Floyd Scarborough was from Damascus. He married Aillene Jones in the early 1930s.

In 1940, they lived in Ft. Gaines, where he was employed by the Columbian Peanut Co. By 1950,
they had moved to Shellman, where he was superintendent for the Columbian Peanut Co.
Scarborough was killed in an automobile accident in 1963 (link). His widow remained here for a

time. She remarried later in the 1960s; the family sold the house in 1970.
She died in 1995.

Source: Ancestry.com link

April 7, 2024 © Jim Wooten

Page 124 of 503



https://www.newspapers.com/image/398271288/?terms=scarborough%20shellman&match=1
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=astor+floyd_scarborough&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1914&death=1963_shellman-randolph-georgia-usa_19431&count=50

Shollmar Shellman Historic Buildings
%

2 (1830-1950)

122 College St

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

rom Crittenden family to S J Payne; then from his estate to C M Cheney

2/23/1893, Notes: 1 acre (210’ square), no improvements. Bounded south by the old Cheshire

5/23/1900 lot (later Mrs. S J Payne).

Source: Deed Book/EE/40, FF/577

From C M Cheney to Dr. E C McCurdy

10/23/1905 Notes: 1-acre vacant lot. The house was built by 1910.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/453, 1910 census link

Acquired by H P Whaley (Deed not located)

Notes: 1 acre (210’ square), with house. The purchase probably occurred around

January, 1917:

January, 1917 | ¢ McCurdy bought a house on Park St in February, 1917.

e Whaley sold his house on Pearl St in November, 1916.

e Whaley did not live here long, if at all. He was back on his farm by 1920.

Source: Deed Book/TT/293-4, TT/294, Plat Book/4/72 (1964)

From H P Whaley to J S Mcleod

9/3/1928 Notes: 1 acre (210’ square), with house.

Source: Deed Book/TT/293-4, TT/294, Plat Book/4/72 (1964)

From J S McLeod to Joe Wyatt Mason

2/2/1964 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/UU1/487, RR8/1

Dr. E C McCurdy family

See 122 Park St for information on the McCurdy family.

The H P Whaley family

See 3477 Pearl St for information on the Whaley family.

The John Sydney Mcleod, Sr. family

e MclLeod was from Alabama. After serving in WW |, he moved to Shellman. In 1920, McLeod was
employed as a farm manager, supporting three of his siblings. They were boarding at the S L
Arthur house on Pearl St.

e Laterin 1920, McLeod married Annie Thompson. In 1928, they purchased this house on College
St, where they lived until their deaths; his in 1962; hers in 1964.

e Mcleod was a policeman in 1930, but later returned to farming.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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Shollmary Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

125 College St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

From H A Crittenden to J J Roberts

Notes: Fronting 120’ on College St, no improvements. Bounded south by lot of
11/28/1905 Crittenden Brothers known as the Culbreth lot. Roberts probably built a house soon
after buying the lot.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/503

From Mrs. S V Roberts to Mrs. H L Walker

Notes: Lot with house (120" N/S x 137’ E/W). The Robertses enlarged the house
4/15/1910 (link). The house was lost by 1931, likely the reason the Walkers moved to Pearl St in
1927.

Source: Deed Book/NN/47

From Ruth Orr Clare (daughter of Lota Walker Orr) to Dan & Marcia Boyd
4/12/1982 Notes: The deed conveys this vacant lot and the house on Pearl St.

Source: Deed Book/YY2/107, Plat Book/2/210 (1960)

The James J Roberts family

The Roberts family moved to 3422 Pearl St; refer there for information on the family.

The Herbert Lee Walker family

The Walkers moved to 3410 Pearl St in 1927; refer there for information on the family.
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Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

w %
130 College St (Fictitious street number)
e Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.
e Part of the 60-acre tract purchased by Mrs. C M (Fanny) Cheney, daughter of H A Crittenden, in
1895.

e From CM Cheney to R F Ivey in 1905

e From lvey to Inez Naomi & Annie Virginia Coxwell in 1906
12/26/1905, Notes: 1-acre \_/asa.nt lot (2.10' square). Bounded north by the Union Baptist Church
3/19/1906, lot (aka the Primitive Baptist Ch'urch lot). ‘
7/2/1935, e The house was probably built shf)rtly after the Coxwell purchase in 1906; the
7/4/1936 1910 census shows that the family lived here.

o The house was seized by the City of Shellman for back taxes in 1935, but

reclaimed by Inez Coxwell Hood in 1936.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/601, 11/602, XX/420

From Inez Coxwell Hood to Martha Sale (later Martha Ferman)

Notes:
7/7/1936, e The transfer occurred in 1936; there was a mortgage, which was paid in 1945.
7/20/1945 e Mrs. Ferman lived in Tampa, so this house was likely used as rental property or

vacant until it was lost at an unknown date.

Source: Deed Book/XX/421, DD1/227, Plat Book/2/118 (1960)

From Martha Sale Ferman to the City of Shellman
10/26/2006 Notes:

Notes: Source: Deed Book/UU9/429

The Martha Miller Coxwell family

Mattie Miller was born in 1842 in Randolph County, one of the first children to be born here. In
1861, she married Dr. George Washington Coxwell, who died in 1880.

The widow and several of her children remained on the Coxwell’s farm SE of Shellman until
moving here in 1906.

The youngest daughter, Florence, married Owen Sale in 1905; they built a home across the street
at 141 College St.

Mattie Coxwell died in 1926. In 1930, the house was occupied by two of her children, Virgil and
Ann. They both died in 1932 (link), and the house was probably vacant for a time.

The house was seized by the City of Shellman for back taxes in 1935. Inez Coxwell (now Inez
Hood) reclaimed the house in 1936, and sold it to her niece, Martha Sale, for S1.

Miss Sale had just graduated from the University of Georgia. In 1937, she married James Ferman
of Tampa and moved there (link). She went on to become a prominent member of the Tampa
community (obituary).

Mrs. Ferman kept the house until 2006. She lived in Tampa, so this house was likely used as rental
property or vacant until it was lost at an unknown date.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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Shollmar Shellman Historic Buildings

j (1830-1950)

141 College St
s

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

10082014 -

o

. s T
From H O Crittenden to O C Sale

Notes: Fronting 105’ on College St, no improvements. Bounded north by Mrs. Love

Arthur; south by J J Roberts; west by vacant lot of Glaze estate. Sale mortgaged the

property to Sam Sheffield in 12/1908, by then with a house. This dates the house to

1908, and suggests it was built by Sheffield.

Source: Deed Book/LL/357, LL/457, NN/24, 00/128, YY/329

From Owen C Sale to Floye C (Mrs. Charles W) Allen

Notes:

8/23/1937 e The Sale family lived here at the time of the sale in 1937.

e Mrs. Allen still owned this lot in 1960.

Source: Deed Book/YY/329-30, Plat Book/2/210 (1960)

From Mrs. Floye C Allen to Mary (Mrs. Ruby Lee) Addison

7/15/1977 Notes: Mrs. Allen lived in this house at the time of the sale

Source: Deed Book/002/209-10, UU8/183

Later deeds: UU8/183

The Owen Cornelius Sale family

e Sale was raised near Brooksville by his grandparents, John H and Martha Ward Cox. He married
Florence Coxwell in 1905.

e Sale was a rural mail carrier in 1910, a farmer in 1920, and an automobile salesman in 1940.

e Sale sold the house in 1937, moving to Florida. He died suddenly in Ocala the next year (notice);
his widow moved to Jacksonville and later to Tampa where her children lived.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Charles Wesley Allen family

e Allen was a Randolph County farmer who married Floye Coleman in Alabama.

e His family moved from their farm to this house in Shellman in 1937.

e The Allens divorced in the 1940s. She remained in this house until selling it in 1977. She died in
1980

e Charles Allen moved back to the farm. He died in 1973.

Source: Ancestry.com link

5/9/1908
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149 College St

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

10.086.2014

From H O Crittenden to Mrs. Love C Arthur

Notes: Fronting 105’ on College St, no improvements. Bounded south by O C Sale lot;

west by T W Glaze estate and B F Crittenden. The house was built by 1910.

Source: Deed Book/LL/199

e From Mrs. Arthur to her brother, W R Curry, in 1919

e Acquired by CW Curry, brother of W R Curry and Love Arthur (Deed not located,

1/16/1919, but by 1920)

6/13/1927 e FromJR Curry (half-interest), son of C W Curry, to W R Curry in 1927

Notes:

Source: Deed Book/MM/418, QQ/99, SS/491, UU543

e The house seems to have been used as rental property until around 1919. In 1910, it was rented
to the J S Sale family. Mr. Arthur’s mother was a Sale, so they were probably related to the
landlords and their neighbors to the south, the Owen Sale family. Source: 1910 census link

e In 1920, it was owned and occupied by the C W Curry family (See below). Curry was a brother of
Love Arthur and W R Curry. Source: 1920 census link

e CW Curry died in 1921. The family sold their interests back to W R Curry, who gain used the
house as rental property. In 1930, it was likely rented to the James Bryant family. Source: 1930

10/3/1907

census link
e From W R Curry toJ CJackson in 1931
11/11/1931, e From Jackson to Mrs. Lizzie Reese in 1934
7/24/1934, e From Mrs. Reese’s heirs to her widower, B T Reese, in 1949
4/13/1949, e From B T Reese to Myrtle & Paul Byrd in 1950
10/2/1950 T;);Zs: Mrs. Reese lived in the house beginning in 1931, but did not purchase it until
Source: Deed Book/UU543, WW/300, WW/305, FF1/463, GG1/503
e From the estate of Paul Byrd to James Bethea in 1964
2/4/1964, e From Bethea to True Turner in 1964
5/2/1964, e From Turner to Lenora Brown in 1966
12/10/1966, e By descent to James Ferguson in 1988
8/12/1988 Notes:
Source: Deed Book/UU1/32, UU1/201, WW1/517, WW1/517-8 (mortgage)

Later deeds: WW8/7
The Robert Lee Arthur family
See 179 Buford St for information on the Arthur family.
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Shollmary Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

The Charles Willard Curry family

e Charles Curry was from Randolph County. He was the son of W S & Hester Martin Curry, and
brother of W R Curry.

e He moved to Shellman by 1900. In 1904, he married Louella Cannon in Dawson.

e In 1905, The Curry Co. opened a store in Dawson under Charles’ management (link). It sold
“pianos, organs, and buggies of high grade”. By around 1910, Curry was operating the store
independently, no longer as a partner. The store closed around 1916 and Curry moved back to
Shellman, where he again worked for the Curry Co. The move may have been related to the death
of his wife sometime after 1910. By 1920, he had married Ethel Haddock and was living here on
College St.

e Charles died suddenly in 1921 (obituary).

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Benjamin Thornwell Reese family

e Reese was from Buena Vista. He married Lizzie James in 1897.

e The Reeses moved to Shellman by 1909. He leased and operated the Sasser Hotel until 1910,
when he was an insurance agent.

e They lived in rented quarters until moving here on College St in 1931, then buying the house in
1934. They were the first owners known to occupy the house.

e The Reeses remained here until 1950. Mrs. Reese died in 1945; Mr. Reese took ownership from
the other heirs in 1949, but sold the house in 1950. He died in 1951.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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161 College St

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.
From H O Crittenden to Mrs. Mamie Turner

10/5/1936, Notes: In three deeds, Mrs. Turner assembles three vacant lots lot fronting 375’ on
6/19/1942, College St. Bounded south by Mrs. S T Reese. The 1942 deed reveals that Mrs.
8/5/1943 Turner has built a house on the original lot.

Source: Deed Book/XX/550, BB1/513, CC1/193
e From the estate of Mamie Belle Turner in 1969
o Life interest: to her husband and daughter
o Remainder interest: to her brother, Arthur R Turner

1/11/1969
5;24%979' e In 1979, to daughter Lenora Turner Brown Sills.
2/9/2000 g e In 2000, sold from Mrs. Sills estate.

Notes: Lot (150’ square) with house. Lot to the south owned by Lenora Turner

Brown in 1969.

Source: Deed Book/ZZ1/17, SS2/361, BB7/147, Plat Book/3/279 (1967)

The deeds suggest that the house on this lot was present in 2000. The current structure was built in

2017.

The Truman Turner family

e Truman Turner was from Calhoun County. He and Mamie Turner were married in Randolph
County around 1915.The couple farmed in Calhoun County, and later just south of Shellman.

e In 1936, Mamie Turner bought this lot and soon built a house here. In 1940, the house was
occupied by Emma Turner, Mamie’s widowed mother (link). She died in 1945.

e In 1950, the Truman Turners lived here (link).

e Llaterin 1964, Truman Turner bought the lot to the south, 149 College St. Source: Deed
book/UU1/32

e Mamie died in 1968; Truman died in 1978. The house passed to their daughter.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

190 College St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.
Part of the 60-acre tract purchased by Mrs. C M (Fanny) Cheney, daughter of H A Crittenden, in
1895.

Given by C M Cheney to the Deacons of the Union Primitive Baptist Church

Notes: One-acre lot (210" square). The NW corner of this lot is the SW corner of the
cemetery lot. The deed was not recorded until 1941.

Source: Deed Book/BB1/91, Plat Book/2/118 (1960)

7/26/1905

There is no record of this church before the 1905 deed. The church had been formed and elected
Deacons by 1905. There is no mention of a sanctuary; the deed implies that one is to be built.

A newspaper article in 1882 mentions a new church building in Ward (link). None of the other
churches in Shellman were building in 1882, so it may have been this church.

In 1906, the Harmony Grove Primitive Baptist Association met in Shellman, suggesting that there
was a church building there at the time. (link).

Cheney gave the land with the stipulation that it would revert to him if no longer used for church
purposes. A circa 1960 plat refers to the “old Union Primitive Baptist Church”, and seems to say
the lot has reverted to Cheney.

No further deeds have been found until 2006, when the vacant lot was donated to the City of
Shellman.
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Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

200 College St (East View Cemetery, fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings
acquired in 1871

From Crittenden Brothers to Town of Shellman
Notes: 4 acres (300’ N/S x 600’ E/W). Bounded north by street to Negro Baptist
5/20/1910 Church; east by C M Cheney; south by Primitive Baptist Church and C M Cheney;
west by Cemetery St. Already in use as a cemetery.
Source: Deed Book/MM/68-9
The present-day cemetery lot is seven acres (304’ N/S x 1003’ E/W). This is shown on a plat drawn
circa 1910, but no deed has been located to convey the additional acreage.
Source: Plat Book/2/118 (1960)
East View Cemetery
e The cemetery contains three gravestones from 1885, suggesting that it began that year.
e An 1895 plat shows “Eastview Cemetery” and locates the old, four-acre tract (Deed Book/EE/485)
e The land was donated to the city in 1910:
e Oldest gravestones: three gravestones are dated 1885 (link, link, link)
e Earliest deed to reference “Cemetery St”: 1891
e Earliest deed to reference: 1895 (Deed Book/EE/485)
e The lot may have been used as a cemetery by the adjacent Union Primitive Baptist Church before
it became a municipal cemetery.
e In 2023, the Find A Grave website (link) recorded 1,002 graves in the cemetery.
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Dean St

Dean St follows the dividing line between Lots 5/264 and 5/269. It connects US 82 with the railroad. It
is referenced in an 1881 deed, and was referred to in subsequent deeds as the Cuthbert Rd and the
Dawson-Cuthbert Rd.

Censuses of Dean St Plats of Dean St
e 1900 link e Plat book/2/135 (1933)
e 1910 link e Plat Book/2/228-239 (1962)
e 1920 link
e 1930 link
e 1940 link
e 1950 link
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6 Dean St

e Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871

e Acquired by J W Ellis by 1873 (See J W Ellis Tract)

e Originally part of a larger lot that was divided to form three present-day lots: 1263 W Ward St, 6
Dean St, and 20 Dean St (See 1263 W Ward St).

e Acquired by William Grimes (Deed not located, but probably from Jim Odum, see
1263 W Ward St)

e From William Grimes to H H Hart

Notes: Half-acre lot with house. This does not seem to be the original house built by

Paschal on the larger lot; it was likely built around 1900.

Source: Deed Book/11/389, RR/53 (mortgage)

From H H Hart to Isaac Ford

12/2/1919 Notes: Lot with house (135’ N/S x 128’ E/W). Known as the Raymond Jones house.

Source: Deed Book/PP/152

e From Isaac Ford to E C McCurdy in 1929

e From McCurdy to Omie Jackson in 1931

Notes: Bounded north by Ella Riley; east by Watson. Ford defaulted on a mortgage

obtained in 1929.

Source: Deed Book/TT/425, UU/41-2 (mortgage), UU/419, 001/25

Acquired by Rev. Hank Williams (Deed not located, but after 1950 (Referenced in Deed

Book/BB7/342).

Early occupancy of this house in unclear:

e The Grimes family cannot be identified. They are not listed in a census in this vicinity, so they
presumably did not live in the house.

e Raymond Jones apparently rented this house in 1920 link.

e Isaac Ford also purchased 26 Dean St, but lived at 75 Buford St. Information on his family can be
found there.

e The Tom & Omie Jackson family apparently occupied the house by 1930.

The Tom Jackson family

e Tom and Omie Jackson were married in 1904.

e The family rented houses in this immediate area by 1920. They purchased this house in 1931.

e Tom operated a farm in 1920; in 1930, he worked at the fertilizer plant. In 1940, he was a
gardener for a private home.

e Tom died in 1948; Omie was still here in 1950, as were her daughter and granddaughter. Source:
1950 census link.

Source: Ancestry.com link

11/30/1904

2/20/1929,
4/13/1931
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20 Dean St

e Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871

e Acquired by J W Ellis by 1873 (See J W Ellis Tract)

e Originally part of a larger lot that was divided to form three present-day lots: 1263 W Ward St, 6
Dean St, and 20 Dean St (See 1263 W Ward St).

From Jim Odum to Ed Odum

Notes: Lot with house. Bounded south by William Grimes; east by Jesse Hawkins;

north By Worthy(?) Place. This does not seem to be the original house built by

11/19/1
ISE0s Paschal on the larger lot; it was likely built around 1900. Ed Odum is probably the
first owner to occupy the house.
Source: Deed Book/LL/298
From Ed Odum to Henry Hart
10/26/1908 Notes: Bounded south by William Grimes; east by Jesse Hawkins; north By C M

Cheney.

Source: Deed Book/LL/411

Occupancy of this house in unclear. No deeds have been located after 1908. A 1929 mortgage for the
houses to the north and south reference this lot as still owned by Hart.

Ed Odum

Little information can be found on Odum. He was likely a relative of Jim Odum, from whom he bought
the house.

26 Dean St

e Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871

e Acquired by J W Ellis by 1873 (See J W Ellis Tract). This lot formed the NW corner of the Ellis Tract.

e FromJ B PaynetoJ A Payne in 1881

e From Payne’s estate to Mrs. C M Cheney in 1888

Notes: 90’ N/S x 180’ E/W. The lot contains a 3-room frame cabin with garden; the

1881 deed specifies that the house is to be “blocked up and finished, being covered

with boards, chimney and all to be repaired, and made perfect and in good

condition.”

Source: Deed Book/FF/576-8

e From Mrs. C M Cheney to Isaac Ford in 1926

e Acquired by Clifford Henderson (Deed not located)

e Quitclaim deed from Henderson in 2010

Notes:

e The 2010 deed quotes an unidentified earlier deed, mentioning that the three-
room house still stands on the south part of this lot.

Source: Deed Book/SS/260, UU/41-2 (mortgage), TT10/283-4

e |tis unclear when/if the house was owner-occupied. The old cabin was lost at an unknown date.

e Isaac Ford also purchased 6 Dean St, but lived at 75 Buford St. Information on his family can be
found there.

6/18/1881,
12/3/1888

10/14/1926,
4/29/2010

April 7, 2024 © Jim Wooten Page 136 of 503




Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

40 Dean St

e Part of the 53-acre tract purchased by Z T Phelps in
1873.

e Part of the Worthy Lot purchased by O Z Dean, Sr. in
1903 (See 12 W Phelps St)

From the heirs of O Z Dean to his daughter, Mrs. Rosa Pearl Lester
4/17/1931 Notes: .62-acre lot with house (128’ N/S x 210’ E/W).

Source: Deed Book/UU/421

e From Mrs. Rosa Pearl Lester to Lola May Lemons in 1944

e From Lemons to her husband, Jessie Lemon, in 1974

e Sold by the family in 2012

Notes: .62-acre lot with house (128’ N/S x 210’ E/W).

Source: Deed Book/DD1/21

e Itis likely that there was a house on the original, two-acre Worthy lot by 1884. The most likely
candidate for that house is one that stood at 12 W Phelps St. Tax records say this house was built
in 1908, when the lot was owned by O Z Dean.

e Llater deeds: GG11/139

The Jessie M Lemon family

e Jessie Lemon was from Shellman. He married Lola Mae Parker in 1929.

e The family rented houses nearby before buying this house in 1944.

e Jessie was a farm laborer when younger; in 1950, he worked at the sawmill.

e Jessie died in 2006.

Source: Ancestry.com link

10/1/1944,
4/27/1974
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52 Dean St

e Part of the 53-acre tract purchased by Z T Phelps in
1873.

e Part of the Worthy Lot purchased by O Z Dean, Sr. in
1903 (See 12 W Phelps St)

e From the heirs of O Z Dean to his daughter, Mrs. Daisy Estelle Jones in 1931
e From Jones to Elijah Parker in 1944

4/17/1931,  Elij .
1/3/1944 e The property is still registered to Parker.

Notes: .62-acre lot with house (128’ N/S x 210’ E/W)
Source: Deed Book/UU/421, CC1/331

This house appears to be quite old. It has two front doors and a center chimney, suggesting it was a

sharecropper cabin.

The Elijah J Parker family

e Elijah Parker was from Randolph County, the son of Edmond and Liza Parker. He and Mary Parker
were married in 1905.

e Elijah lived in Edison for a time, but was back in Shellman by 1930.

e In 1930 and 1940, the Parker family lived in rented quarters. Parker bought this house on Dean St
in 1944,

e Parker was a farm hand, likely working for the Dean family.

e Parker died in 1954.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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67 Dean St
The early history of this lot is unknown.

From Mrs. Ellen G Hewell to H H Hart
Notes: Vacant lot (210" N/S x 105’ E/W). Hart built a house here, which was rented

Sy by, and soon sold to, George D Coleman.
Source: Deed Book/NN/114
From H H Hart to George D Coleman
6/23/1911, Notes: Coleman already lived on the lot in 1911. In 1912, the lot is expanded by 25’
2/5/1912 westward. Coleman moved to 3518 Pearl St in 1929.
Source: Deed Book/NN/175, NN/252
From G D Coleman to J P Merritt
7/13/1928 Notes: The lot is now 210’ N/S x 130’ E/W. Coleman lived in the house at the time of
the sale.
Source: Deed Book/TT/256
e FromJ P Merritt to W J Paul in 1935
4/19/1935, e From Paul to C E Mainor in 1937
12/2/1937 Notes:
Source: Deed Book/XX/56, YY/455
e From C E Mainor to Obe Roby in 1944
2/12/1944, e By descent in.1958 ‘to Mae Roby (life interest) and his daughter, Frances R
7/5/1958 Mason (remainder interest)

e Notes:
Source: Deed Book/CC1/364, 001/445 (Tract #1)

Later deeds: TT9/263 (Tract #1)

The George Daniel Coleman family

1900.

e George Coleman was from Terrell County. He and Annie Richardson were married in Shellman in

e The family rented on Church St in 1910. They bought this house in 1911, and lived here until
1928/9, when they purchased the house at 3518 Pearl St.

e Their house on Pearl St was sold in 1940, and they moved in with their daughter in Auburn, AL.
They remained there until their deaths; his in 1947 and hers in 1962.

e Coleman was a clerk in various stores in Shellman.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Joe Payne Merritt family

e Payne Merritt was from Shellman, the son of George & Ida Merritt. After serving in WW |, he
returned to the family farm. He and Voncile Hilton were married in 1928.
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e Merritt purchased this house in 1928.

e Merritt was a farmer.

e They died in Shellman: Payne in 1981 and Voncile in 2003.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Abraham Obe Roby family

e Obe Roby was from Randolph County, the son of Alex and Fannie Roby. He and Mae Hilton were
married in 1921.

e Roby was a farmer.

e The Robys bought this house in 1944. They remained here until their deaths; his in 1957 and hers
in 1962.

e Their daughter, Mrs. Frances Mason, then owned the house until 2006.

Source: Ancestry.com link

127 Dean St

Part of the holdings acquired by
Henry Dean in 1869.

] e

|
L 4
ol
|

e Descended in the Dean family

e (O ZDean, Jr. acquired sole interest in 1924

e From Dean to his wife, Arlena Dean, in 1931.

Notes: 38.1 acres; the NE corner of Lot 264.

Source: Deed Book/RR/319, VV/177, Plat Book/2/135

From the estate of Mrs. O Z Dean, Jr. to J C & Irma S Kimbrell

2/25/1974 Notes: 1.43-acre lot with house.

Source: Deed Book/HH2/633

The O Z Dean, Jr. family

e 0 ZDean was born in Shellman, the son of O Z Dean, Sr, and Tallulah Phelps Dean. He married
Arlena Bynum by 1920.

e In 1920, the family lived at 12 W Phelps St. This house seems to have been lost by 1930, when the
Deans were renting an apartment from Mrs. Ivey at 3300 Pearl St.

e By 1940, they had moved to this house on Dean St. Tax records say the house was built in 1935.

e O Zwas a railroad station agent in several places, including Leary, Graves (link), and Comer, AL
(link). He returned to Shellman around 1908. In 1910, he was vacationing in Salt Lake City when
he was knocked unconscious and robbed while visiting the zoo (link).

e He was a farmer later in life. He and his brother, Phelps Dean, farmed their family land.

e The Deans remained here until their deaths; his in 1961 and hers in 1973.

Source: Ancestry.com link

12/27/1924,
6/6/1931
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Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

Division St

An 1886 deed refers to this as a “wagon road”. It later became known as the street that connected
the railroad on the south to Pleasant Grove Baptist Church on the north. Each census gave the street
a different name. Today it is Division St.

Censuses of Division St Plats of Division St

e 1910 link e Plat Book/2/118 (1960)
e 1930 link

e 1950 (link)

300 Division St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871

The first African American Episcopal (AME) Church in Shellman was located here. It was built
on land owned by the Crittenden family, so there are no deeds to date the construction; it
was likely in the 1870s.

The church was replaced by the Shellman Institute in 1885. The replacement church was
located at 97 John Smith St.

There was an associated parsonage located at 648 Division St.

448 Division St

e Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.
e Part of the 60-acre tract purchased by Mrs. C M (Fanny) Cheney, daughter of H A Crittenden, in

1895
From Mrs. C M Cheney to Peter & Josie Henry
9/30/1947, Notes: Lot with house where the Henrys have lived for several years. Bounded north
1/26/1948 by Em Spear; east by Gilbert Lattimore.
Source: Deed Book/EE1/431 (mortgage), EE1/567
From the Henry’s sole heir to Joe Cooper
8/18/1972 Notes:
Source: Deed Book/FF2/21-2

Later deeds: CC4/115

The Peter Henry family

Peter Henry was from Randolph County, the son of George and Mary Henry. He and Josie
were married in 1908; both had been married before.

In 1910, the Henrys lived on a farm in Calhoun County. In 1920, they were farming near
Shellman.

In 1930, the Henrys were retired and renting this house, which they purchased in 1947.
Peter Henry died in Worth County in 1953. The date of Josie Henry’s death is unknown. Their
sole heir sold the house in 1972.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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522 Division St

e  Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in
1871.

e Part of the 60-acre tract purchased by Mrs. CM
(Fanny) Cheney, daughter of H A Crittenden, in 1895

e From C M Cheney to Isom (lke) Smith in 1905

e Foreclosed by Shellman Banking Co. in 1907

Notes:

e Half-acre vacant lot (105’ N/S x 210’ E/W). The SW corner of this lot is 210’ N of
the intersection of Plum St and Division St.

e The 1907 mortgage reveals that there is a house on the lot.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/391, LL/93 (mortgage)

e From Shellman Banking Co to R L Compton in 1907

10/15/1907, e From Compton to J F Crittenden in 1907

12/19/1907, Notes:

4/15/19009, e In 1910, Ike Smith still lived in the house and listed himself as owner.

1/2/1913 e In 1913, John Spear was renting the house.

Source: Deed Book/KK/194, LL/303, LL/615, MM/112 (mortgage), NN/333

e From H O Crittenden to Em Spears in 1937

e Descended from Spears to her son, James Williams, thence to his son, Willie
Arthur Williams, in 1979.

e Sold by Williams in 1984

Notes:

e The 1937 deed reveals that Crittenden had agreed to sell the house to John
Spears, and it was then occupied by his widow, Em Spears. The Spears had
been paying for the house over time.

e Adeed for the lot to the south (448 Division St) confirms that Em Spears
lives here in 1948. The 1950 census also confirms she is here.

e The 1960 plat does not show this lot. It may be that the ownership of the lot
was unclear at the time.

Source: Deed Book/YY/55-6, TT2/282-3, BB3/871-2, Plat Book/2/118 (1960)
The Isom (lke) Smith family

e Few records of Smith can be found.

e |ke and Delia Bibb were married in Randolph County in 1894.

e Smith bought this lot in 1905 and built a house here. The house was foreclosed, but he
remained there for a time.

e By 1913, the house was rented to John Spears.

e In 1920, the Smiths were living in Sylvester. There is no further information on the family.

Source: Ancestry.com link

9/25/1905,
1/18/1907

1/20/1937,
9/4/1979
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The Emmie Spears family

e John and Emmie Thomas were married in 1904.

e They were renting this house in 1913. They divorced by 1920.

e Emmie remained in this house, paying for it over time. It was conveyed to her in 1937.
e John was a ditch digger. Emmie was a laundress, and later a maid.

e Emmie remained here until her death. The house descended in her family.

Source: Ancestry.com link

564 Division St

e  Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in
1871.

e Part of the 60-acre tract purchased by Mrs. C M
(Fanny) Cheney, daughter of H A Crittenden, in 1895

From C M Cheney to Dan Owen to R F Crittenden, Jr.

12/29/1906, Notes: 78’ N/S x 210’ E/W, with house. The NW corner of this lot is the SW corner of
11/21/1911 the Eliza Melton lot.

Source: Deed Book/LL/278, NN/218

e From W R Curry to Sarah Rivers in 1931
e By descentin 1997

1/9/1931, Notes: Half-acre lot with house. Bounded north by George Hadden; east by Frank
12/5/1997 Cox; south by house of H O Crittenden. Better known as the Charlotte Spear house;

now known as the Sara and Alonzo Rivers house.
Source: Deed Book/UU/337, 001/396 (mortgage), 116/370, Plat Book/2/118 (1960)

The Dan Owen family

Dan and Missouri Owen were married in 1887. Dan was a farm laborer in 1900; the family rented
a house on Railroad St.

In 1906, they bought this house on Division St. In 1910, Dan was a contractor providing cross ties
to the railroad.

Owens sold the house in 1911. No further information can be found on the family.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Sarah Rivers family

Lonzie and Sarah Rivers were married in 1918.

Lonzie was a farmer, employed by J W Lunsford, in 1918. Later he was a domestic servant and
butler.

The family remained here until their deaths. The house descended within the family in 1997.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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660 Division St (Fictitious street number)

e Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e This house was built as the parsonage for the first African Methodist Episcopal (AME) church in
Ward’s Station. It was built before 1894, while the lot was still owned by the Crittenden family.
When the church relocated to John Smith St, this house was sold.

e From the Crittenden family to Frank Melton in 1894

e From Melton to his wife, Eliza Melton, in 1895

2/3/1894, Notes: One-acre lot (209’ square). Bounded west by “the street from Shellman
2/11/1895 Institute to Negro Baptist Church.” Known as “the parsonage lot”, near the old
Methodist Church lot. There is likely a house on the lot.

Source: Deed Book/EE/373, EE/374

From Eliza Melton to R G McCurdy
4/9/1909 Notes: One-acre lot with house. Mrs. Melton now lives in Terrell County.
Source: Deed Book/LL/531

From C M Cheney to George, Fannie, and Pauline Hadden
12/5/1906 Notes: Four square acres in the NE corner of the Cheney tract.
Source: Deed Book/LL/47, LL/56 (correction)

Acquired by M M Crittenden (Deed not located)
e From Crittenden to Fannie Hadden in 1923
e By descent from Fannie Hadden to Joe Nelson; then Julia Nelson

1/17/1923, | ; !
9/6/1938, o From the heirs of Julia Nelson to Andrew Nelson in 1970
2/4/1970 Notes: The 1923 deed conveys the house and lot “known as the Frank Melton
House”, plus the four acres acquired in 1906.
Source: Deed Book/QQ/384, QQ/404, AA1/55, AA2/84-5 (Tract #2), Plat Book/2/118
(1960)
e From Andrew Nelson to James A Horne in 1970
e From Horne to Clifford & Rachel McDaniel in 1972
Notes:
2/4/1970, e The 1938 deed conveys the house, which is identified as the Frank Melton
8/30/1972 House. It also reveals that George Hadden occupied the house at one time, and

Fannie Hadden occupied it at the time of her death. The deed also conveys the
four-acre tract.

e The 1972 deed conveys the entire five-acre tract and the house.

Source: Deed Book/AA2/94, FF2/275, HH2/261 (mortgage), Plat Book/2/118 (1960)

There is conflicting information in the deeds concerning the additional four-acre tract. The tract was
included in deeds by 1923, and still included in the 1972 deed. However, the four-acre tract was
purchased by Jeff Pipkin in 1938, and sold to the City of Shellman from his estate in 1979.

Source: Deed Book/AA1/55, RR2/459-60

e This lot is located on the east side of Division St, but none of its deeds pinpoint the exact location
in the north/south direction. It is possible to place the lot at this particular location from two
sources:

o Adeed for the adjacent lot on the south (564 Division St) identifies this lot as being the
one occupied by George Hadden.
o The 1960 plat shows the location of the Nelson lot.
e Later deeds: QQ2/546-7 (Half interest, East half), 1J5/286

The Frank Melton family
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e Frank Melton moved to Shellman, along with three brothers, from Alabama. He was in Randolph
County by 1879, when he married Eliza Daniel. Both would have been born into slavery.

e In 1880, Daniel was a laborer; by 1900, he owned both his house and a farm. There is no census
record of them in 1910 or later.

Source: Ancestry.com link 1910 link

The George Hadden family
e Few details can be found of George and Fannie Hadden. They were married in 1890. They

worked on rented farmland around Shellman.

e They seem to have been divorced when Fannie bought this house in 1923.
e The house descended from Fannie to the Nelson family, until sold in 1970.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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678 Division St (Fictitious street number)

e Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in
1871.

e Part of the 60-acre tract purchased by Mrs. C M
(Fanny) Cheney, daughter of H A Crittenden, in 1895

Sty

e From C M Cheney to the Spear family (Nicey, Gilbert, and Mattie) in 1905
10/6/1905, e Nicey and Mattie deeded their shares to Gilbert in 1909 femd 1.913
9/21/1909, Notes: %-acre lot (195’ N/S x 210’ E/W). The SW corne.r of this lot is 30’ north of the
4/7/1913 NW corner of the Eliza Melton lot. The lot was vacant in 1905, but the 1910 census
confirms that the house has been built on the lot.
Source: Deed Book/JJ/411, LL/614, NN/358, QQ/232 (mortgage), UU/85 (mortgage)
e From Gilbert Spear to the Curry Co. (sheriff’s sale) in 1932
8/2/1932 e From the Curry Co. to Jentsey & Everitt Morris in 1945
9/22/194'5' e Everitt Morris gives his half-interest to his wife, Jentsey Morris, in 1952
10/11/1952, e Descended to Morris’s heirs in 1972, who kept the house until 1987.
4/27/1972 poLeS:
Source: Deed Book/VV/358, CC1/363-4,CC1/372-3 (mortgage), 111/506, 112/349-50,
Plat Book/2/118 (1960), 5/104 (1979)

Later deeds: VV3/338 (Tract #1)

Gilbert Spear

e Gilbert Spear was from the Brooksville area, the son of Herrod and Nancy (Nicey) Spear. He and
Martha (Mattie) Simolton were married in 1901.

e The family purchased this house in 1905. By 1910, Gilbert was single and living here with his
mother.

e Gilbert worked at odd jobs and farm labor. However, in 1920, Gilbert was married to Essie Dykes
Humphries and living in Dawson, where Gilbert worked for the railroad.

e Gilbert returned to Shellman in the 1920s; he lived here until the house was sold for back taxes in
1932. He died in 1937.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Everitt Morris family

e Everitt Morris was from Alabama. He was in Shellman by 1920.

e |n 1940, Everitt owned a house on Prince Rd. By 1945, he had married Jentsey Christian; the
couple purchased this house on Division St.

e Everitt worked for the town of Shellman in the water works and electric plant. Jentsey was a
teacher.

e Jentsey Morris died around 1972; Everitt died in 1976.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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4
690 Division St (Fictitious street number)
e Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.
e Part of the 60-acre tract purchased by Mrs. C M (Fanny) Cheney, daughter of H A Crittenden, in
1895
From Annie Cheney to Oscar & Dollie Mae Jones
Notes: Half-acre vacant lot.
e Bounded south by Morris; west by Division St.
8/7/1948 . Y
e The 1950 census suggests the Jones family built a house and moved here shortly
after they purchased the lot (link).
Source: Deed Book/FF1/179-80, 111/69 (mortgage)
Purchased by James A Horne
12/1/1981 Notes: Horne assumed the mortgage, and in this deed purchased the foreclosed
property.
Source: Deed Book/XX2/574 (sheriff’s sale)
Later deeds: VV3/338 (Tract #2)
The Oscar A Jones family
e Little can be found on this family.
e Oscar worked for the Robinett Brothers Lumber Co.; Dollie was a nurse and midwife.
e Oscardiedin 1969.
Source: Ancestry.com link
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Fountain Bridge Rd

Fountain Bridge crosses the Pachitla Creek in a swamp in south-central Randolph County. This was a
strategic place for a bridge; it provided a gateway for farmers in the southern part of Randolph
County and the northern part of Calhoun County to access the railroad depot in Shellman. A plank
bridge already existed here in 1870, when the need to improve the bridge, and make it passable even
under wet conditions, was recognized (link). The work was probably done in the mid-1870s. Fountain
Bridge Rd probably existed by that time. The Crittenden family owned the east side of Fountain Bridge
Rd; they began selling lots along the road in the mid-1890s. Mary Jane Turner owned the west side of
Fountain Bridge Rd; she sold lots on the northern end of the street before 1890, but the lots further
south were not sold until 1910-15, after they were acquired by Mike Cox.

Censuses of Fountain Bridge Rd

e 1900 link
e 1910 link
e 1920 link
e 1930 link
e 1940 link
e 1950 link

Plats of Fountain Bridge Rd:
e Deed Book/HH/340 (1895, plat)
e Plat Book/6/38 (1984)
e Book/6/158 (1987)
e Plat Book/6/218 (1988)
e Plat Book/7/262 (1988)
e Plat Book/8/176 (1995)
e Deed Book/ UU10/201 (2010)
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R G McCurdy Farm

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e From the Crittenden family to H Reid Crittenden in 1895
e Crittenden family divisions of property in 1902
Notes: Reid Crittenden assembled a tract of 43 acres from Crittenden family holdings

8/9/1895, in the eastern section of Lot 5/270. Bounded north by the lots of Vandergriff and
8/20/1902 Moorman; east by Shellman-Morgan Rd; south by Mrs. M L Oliver; west by Fountain
Bridge Rd. Eight lots along Fountain Bridge Rd had already been sold and were
excluded, as shown on the plat.
Source: Deed Book/HH/340 (plat), HH/337-39
From Reid Crittenden to R G McCurdy
11/30/1908 Notes: 43-acre tract described above.
Source: Deed Book/KK/314-5
From Mrs. M J Oliver to R G McCurdy
1/18/1911 Notes:.99.45—acre tract. The northern half of Lot 5/271. McCurdy’s Farm now
comprises 143 acres.
Source: Deed Book/NN/150
e  McCurdy divided the farm into six tracts, which were offered at auction on
7/16/1920. No tracts were sold at the auction.
e The reason for the auction is unclear, but McCurdy was an active investor in real
7/16/1920 estate, so perhaps this was just another transaction for him.

e A plat was drawn to show the six tracts. The plat also locates six dwellings on the
tract.
Source: Deed Book/PP/345 (plat)

McCurdy later sold the six tracts as follows.

e Tract 1: Purchased by Anna C Pipkin in 1920 (See 2365 Fountain Bridge Rd).

e Tracts 2 & 3 (southern section): Purchased by W R Terry in 1927. Source: Deed Book/SS/585

e Tract 3 (northern section): Purchased by W R Curry in 1920 (See 2365 Fountain Bridge Rd).

e Tracts 4,5,6: Purchased by Mercer Wooten and Oscar Crittenden in 1923. Source: Deed
Book/QQ/431

McCurdy was listed as a salesman through the 1910 census, but as a farmer from 1920 on. This
suggests he farmed this land, although he continued to live at his home at 26 College St. He owned
other farmland, which he kept. Refer to 26 College St for information on the McCurdy family.
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Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

Fountain Bridge Rd (East Side)

3454 Fountain Bridge Rd

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

From Crittenden Brothers to Trustees for New Harmony Baptist Church
Notes: One-acre lot, with the church already built. Bounded on the north by the land

L of Ben Moorman.
Source: Deed Book/CC/221, HH/340 plat
From the Trustees for New Harmony Baptist Church to the Trustees for Union
Baptist Church.

4/5/1921 Notes: Bounded on the east by Ben Moorman, north by Ben Moorman and Lennie

Tennell, and south by Ben Shed.
Source: Deed Book/PP/59, KK2/217

Union Baptist Church

e In 1921, New Pleasant Grove Baptist Church (located on Bethea St) and New Harmony Baptist
Church (located at this site) and merged to form Union Baptist Church.

e The lots of each were deeded to the new church.

e The original sanctuary has been replaced.

April 7, 2024

© Jim Wooten Page 150 of 503



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?key1=hh&key2=340&county=120&countyname=RANDOLPH&userid=746137&appid=4

Shollmary Shellman Historic Buildings
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2760 Fountain Bridge Rd (Fictitious street number)
Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.
From Mariah Adams to Ben Shed
Notes: 1 acre (210’ square), no improvements. Bounded north by New Harmony
Baptist Church.
e The 1911 mortgage reveal that Lou Shines was renting a house on this lot.
Source: Deed Book/GG/70, NN/221 (mortgage, Tract #2), PP/598 (mortgage
release), 1910 census link
00/162 (description of houses)
From Mattie Shed & Roger Jamison (the heirs of Ben Shed) to Charlie Benton
11/24/1956 Notes: The lot appears to have been vacant.
Source: Deed Book/001/544-5
e The lot appears to have been vacant in 1956. The current house on the lot was built in 1962,
e Later deeds: RR1/66, QQ2/542
The Ben Shed family
Ben Shed lived on Buford St before moving here; for information on the Shed family, refer to 100
Buford St.

5/27/1897

2734 (or 3428) Fountain Bridge Rd

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e From the Crittenden Brothers to M M & Oscar A Crittenden in 1902

12/31/1902, e From the Crittendens to Virginia Jones in 1905

9/12/1905 Notes: Half-acre vacant lot. Bounded north by Ben Shed.

Source: Deed Book/HH/466, J1/412

e  From Virginia Jones to J D Pipkin in 1930

e By descent in the family until 2010

Notes:

e In 1930, half-acre lot with house. Bounded north by Ben Shed; south by house
and lot of Virginia Jones.

e The deedsin 1979 and 2010 mistakenly say that this was a one-acre lot which
included the lot owned by Virginia Jones (which is correct) and the lot owned by
T J Jones (which is incorrect). This may have been caused by misunderstanding a
1943 mortgage loan made by Jeff Pipkin (Deed Book/CC1/118-9), which never
resulted in a transfer of the lot to Pipkin.

Source: Deed Book/UU/298 (mortgage), PP1/439, TT2/245-7 (Tract #1), VV10/233

e It appears that the Pipkins lived in the original house on this lot from 1930-1935.

e The current house on the lot was built in 1970, when the lot was owned by the Pipkins.

11/18/1930,
9/26/1979
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2710 Fountain Bridge Rd (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e From H O Crittenden to T J Jones in 1911
e From TJJones to Emma Burney & Lorene Jones in 1945
Notes: Half-acre lot.
e |n 1911, the vacant lot is bounded north by Virginia Jones; east by McCurdy;
south by Kimbrough; west by Fountain Bridge Rd.
e In 1945, the lot with house is bounded north by J D Pipkin; south by Jack Davis.
Source: Deed Book/NN/195, 00/162 (mortgage), CC1/118-9 (mortgage), DD1/311

10/12/1911,
4/11/1945

From Emma Burney & Lorene Jones to Jack & Eva B Davis

Notes: Half-acre lot with improvements. This deed combines the T J Jones lot with
12/11/1945 the Currington lot to the south (2708 Fountain Bridge Rd). Refer there for
subsequent history.

Source: Deed Book/DD1/312

Thomas J Jones and Virginia Jones owned several rental houses in Shellman. Refer to 74 Buford St for
information on the family.

2708 Fountain Bridge Rd (Fictitious street number)

R S R % e Part of the Crittenden family holdings
acquired in 1871.

e G W Kimbrough acquired this one-acre

vacant lot in 1891. From 1904-1909, he divided

his lot. He retained the northern quarter-acre

lot on which he lived; the remaining three-

quarter acre was sold as three parcels (See

3408 and 3404 Fountain Bridge Rd).

From Crittenden family to G W Kimbrough, Hancock County

Notes: 1 acre (210’ square). The NW corner of this lot is the SW corner of the
Brookins lot. Bounded west by road from Shellman to Fountain Bridge.
Source: Deed Book/JJ/102, HH/340 plat, UU/320 (mortgage)

1/2/1935 The Northern Quarter of the Kimbrough lot

10/27/1891
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From Frank Kimbrough to Jack and Eva Davis
Notes: 52.5" N/S x 210’ E/W. Bounded north by Tom Jones; south by Felix Glover.
Source: Deed Book/DD1/311
From Emma Burney & Lorene Jones to Jack & Eva B Davis in 1945
Notes: Half-acre lot with improvements in 1945.
o The Curringtons purchased the lot to the north from Tom Jones’s family. It
appears that there were two houses on the lot in 1945:
o One (still standing today) on the southern portion of the lot. Eva
12/11/1945 Currington likely used this for her grocery store.
o One (torn down in 2010) on the northern portion of the lot. This house
was sold in 1947 (See below).
e The 1954 mortgage reveals the Curringtons have a store on this lot; it may be
the house built by Jones, or another structure built as a store.
Source: Deed Book/DD1/312, KK1/307-8 (mortgage)
Notes: The northern portion of this lot was sold to Jim & Essie Lee Collins in 1947,
12/27/1947, and purchased back from them in 1968. They lived on their lot. A wooden house was
2/14/1968 located there which was torn down in 2010.
EE1/534, YY1/110
From the Davis estate to their heirs in 1992
7/7/1992 Notes:
Source: Deed Book/VV4/255 (Tract #1), FF7/43-6
e This is Tax Lot SHO3 073. Tax records list two houses standing on this lot.
o One was built in 1915; likely one of the T J Jones houses. This house was likely used by Eva
Currington for her grocery store.
o One was built in 1936; likely built by the Curringtons as their residence.
o This implies the Kimbrough house is no longer standing.
o In addition to the house still standing on the lot purchased from Jones, there was a house
torn down in 2010.
e Later Deeds: S510/537-9, UU10/201 (plat, 2010)
G W Kimbrough
e G W Kimbrough was a resident of Hancock County when he bought this lot in 1891. He quickly
divided the lot, selling three quarter-acre vacant lots, leaving himself a quarter-acre lot on the
northern boundary on which he apparently built a house.
e In 1920, he was a widower living here alone.
e Kimbrough was a Methodist minister. A 1917 deed for the lot to the north refers to this as the
“Preacher Kimble house”. In the 1910 census, there is a George Kimble, likely a misspelling link
Source: Ancestry.com link
The Jack Davis family
e Jack and Eva Bell were married in 1927. In 1930, they rented a house on Fountain Bridge Rd,
possibly this house which they purchased in 1935.
e By 1940, both Jack and Eva worked for Columbian Peanut Co. In 1945, they bought the adjacent
lot, where Eva was proprietress of a grocery store in 1950.
e Jack died in 1989.
Source: Ancestry.com link
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2690 Fountain Bridge Rd (Fictitious street number)

Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

a quarter-acre lot.

e Part of the Kimbrough lot (See 3412 Fountain Bridge Rd).
e The northern half-acre of the Kimbrough lot was divided into two lots. This is the southern parcel,

Notes:

10/29/1909,
11/15/1909

From Frank Kimbrough to Lula E Cooledge

e Quarter-acre vacant lot (45’ N/S x 210’ E/W). The second quarter of the
Kimbrough lot.

e Cooledge bought the lot for $30 and sold it to the Sheffield Brothers for $400
two weeks later. Cooledge then repurchased the lot and house in 1913. A
possible scenario is that the Sheffields built a house for the Cooledges in 1909,
but retained ownership until the Cooledges had fully paid for it.

Source: Deed Book/KK/551, NN/27, QQ/469, QQ/464-5 (mortgage)

e No deeds for this lot have been located between 1923 (when John Cooledge obtained a
mortgage) and 1957 (when the Glover family sold it).
e Deeds for the lot to the north reveals that Felix Glover lived here in 1930 and 1935. No censuses
record the Glover family living in this area.

7/8/1957 Notes:

From Benny & Willie J Glover to Fannie Mae Johnson

Source: Deed Book/NN1/503, TT3/178-9, TT3/180-3 (mortgage)

e Thisis Tax Lot SHO3 072.

e The house on this lot was lost after 1988.

The John H Cooledge family

Source: Ancestry.com link, link

e John Cooledge was from Clay County. He and Lula Davenport were married there in 1889. They
lived on a farm south of Shellman in 1900.

e They purchased this lot in 1909. They built a house and likely a shop here.

e John was a cobbler; he owned a shoe shop. Lula was a dressmaker and laundress.

e Luladiedin 1920. John mortgaged the house in 1923; there is no further record of the family.
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2680 Fountain Bridge Rd (Fictitious street number)

e Part of the Kimbrough lot (See 3412 Fountain Bridge Rd).

e The southern half of the Kimbrough lot was divided into two side-by-side lots. One fronted on
Fountain Bridge Rd; the other was behind it, and had access to the road via a 12’ strip.

e Arental house was likely built on each lot, but there is no record of that. The lots are now vacant.
This lot is not mapped.

SW Quadrant of Kimbrough lot, fronting on Fountain Bridge Rd.

10/24/1904 Notes: Quarter-acre vacant lot.

Source: Deed Book/JJ/220

SE Quadrant of Kimbrough Lot

e From G W Kimbrough to C W Martin

2/9/1905, e From Robert Harris to C J Greene

10/10/1905 Notes: % acre. The SE quadrant of the Kimbrough lot. The deed reserves a 12’ strip

for access to Buford St.

Source: Deed Book/1J/421, 11/422

SE Quadrant of Kimbrough Lot

From H O Crittenden to T J Jones

10/12/1911 Notes: In 1911, the half-acre lot is bounded north by Lula Cooledge; east by

McCurdy; south by Liza Davis; west by Fountain Bridge Rd.

Source: Deed Book/NN/195

This is Tax Lot SHO3 071.

2670 (or 3392) Fountain Bridge Rd

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

Acquired by John Daniel (Deed not located)

1895 Notes: Davis purchased his lot by 1895, as shown on the plat.

Source: Deed Book/ HH/340 plat

e Acquired by the Crittendens (Deed not located)

e From the estate of M M Crittenden to R C Bell in 1961

e From R C Bell to Ben & Ruby Powell in 1975

Notes: Lot with house (100’ N/S x 200’ E/W).

e A 1917 deed for the lot to the south reveals that the Crittendens had already re-
acquired this lot. The 1975 deed states that the lot was owned by M M
Crittenden for more than 30 years in 1961.

e Known as the John Daniel place.

Source: Deed Book/SS1/185, JJ2/298

The current houses on the lot were built in 1950 and 1976.

Little information on the Daniel family can be identified in Ancestry.com link

1/16/1961,
3/26/1975
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2650 Fountain Bridge Rd (Fictitious street number)
Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.
e From the Crittenden family to Tom Thomas
e From Thomas to John Newkirk

3/26/1894, g ] ]
9;19;1896 e From Reid Crittenden to John Newkirk
9/25/1896' Notes: Newkirk assembled a half-acre vacant lot. In 1896, bounded north by Davis;

south by Richmond Brown.

Source: Deed Book/HH/392, HH/393, HH/391, HH/340 plat, 00/163 (mortgage)

e This now-vacant lot is still owned by the Newkirk family.

e This is Tax Lot SHO3 069.

The John T Newkirk family

e John was from Randolph County. He married twice:

o He and Lula Williams were married in 1894. Lula died in 1919.
o He then married Isophene Brown by 1920.

e John assembled a tract on the east side of Fountain Bridge Rd (#2650) from 1894-96; he built a
house there between 1900 and 1910.

e In 1918, he purchased a lot across the street (2631 Fountain Bridge Rd). Census records confirm
that he lived in this vicinity, but do not identify whether he continued to live here at 2650
Fountain Bridge Rd, or if he built a house and moved to the new lot.

o The family remained here until at least 1950. In 1949, Newkirk sold the property across the street
to the family of his daughter, Susie (Mrs. Rawleigh) Parsons.

e John was a farmer in 1900, living in a rented farm house in this vicinity. Later he was a laborer and
then he worked at Shellman Oil Co. before returning to farm labor.

e John died in 1952. The family still owns both lots, now vacant.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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630 (or 3370) Fountain Bridge Rd

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

From te Crittenden fmin to Richmond Brown
Notes: Half-acre vacant lot (105’ N/S x 210’ E/W). Brown purchased the lot and built

Ty ol a house, where he lived in 1894.

Source: Deed Book/EE/123

e From Richmond Brown to | A & C W Martin in 1894
12/1/1894, e From the Martin Brothers to Davis Martin in 1897
9/20/1897 Notes: Half-acre lot, now with house (105’ N/S x 210’ E/W).

Source: Deed Book/EE/238, GG/257

From Davis Martin to Sophie Jackson

2/28/1901 Notes: Bounded north by the John Newkirk lot.

Source: Deed Book/HH/103

e Acquired by William Bell around 1940 (Deed not located)

e From William Bell to his two youngest sons, Harry Lee & Anthony James Bell, in
1946

o From the Bells to Garfield Daniel in 1958

Notes: Bounded north by Newkirk.

William Bell retained life interest in 1946

Source: Deed Book/EE1/10, 001/209

Definitely 3370 FB Rd

e Tax records say the house was built 1936

e Later deeds: YY2/589, EE6/358

Richmond Brown

No information can be found on Brown.

Steven & Sophia (Sophie) Jackson

e Steven and Sophie were married in 1877, and lived in Stewart County before moving to Shellman
by 1900. They bought this house in 1901.

e Steven was a farmer. He died in 1919; Sophie remained here until at least 1920.

e There is no further information on the family.

Source: Ancestry.com link, link

The William Bell family

e Very little information can be found on the Bell family.

e Bell bought the house around 1940. It descended to his two youngest sons, who sold it in 1958.

Source: Ancestry.com link

10/14/1946,
1/2/1958
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2620 (or 3368) Fountain Bridge Rd

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

3/26/1894,
9/19/1904

e From the Crittenden family to Thomas Williams in 1894

e From W J Oliver to Virginia Jones in 1904

Notes: Quarter-acre vacant lot. The SW corner of the Richmond Brown lot is the NW
corner of this lot. The 1904 handwritten deed was subsequently misread; “Richmond
Brown” was mistakenly transcribed as “Richard Brenew”. That mistake is carried
forward with all deeds from that point.

Source: Deed Book/TT/15 (2), JJ/209

11/26/1927,
11/6/1935,
2/2/1937

e From Virginia Jones to Dowell Shingles in 1927

e Mortgaged by Shingles in 1935; foreclosed in 1937

Notes: Quarter-acre lot (105’ square). Vacant in 1927; with house in 1935.
Source: Deed Book/TT/15, XX/216, YY/93 (3)

From Mrs. Leila Watson & J E McGlaun to James & Weeda Crumley

3/11/1937 Notes: Quarter-acre lot with house (105’ square).

Source: Deed Book/YY/154 (mortgage), YY/187

From James Crumley to Jimmie & Millie Marie Allen

12/30/1982 Notes: The house was still standing.

Source: Deed Book/ZZ2/306-7, ZZ2/308 (mortgage)

Later Deeds: UU3/170-3 (Tract #1), UU3/174-5 (Tract #1), WW3/59 (Tract #1, mortgage), 114/209,
EE13/678-80

The original house was replaced in 1997.
Later deeds (Tax Lot SHO3 067): JJ5/295, AA6/171-7, FF10/413-5, Plat Book/7/262
Later deeds (Tax Lot SHO3 067A): UU3/174, VV10/160

The Dowell Shingles, Jr. family

Dowell was from Americus. Dowell and Ada Shingles were married in 1898.

In 1900, the family was living on a farm in Davis County; his widower father lived with them.

By 1920, the family was renting a house on W Railroad St in Shellman. Dowell was a house
carpenter; Ada took in laundry.

They bought this lot on Fountain Bridge Rd in 1927 and built a house here by 1930. Dowell died in
1935. Ada then took out a mortgage, which was foreclosed in 1937.

Ada seems to have moved away from Shellman after the house was foreclosed, perhaps back to
Sumter County.

Source: Ancestry.com link

James C Crumley family

James was from Benevolence, the son of Paul Crumley. The family was living on a farm near
Shellman in 1930.

James married Weeda Hill in the 1930s. They bought this house in 1937. By 1940, they were using
the house as rental property.

James seems to have to Florida by 1940, where he eventually settled in Miami. There is no further
record of Weeda until 1961, when she married a Mr. Days.

In 1982, Paul sold this house and his parents’ house.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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2606 (or 3354) Fountain Bridge Rd

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

From Reid Crittenden to Pinkey Harris
9/21/1895 Notes: Half-acre vacant lot (105’ square). Bounded north by Williams.
Source: Deed Book/EE/386
From Pinkey Harris to Thomas Jones
Notes: Irregular lot with house, % acre (210’ square, with the NW quarter excluded).
Bounded north by Steve Jackson and W J Oliver; east by Reid Crittenden; south by
Ben Shed; west by road. Known as the A L Harris place. Seems to include Tax Lots
SHO3 67A, 66, 66A
Source: Deed Book/JJ/1
From Tom Jones to Alonzo Burks
Notes: Bounded west by Buford Rd; south by school. The lot is one square acre less
1/27/1913 the quarter-acre in the NW corner, now owned by Virginia Jones. Seems to include
Tax Lots SHO3 67A, 66, 66A
Source: Deed Book/NN/320
From the heirs of Alonzo Burks to Mary W Saunders
12/1/1994 Notes: Seems to include Tax Lots SHO3 66, 66A
Source: Deed Book/NN5/145-189 (affidavits), NN5/191-3
e The lot has changed in size over the years, but it appears that only one house was built here.
e Later deeds: QQ10/521, AA11/128-9, AA11/440 (correction)
The Abram L Harris, Sr. family
e Little can be found of the family history.
e Abram and Pinkey Harris married in 1887.
e The family built a house here shortly after the 1900 census.
e In Shellman, Abram was a farmer. By 1910, the family had moved to Shreveport, LA, where he
was a clergyman.
Source: Ancestry.com link, link
Thomas Jones
For information on Tom & Virginia Jones, refer to 74 Buford St.
The Alonzo (Lonzo) Burks family
e Alonzo Burks was from Terrell County, the son of Harrison & Carrie Burks, and brother to
Arthur Burks. The family moved to Shellman by 1900.
e Alonzo and Mittie Terrell were married in 1895; she died by 1900. He then married Emma
Gary in 1903, and later married Alice Speed.
e Burks was a farmer.

11/23/1903
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e Burks bought this house in 1913. He remained here until his death in 1948. His family kept the
house until 1994.
Source: Ancestry.com link

2588 (or 3350) Fountain Bridge Rd

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

21120

e From Reid Crlttendén to Ben Shed in 1895
e From Shed to the Trustees of the Benevolence Baptist Association in 1902

9/30/1895, X )
/30 Notes: One-acre vacant lot (210’ square). Bounded north by Reid Crittenden and
10/31/1902 LN 1 y .
Pinkie Harris; east by Reid Crittenden; west by Buford Rd.
Source: Deed Book/EE/370, HH/384
e From the Trustees of the Benevolence Institute of Davis County to J A Grubbs in
1937
4/12/1937, e From Grubbs to Milledge Walker in 1937
6/10/1937 e By descent within the family

Notes: Bounded north by Lonzo Burks; south by Melvina Simpson.
Source: Deed Book/YY/187, ZZ/167-8, YY/267 (mortgage)

From the heirs of Milledge Walker to Andrew Lee Johnson

Notes: Two houses were on the lot, which is now divided into three lots: #3350,
12/22/1958 #3342, and #3340. One of the houses was on #3350; it is still standing. The other
seems to have been replaced.

Source: Deed Book/PP1/90

e Tax records say the house at 3350 Fountain Bridge Rd was built in 1936. It appears older, and may
have been used by the school. The double front door supports this possibility.

e Later deeds-3342 Fountain Bridge Rd: TT2/529-30, EE5/223
e later deeds-3340 Fountain Bridge Rd: TT2/427, YY10/96 (Tract #3)

Benevolence Baptist Institute of Davis County

The Benevolence Missionary Baptist Association purchased this lot in 1902 and owned it until 1937.

Deeds for adjacent property refer to the Benevolence Institute of Davis County during this time, but

no historical records have been found to tell the history of the school.

The Milledge Walker family

e Milledge and Julia Thomas were married in 1888.

e Walker was a farmer.

e The Walkers bought this house in 1937. Milledge Walker died in the 1940s; Julia died in 1949.
Their heirs sold the house in 1958.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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2558 (or 3334) Fountain Bridge Rd

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

10/06/2014

e Acquired by Kate Gardner (Deed not located)

e From Kate Gardner to Will Hawk in 1897

o Notes: Half-acre lot with house. Bounded north by Ben Shed.
Source: Deed Book/GG/167

10/16/1897

From Will & L B Hawk to Moses Jordan
10/10/1901 Notes: Half-acre lot with house.
Source: Deed Book/I1/66-8

From Silvie Jordan to her daughter, Melvina Simpson
Notes: Half-acre lot with house (105’ N/S x 210’ E/W). Known as the Moses Jordan

3/30/1914 house. Simpson assumed Jordan’s mortgage.
Source: Deed Book/PP/394, PP/394 (mortgage), WW/395 (quitclaim), WW/417
(mortgage)
From Melvina Simpson to her grandson, J B Mabry (gift)

4/15/1942 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/DD1/170

From J B Mabry to Leavy Hart, Sr.
1/9/1971 Notes:
Source: Deed Book/BB2/419-20

Later Deeds: TT7/103-5

Edd & Katie Gardner

e There is little record of the Gardner family. They lived in this area, perhaps in this house, in 1880.
e Edd worked for C D Crittenden, who owned a farm in the area.

e The family may have moved to Butts County around the time they sold this house.

Source: Ancestry.com link, link

The Moses Jordan family

e Moses Jordan was from Terrell County, He and Silvia (Silvie) were married in 1848.

e They lived near Ward'’s Station by 1880. Moses was a farmer.

e They bought this house in 1897. In 1914, Silvie sold the house to their daughter, Melvina Jordan
Simpson.

e Melvina and Glen Simpson were married in 1881. Glen died by 1900. Melvina and her children
lived with her parents that year.

e Moses Jordan died in 1905 and Silvie Jordan died by 1920. Melvina lived here alone in 1920.
Other family members later joined her.
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e Melvina was a laundress. In 1942, she gave the house to her grandson, John Mabry. Mabry sold
the house in 1972.
Source: Ancestry.com link, link, link
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%
Fountain Bridge Rd (West Side)
2755 Fountain Bridge Rd (Fictitious street number)
e Part of the David Ferguson farm acquired by Mary Jane Turner in 1881
e The original lot included four present-day lots: #3445 and #3439 Fountain Bridge Rd; #634 Prince
Rd and an unnumbered lot on Prince Rd.
e Only one house seems to have been built on the lots prior to 1950.
From Mary Jane Turner to Sandy Anderson
5/15/1888 Notes: %-acre triangular, vacant lot. The lot lay in the fork of Prince Rd (about 400’
frontage) and Fountain Bridge Rd (315’ frontage); the southern border is 252’.
Source: Deed Book/CC/266
e From Sandy Anderson to Crittenden Brothers in 1891
e ] F Crittenden acquired sole ownership from his brothers in 1913
11/8/1890, Notes: %-acre triangular lot, now with house. Bounded south by Isham Brookins and
10/15/1891, Mrs. S P Turner. . . .
1/2/1913 e Anderson mortgaged his house to Mrs. Payne in 1890, then sold it to the
Crittendens in 1891, using the proceeds to repay Mrs. Payne.
Source: Deed Book/EE/458 (mortgage), EE/461 (mortgage satisfied), CC/785,
NN/335
From J F Crittenden to Josie & Charlie Stanford in 1919
8/4/1919 Notes:
Source: Deed Book/NN/587
The Stanford heirs divided the lot and sold the parcels in 1971 and 1980.
7/21/1971, Notes:
5/31/1980 Source: Deed Book/DD2/232-3, DD2/259 (mortgage), GG2/486, QQ2/452, UU2/427-
8

The lot was intact in 1971, and apparently vacant.

The location of the original house on the lot is unknown. It may have been located on the lot that
became 3445 Fountain Bridge Rd; its current structure is used as a laundromat and may have
replaced the original house.

The Sandy Anderson family

Source: Ancestry.com link

Sandy was from Virginia. He and Lavonia Lamar were married in Davis County in 1873.
Sandy was a farm laborer, and later a gardener.
Lavonia died before 1920; Sandy died of pneumonia in Shellman in 1920.

Charlie & Josie Stanford

Source: Ancestry.com link, link

Charlie and Josie were brother and sister, the children of Warren & Emiline Stanford.

The family was in Shellman by 1900. They were renters until they bought this house in 1919. In
1920, the widowed Emiline, three of her children, and a granddaughter lived here.

Josie married George Jenkins around 1924. The Jenkins family lived here in 1930 (link). Josie later
married a Mr. Swanger, but was a widow when she died in 1936.

The use of the house is unclear from this point. In 1971 and 1980, the heirs of the three Stanford
siblings (Charlie, Josie, and Alice) divided the lot.
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2717 Fountain Bridge Rd
e 4 Part of the
David
Ferguson
farm
acquired by
Mary Jane
Turner in
1881.

1070672814

From M J Turner to Mollie Brookins

Notes: One-acre vacant lot (210’ square). Bounded north by lands of Sandy

Anderson; south by Mrs. Turner.

Source: Deed Book/CC/131

e From the estate of Mollie Brookins to H R Watson in 1916

e From Watson to Beatrice Brookins in 1917

e From Brookins’s estate to her daughters, Mary O Ross & Beatrice B Jackson, in
1972

Notes: One-acre lot with house in 1916. Bounded north by J F Crittenden; east by

Buford Rd; south by Tom Coats; west by M W Cox.

Source: Deed Book/00/184, 00/184, 00/184-5 (mortgage), 00/332 (mortgage

release, 00/332-3 (mortgage), UU/479 (mortgage), XX1/86 (mortgage), FF2/473

e From Mary O Ross & Beatrice B Jackson to Dazzie Ella & Ulysses Davis in 1972

12/8/1972, e Dazzie Ella Davis became sole owner in 1994

4/2/1994 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/FF2/475-6, KK5/5-8 (Tract 3)

In 1996, the lot was split in half:

e The house is #2717 Fountain Bridge Rd. Tax records say the house was built in 1906, but the 1900
census reveals that the Brookins family already owned a house in this vicinity.

e The commercial structures are #2735 Fountain Bridge Rd. Tax records say that the structure
facing Fountain Bridge Rd was built in 1926.

Source: Deed Book/WW5/216-7, WW5/218-9

Two tax lots (SHO3 048, SHO3 048A) are grouped here since they were split only recently.

The Isham Brookins family

e Isham Brookins was from Davis County. He and Mollie were married in 1863.

e The family bought this lot in 1898; they built a house soon after and were living here in 1900.

e Brookins was a farmer.

e Mollie Brookins died by 1910. Isham lived here in 1910, but seems to have died before 1920.

e Perhaps his death was the reason for the sale of the house in 1916. It was purchased by their
daughter-in-law, Beatrice Brookins, in 1917.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Solomon Brookins family

e Solomon Brookins was from Shellman, the son of Isham & Mollie Brookins. He and Beatrice Taylor
were married in 1901.

10/23/1888

3/7/1916,
2/3/1917,
11/20/1972
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The family lived here on Fountain Bridge Rd, at first with his widower father, then as a single
family after his father died.
The family was entrepreneurial:

o In 1910, Solomon was a mail clerk for the railroad; Beatrice operated a grocery store.

o In1920 and 1930, both were teachers.

o By 1935, Solomon and Beatrice’s names were appearing on death certificates as the
undertaker. In 1940, Solomon listed his profession as undertaker. Beatrice also continued
to teach.

Solomon died in 1940. After his death, some of Beatrice’s fellow teachers boarded with her.
Beatrice died in 1972.

The Brookins family operated a mortuary on this lot by 1935. The 1968 mortgage confirms that
the one-acre lot contains both a house and a mortuary. In 1971, shortly before Beatrice died, a
new funeral home was built on the adjacent lot to the north (3439 Fountain Bridge Rd), operated
by the Ward family.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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2701 Fountain Bridge Rd (Fictitious street number)

Part of the David Ferguson farm acquired by Mary Jane Turner in 1881.

The current lot is % acre. It appears that Robert Nathan purchased a half-acre lot by 1897, and built a

house on the northern half of the lot. In 1897, he sold the southern half of the lot (See below). The

lots were rejoined under the ownership of Arie Adams. No deeds have been found for these

transactions.

Mortgage 1/23/1897, 5/10/1897, 2/12/1898 Crittenden Brothers

e From Robert Nathan to Mollie Thornton in 1897

e From Thornton to Crittenden Brothers in 1917

Notes: %-acre lot. The lot was vacant in 1897, but had a house in 1917. Bounded

north by Robert Nathan.

Source: Deed Book/00/237-8, 00/238

From Crittenden Brothers to Arie Adams in 1919 (subject to mortgage)

Notes: Bounded south by Frank Cox (known as Charley Thornton lot). Adams bought

the northern half.

Source: Deed Book/EE1/229

From Mrs. J G Thompson to Arie Adams

Notes: Adams purchased land to the west and south, originally assembled by Floyd

Gray.

Source: Deed Book/DD1/4

Notes: Adams divided her lot, giving two of her children lots off the west side, facing

1/22/1949 on Buford Circle.

Source: Deed Book/FF1/356, FF1/358

e Later Deeds: UU12/491

e This is Tax Lot SHO3 049.

Robert Nathan

e Very little information can be found on the Nathans.

e Robert & Annie Brown were married in Sumter County in 1873. They acquired this lot by 1897,
and lived here in 1900

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Jack Thornton family

e Jack Thornton was from Springvale. He married Mary (Mollie) Nathan in 1878.

Mollie Thornton bought this vacant lot in 1897; the family lived here in 1900.

She sold the house in 1917; the family moved to Connecticut.

e Jack died in 1942 (obituary).

Source: Ancestry.com link, link

The Arie Adams family

e Arie Ford was from Shellman, the daughter of Emmanuel & Julia Ford. She and Jasper (Git) Adams
were married in 1897. The family lived in Shellman; they were divorced by 1920.

e Arie bought this house in 1919. In 1944, she expanded her lot. In 1949, she divided it, giving two
of her children lots off the west side, facing on Buford Circle.

e Arie died in 1970 in a “home for the incurables” in Louisville, KY.

e Arie was a laundress.

Source: Ancestry.com link

12/8/1897,
6/1/1917

10/17/1919

10/13/1944
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2695 Fountain Bridge Rd (Fictitious street number)

Part of the tract acquired by M W Cox in 1909.

e From M W Cox to Mrs. HR Watson in 1910
e From Mrs. Watson to since F C Cox in 1916

1/5/1910, )
1/14/1916, e From Cox to Floyd Grays -|n 1917 - ‘
10/6/1917, Notes: 50’ N/S x 150’ E/W, with house (in 1916). Bounded north by Mollie
1/30/1939 Thornton/Brookins; east by Buford St; south by Eliza Green. A house is built by 1916.
Cox Addition, Block 2, Lot #1.
Source: Deed Book/NN/10, 00/8-9, 00/277-8, 00/278 (mortgage)
Floyd Grays later expanded his lot.
LUle’ Source: Deed Book/NN/470,72/288 (2), ZZ/289
e From Floyd Grays to Mrs. J G Thompson in 1939
1/30/1939, e From Mrs. Thompson to Arie Adams in 1944
10/13/1944 Notes: Grays sells his assembled lot to Mrs. Thompson, who sells it to Arie Adams.

Adams owns the lot to the north; from this point the two lots are combined.
Source: Deed Book/ZZ/289, DD1/4

This is Tax Lot SHO3 050.

The Floyd Grays family

e Floyd & Georgia Grays were married in 1905.

e The family rented nearby before they bought this house in 1917. They later expanded the lot.

e Floyd was a farmer.

e Georgia Grays died in the 1920s. Floyd remained here until he sold the lot in 1939. No further
record of him can be found.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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%
2675 Fountain Bridge Rd (Fictitious street number)
e Part of the tract acquired by M W Cox in 1909.
e This lot was assembled from Cox Addition, Block 2, Lot #2 (southern half), Lot #3, and Lot #4.
From M W Cox to Dock & Eliza Green
1/10/1914 Notes: 50’ N/S x 150’ E/W. Bounded south by William Hill. Cox Lot #2. The Greens
later sold this lot to Ernest Lee, who divided it in 1918.
Source: Deed Book/NN/417
e From M W Cox to William Hill in 1910
e From Ernest Lee to William Hill in 1918
Notes:
o Hill purchased Cox Lot #3 in 1910 and the southern half of Cox Lot #2 in 1918.
10/21/1910, Hill acquired Cox Lot #4 at an unknown date. The assembled lot was 125’ N/S x
11/19/1918 150’ E/W.
e There is a house on Cox Lot #3 by 1913. It was no longer standing in 1977. There
is no evidence of a house on Cox Lot #2.
e Hill also owned Cox Lot #5 from 1918 to 1940.
Source: Deed Book/NN/104, NN/148, NN/405, 00/315-6, 00/470
e From M W Cox to Noah and Minnie Pierce in 1910
10/14/1910, e From Noah Pierce to William HiII.in 1918
10/14/1918, e From M L Walker to Verla Keyes in 1940 > i .
Notes: Vacant lot (50’ N/S x 150’ E/W). Cox Addition, Block 2, Lot #5. Hill owned this
7/12/1940 i . .
vacant lot, immediately south of his home lot, from 1918-1940.
e Source: Deed Book/NN/94, 00/519, BB1/493
From William Hill’s sons to West & Bertha Coleman in 1977
Notes: Vacant lot (125’ N/S x 150’ E/W). Bounded north by Pierce, south by Parson
9/12/1977 (SHO3 052)
Source: Deed Book/002/378
e Later Deeds: 112/684, GG11/83
e Thisis Tax Lot SHO3 051.
The William Hill family
e William & Bennie Hill were married around 1910.
e The family lived here in 1920, but were gone by 1930. Hill’s sons sold the vacant lot in 1977.
Source: Ancestry.com link
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2635 Fountain Bridge Rd (Fictitious street number)

Part of the tract acquired by M W Cox in 1909.

e From M W Cox to SJJackson in 1912

e From Jackson to Clarence Turner in 1919

e By descent to Turner’s wife, Mary B Turner

e From Mary B Turner (remainder interest) to her son, Walter Lee Turner, in 1968

3/18/1912, Notes:
7/14/1919, e 50’ N/Sx 150’ E/W, vacant in 1919. Bounded south by George Wheeler.
12/12/1923, e Deeds refer to this lot as Cox Addition, Block 2, Lot #7. The lot to the south is
2/7/1968 also referred to as Cox Lot #7. Despite the duplicate numbers, they are separate
lots.
e Turner built a house here, probably at the time of the mortgage in 1920.
Source: Deed Book/PP/43-4, PP/162 (mortgage), PP/415 (mortgage), RR/24-5
(mortgage), YY1/51
From Walter Lee Turner to Parker Powell
3/21/1972 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/EE2/251

e This is Tax Lot SHO3 054
e Later Deeds: DD3/346
e The house was replaced in 1997.

The Clarence Turner family

e Clarence and Mary Bussey, a widow, were married around the time he bought this lot in 1919.
They built a house here, probably at the time of the mortgage in 1920.

e Clarence Turner was a carpenter in 1930 and 1940. In 1950, he was a taxi driver. Mary Turner was
a laundress in 1930. In 1940 and 1950, she was proprietor of a café.

e The Turners remained here until their deaths. She died in 1969.

Source: Ancestry.com link, link
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2631 Fountain Bridge Rd (Fictitious street number)

Part of the M W Cox Addition

From F C Cox to John Newkirk

Notes: Vacant lot, unspecified size. Bounded north by Floyd Grays; west by Buford

10/3/1918 Circle; south by Cenella Thompson. This may be Tax Lot SHO3 037, which is 1.69

acres.

Source: Deed Book/PP/318

From F C Cox to John Newkirk

Notes: Vacant lot (50’ N/S x 150’ E/W). Cox Addition, Block 2, Lot #6. Bounded

10/16/1918 north by Noah Pierce; east by Fountain Bridge Rd; south by Steve Jackson. This is

Tax Lot SHO3 053.

Source: Deed Book/PP/319

e Newkirk assembled a multi-acre tract stretching from Buford Circle on the west across Fountain
Bridge Rd.

e His family lived on the east side of Fountain Bridge Rd (#2650) at the time they purchased this
tract. It is unclear whether they built a house and moved here, or remained in the old house,
using this tract as farmland.

e Forinformation on the Newkirk family, refer to 2650 Fountain Bridge Rd.

From Newkirk to the family of his daughter, Susie (Mrs. Rawleigh) Parsons

6/23/1949 Notes: Same property in Deed Book/PP/319

Source: Deed Book/FF1/530

From John Newkirk to William Lee Newkirk

Notes: 50’x 150’. Bounded north by Sam Nelson; east by Buford Circle. This lot is

1/26/1950 located on the west side of Buford Circle, across the street from Newkirk’s main

tract. The deed of purchase is not located.

Source: Deed Book/GG1/278
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2621 Fountain Bridge Rd (Fictitious street number)
Part of the tract acquired by M W Cox in 1909.

From M W Cox to George Wheeler
Notes:
e Wheeler bought Cox Addition, Block 2, Lot #8 in 1905 (50’ N/S x 150’ E/W)
4/4/1905 e Wheeler sold Cox Lot #8 to the Sheffield Brothers in 1910 and bought it back
11/10/19'10' from them in 1913. A house was built here by 1910.
12/2/1913 e  When Wheeler repurchased Cox Lot #8, he also purchased Cox Lot #7, thus
expanding his lot to 100’ N/S.
e In 1917, Wheeler lived in the house, which is bounded on the south by Blossom
Daniel.
Source: Deed Book/NN/112 (2), NN/381, NN/382 (2), NN/383, 00/222 (mortgage)
e From George Wheeler to Alonza Burk in 1921
5/24/1921, e From Alonza Burk to Lucious Daniel in 1921
5/28/1921, e From Lucious Daniel to his daughter, Susie Daniel, in 1932
10/7/1932 Notes: The Wheelers had vacated the house by 1921; it was rented to Ella Reddick.
Source: Deed Book/PP/563, VV/219

e There are no further deeds; still registered to the estate of Susie Daniel.

e This is Tax Lot SHO3 055.

The George Wheeler family

e George and Leola Wheeler lived here in 1910, but had moved by 1920.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Lucious Daniel family

e Lucious Daniel was from Cuthbert, the son of Washington & Martha Daniel. He and Fanny Daniel
were married in 1899.

e Lucious was a farmer. The family lived on different farms through the 1940s, and used the house
on Fountain Bridge Rd as rental property.

e In 1950, Lucious was a school janitor; the family had moved into this house on Fountain Bridge
Rd.

e Susie Daniel was the unmarried daughter of the Daniels; she lived with them. The now-vacant lot
is registered to her estate.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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2567 Fountain Bridge Rd

Part of the tract acquired by M W Cox in 1909.

From M W Cox to Frank Reddick

Notes: Two vacant lots (each were 50’ N/S x 150’ E/W). Cox Addition, Block 2, Lots

#14 & #15.

Source: Deed Book/NN/74

From Frank Reddick to Mamie & Norm Brown

12/16/1929 Notes: Lot with house. Bounded north by Arthur Burks; west by William Bell.

Source: Deed Book/UU/83

From Mamie J Brown to Robert & Katie McDaniel

1/14/1980 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/TT2/585

The Frank Reddick family

e Frank Reddick was from Benevolence, the son of Chance & Mariah Reddick. The family moved to
Shellman by 1900. Frank and Ella Reddick were married around 1910.

e Frank sold the house in 1929 and the family moved to Macon.

e Frank died in Macon around 1952. Ella remained in Macon, where she died in 1961.

Source: Ancestry.com link, link

The Norm Brown family

e Norm & Mamie Davis(?) were married in 1922. They lived on a farm south of Shellman until at
least 1930.

e They bought this house in 1929, but did not immediately move in; they were here in 1940.

e Norm was a gardener; Mamie was a laundress.

e Mamie sold the house shortly before she died in 1983.

Source: Ancestry.com link, link

8/18/1910
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2365 Fountain Bridge Rd

Part of the R G McCurdy farm (See McCurdy Farm under Fountain Bridge Rd)

From R G McCurdy to Anna C Pipkin

Notes: 51.84-acre farm. Tract #1 of the McCurdy Farm. The 1920 plat shows a

farmhouse and farm buildings on this tract.

Source: Deed Book/TT/213-4, TT/416 (mortgage), PP/345 (plat)

e From R G McCurdy to W R Curry in 1920

e From Curry to Ada Bramlett in 1929

11/1/1920, Notes: 12.65-acre tract. The north part of McCurdy Tract #3. Known as the John Hill

11/20/1929 place in 1929. The 1920 plat shows a house in this tract facing on Fountain Bridge

Rd.

Source: Deed Book/PP/345 (Tract #3, plat), PP/590-1, UU/53,

From Will Davis to J D Pipkin

Notes: 6.325-acre tract; no improvements mentioned. The deed conveyed the

southern half of the tract purchased by W R Curry in 1920.

Source: Deed Book/PP1/439, TT2/245-7, Plat Book/8/176

e The J D Pipkin, Sr, family assembled this tract. It descended in the Pipkin family until 2015.

e Tax records say the house was built in 1946. However, the 1920 plat shows a house in this
location.

e UU11/605-9 (Tract #5), UU11/610

The Jefferson Davis Pipkin, Jr. family

e Jeff Pipkin was from Shellman, the son of Jeff (Sr.) and Anna Pipkin. After serving in WW I, he
returned to Shellman. He and Helen Sauls were married in 1947 (link).

e Pipkin was a farmer. The family moved to this farm, which had been assembled by his parents,
and built a house here.

e The Pipkins remained here until their deaths; his in 1978 and hers in 2013. The son John lived with
them.

Source: Ancestry.com link

11/1/1920

12/30/1940
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John Smith St

John Smith St was here by 1880, before the town of Ward was incorporated. Early deeds refer to it
based upon the school situated on its north side from around 1880 until around 1953. It was called
Colored College St, and then for many years as Douglass St. Finally, it was changed to honor John and
Ethel Smith, who owned property in the area. The street is central to African-American culture in
Shellman; a school and two churches were located here.

Censuses of John Smith St Plats of John Smith St

e 1900 link e Plat Book/2/106 (1959)
e 1910 link e Plat Book/2/242 (1962)
e 1920 link (Called Terry Ave) e Plat Book/6/56 (1984)
e 1930 link e Plat Book/6/156 (1987)
e 1940 link

e 1950 link
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106 John Smith St

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

. Fro t Crltee amily to W S Edwards

Notes: ¥:-acre vacant lot (210’ N/S x 93’ E/W). Bounded north by Douglass St. The

12/19/1891 NW corner of this lot is the NE corner of the Glover lot. Edwards built a rental house
here.
Source: Deed Book/EE/292
e From the estate of W S Edwards to Harry & Patsy Richardson in 1919.
e Descended through their son Nathaniel Richardson to his wife, Floy Richardson.
in 1947.
Notes: %-acre (210’ N/S x 93’ E/W).
1/28/1919, .
8/23/1947 Bounded north by Douglass St; east by W R Terry; west by the AME parsonage; this

lot is “better known as the Alex Crittle house and lot”. In 1953, Nathanial Richardson
sold a small, vacant parcel on the SW corner of this lot (102 John Smith St).

Source: Deed Book/PP/225, EE1/383, JJ11/105, UU1/36 (mortgage), DD4/259-60,
BB11/180

There are two houses on the lot. Tax records say the frame house was built in 1954; it appears older,
and may be the original house from the 1890s.

The Harry Richardson family

e Harry and Patsy Richardson were married in 1896. In 1910, they were renting a house further
west on John Smith St; Alex Crittle was renting this house at 106 John Smith St.

e In 1919, the Richardsons bought this house and moved here.

e Harry was a farm laborer; Patsy was a cook.

e Patsy died in the 1920s; Harry remarried and moved by 1930. He retained ownership of the house
but lived elsewhere in subsequent censuses. He died in 1947.

e [In 1930, the house was rented. By 1940, their son Nathaniel occupied the house with his wife Floy
and their son.

e Both Nathaniel and Floy worked for the Columbian Peanut Co.

e They remained here until their deaths; Nathaniel in 1960 and Floy in 1989.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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97 John Smith St

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

From Crittenden Brothers to Trustees of the African Methodist Episcopal (AME)

Church

8/5/1892 Notes: .11 acre (80’ N/S x 68’ E/W). The SW corner of this lot is the SE corner of the

Frederic Douglass school.

Source: Deed Book/FF/68, EE2/132 (mortgage satisfaction)

The church acquired the .66-acre tract to the west in 1995. Source: Deed

Book/AA2/854, MM3/297 (Tract #3), PP5/35; Plat Book/2/106 (1959), 6/156 (1987)

Beulah (Bethel) African Methodist Episcopal (AME) Church

e The first AME Church was located on Division St; it was replaced by the Shellman Institute in
1885. That suggests that the church building on this lot predates the 1892 deed, as the
congregation would have needed a place to worship.

e Early deeds do not give a name to the congregation other than its denomination, AME. A 1970
deed refers to this as the Beulah AME Church; a 1995 deed refers to it as the Bethel AME Church.

e Tax records say the current sanctuary was built in 1990.

e The church still occupies this lot.

e The house across the street (94 John Smith St) served as a pastorium by 1903.

3/8/1995
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94 John Smith St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

11/26/1887

From the Crittenden family to James Glover

Notes: 1 square acre, vacant lot. Bounded north and east by Crittenden & Brother;
south by College St; west by Vandergriff lot. This deed was not recorded until 1894,
and the description appears to be incorrect; this lot is south, rather than north, of
John Smith St.

Source: Deed Book/EE/190

11/29/1887

From James Glover to L S Ingraham
Notes: Glover quickly sold the west half of his lot (See 82 John Smith St).
Source: Deed Book/AA/730

10/6/1896,
10/15/1901

e From James Glover (sheriff’s sale) to Joseph Ethridge & Son in 1896

e From Ethridge & Son to T R Arthur in 1901

Notes: Bounded north by AME Church and Crittenden Brothers; east by Sim Hill
(renter); south by Crittenden brothers; west by house originally owned by C
Greene. House is occupied by the Glover family.

Source: Deed Book/FF/80, HH/193

10/15/1903

e Acquired by Ben Shed (Deed not located)

e From Ben Shed to the Trustees of the AME Church in 1903

Notes: Half-acre lot known as the Jim Glover place.

The house became the parsonage for the AME church across the street. The lot was
vacant when sold in 1995.

Source: Deed Book/HH/607

12/27/1929

From the Trustees of the Shellman Circuit Parsonage to Milledge Walker

Notes: About % acre. It appears the house was transferred from the AME church to
the committee who provided housing for circuit pastors.

Source: Deed Book/UU/548

e Inthe 1930s, Rev. James Richard Gardner was pastor of the AME church. His family purchased the
lot next door (82 John Smith St) in 1940.

e The lot was reacquired by the church before being sold by them in 1995.

e Later deeds: PP5/3, Plat Book/6/156 (1987)

The James Glover family

1896.

e Little information can be found on the Glover family.
e Jim Glover married Louisa Williams in Randolph County in 1879.
e Glover bought this lot in 1887 and built a house here. The property was sold at a sheriff's sale in

e The Glovers appear to have left the area; no further information on them can be found.
Source: Ancestry.com link
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61 John Smith St

° Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in
1871.

° Site of the Frederick Douglass School by 1880.

° The image at left is of the main building, and
probably the oldest, of a three-building complex. The date
is unknown, but the car is probably from around 1950.

2/22/1964

e Acquired by the Randolph County Board of Education (Deed not located)

e From the BOE to James Bethea in 1964

Notes: No details are given in the deed. A 1959 plat shows the original dimensions
of the lot (331’ of frontage on John Smith St). It also shows the lot has been divided
into five tracts. The school, still standing in 1959, is located on the westernmost
tract, Tract #1.

Source: Deed Book/AA2/854, Plat Book/2/106 (1959)

The Frederick Douglass School

family.

down.

e The Frederick Douglass School for African-American students was in operation on this lot by 1880.
e No early deeds have been located; the school was likely built on land owned by the Crittenden

e The first superintendent is thought to have been J P Vandergriff, who lived across the street (60
John Smith St).

e The school consisted of three buildings. It was replaced by a new school on Carver St around 1953
(See Deed Book/111/474). The buildings were still standing in 1959, but have since been torn

82 John Smith St

Created in 1887 by dividing the lot to the east (See 94 John Smith St)

From R S Ingraham to Charles J Greene
Notes: % acre, no improvements mentioned. Bounded north by College St; east by

12/7/1888 Glover; south by Crittenden & Brother; west by Vandergriff. Greene built a rental
house here.
Source: Deed Book/EE/148

9/9/1940 e From CJ Greene to J R Gardner in 1940

9/18/194,0 e Gardner conveyed a half-interest to his wife, Sarah Gardner, later that month
Source: Deed Book/AA1/347, AA1/347-8 (mortgage), AA1/356

11/21/1978 From the heirs of Sarah Gardner to Freddie Mae and Henry Lee Flowers, Jr.

Source: Deed Book/RR2/86-7

Later deeds: TT4/105

The Rev. James Richard Gardner family

e James Gardner was from Thompson, GA. He married Sarah Ellen Harper in 1914 in Laurens, SC.
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James was an AME pastor, first in Atlanta and later in Savannah. Sarah was a schoolteacher who
graduated from Morris Brown College. They probably met while she was a student at Morris
Brown.

In the 1940 census, the Gardners were in Shellman, renting a house on John Smith St. Later in
1940, they purchased this house. It is next door to the parsonage owned by the church. The
Gardners seemingly were moving to a nicer house, one more like the ones they were used to in
Atlanta and Savannah.

Rev. Gardner died in 1944. Sarah soon moved away. She died in Chicago in 1972 (obituary).

The family retained ownership of the house until 1978. It appears to have been vacant in 1950.

Source: Ancestry.com link

60 John Smith St (Fictitious street number)

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

Part of a two-acre lot acquired by J P Vandergriff (Deed not located, but he lived in the area in
1880)

Divided into two lots in 1913: #60 and #50 John Smith St

From J P Vandergriff to Crittenden Brothers
Notes: 2-acre lot with house. Bounded north by street; east by Greene; south by

Lzl Reid Crittenden; west by Ben Moorman.

Source: Deed Book/GG/309

The Crittendens divide the property; Reid Crittenden receives the east half (#60),
1/2/1913 with the house (420’ N/S x 105’ E/W).

Source: Deed Book/NN/334

From R S Crittenden to Virginia Jones

11/13/1919 Notes: Jones lived on Buford St, so this was rental property.

Source: Deed Book/EE1/54

2/4/1957,
10/31/1957

e From Virginia Jones to Emma Rivers

e From Rivers to John and Lula Wilson

e By descent to Minnie Lee Baldwin (Deed not located, but by 1992)
Notes:

Source: Deed Book/NN1/81, 001/49, TT4/375

The James P Vandergriff family

Vandergriff was born into slavery in Randolph County. He and Laney Clark were married around
1872.

The Vandergriffs lived in/around Ward’s Station by 1878, when tax records reveal him as owning
household items but not a house.

Vandergriff attended Atlanta University to prepare for a teaching career (link). The 1880 census
identifies him as the first known African-American teacher in Ward’s Station (link).

Vandergriff was living in this area of Ward’s Station in 1880, and bought this house at an unknown
date. The house is across the street from Douglass Academy.

By 1892, the Vandergriffs had moved to Boston, GA, where he was a prominent educator and
pastor (link). He sold the house in 1898, already a resident of Thomas County.

Laney died around 1900, and he remarried in 1901. He died in 1904 (notice). His will indicates
that he owned a school.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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50 John Smith St

e Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in
1871.

e Part of a two-acre lot acquired by J P Vandergriff
(Deed not located, but he lived in the area in 1880)

e Divided into two lots in 1913: 60 John Smith St and
50 John Smith St

The Crittendens divided the property: Fernando Crittenden received the vacant west

1/2/1913 half (420’ N/S x 105’ E/W)

Source: Deed Book/NN/335

e From Oscar A Crittenden to George Neal, Sr. in 1963

e From the heirs of Oscar A Crittenden to George Neal, Sr. in 1971

e By descent to Neal’s wife in 1999

Notes: Neal assembled a lot in two transactions (448’N/S x 55” E/W). Tax records
4/13/1963, indicate that there were two houses on this lot in 1963:
11/18/1971 e One built in 1940, which still stands, and

e A mobile home added in 1963, presumably by Neal shortly after he bought the
lot.

The southern portion of the lot purchased in 1971 is vacant.

Source: Deed Book/TT1/264, FF2/653, YY6/115
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49John Smith St

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

o {oT06/2014

The early history of this lot is uncertain It was acquired by Thomas and Virginia Jones , perhaps in
1905 (See 74 Buford St).
e From Thomas Jones to R G McCurdy in 1914
e From Thomas Jones to E C McCurdy in 1917
Notes:
6/2/1914, e The 1914 deed mortgages two houses on John Smith St and Jones’s home on
1/3/1917 Buford St. It was satisfied with the 1917 deed.
e Jones immediately mortgages the same properties to R G McCurdy’s brother, E C
McCurdy. This mortgage was also satisfied, but the deed has not been located.
Source: Deed Book/NN/395 (mortgage), 00/162 (mortgage quitclaim),
From the estate of Virginia (Mrs. Thomas) Jones to Joye Barber Wooten (sheriff’s
sale)
11/12/1962 oted
Source: Deed Book/SS1/583-4, (Parcel #2), Plat Book/2/242 (1962)
From Joye Barber Wooten to Dazzie Ella Davis
2/21/1977 Notes: The property has descended within the Davis family.
Source: Deed Book/NN2/377-8 (Parcel #2), PP10/55 (Parcel #2)
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44 John Smith St

4/8/1963,
7/23/1996

Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.

e From Oscar A Crittenden to Mary Lee & Tiny Maude Beverly in 1963

e |n 1996, the heirs of Mary Lee Beverly give a life interest to Tiny Maude Beverly
and a remainder interest to her children

Notes: Lot with house (150’ N/S x 69’ E/W). Known as the place where Frank Adams

lived for a number of years.

Source: Deed Book/TT1/198, YJJ2/526 (mortgage), Y5/275

e Tax records say the house was built in 1891; it has been since expanded/modernized.

e The 1963 deed reveals that Frank Adams lived here for a number of years. Adams was renting on
John Smith St, and probably in this house, in 1910. He was in a different house in every other
census, before and after. There is no indication that he owned this house.

The Carlton H Beverly family

o Little can be found of the Beverly family.

e Carlton Beverly married Mary Lee Adams in 1927. In 1930, he was a farmer.

e Mary Lee Beverly and her daughter, Tiny Maude Beverly, purchased this house in 1963. Tiny, who
was still living her mother, received a life interest in the house in 1996. The life estate still owned
the property in 2022.

Source: Ancestry.com link, link
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24 John Smith St (Fictitious street number)
Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871
From the Crittenden family to Ben Moorman
Notes: 2.33 acres (420’ N/S x 264’ E/W). Bounded north by College St. The NE corner
12/28/1888 of this lot is the NW corner of the Vandergriff lot. It appears that Moorman already
lives in the NW corner of the lot.
Source: Deed Book/CC/229
e From Ben Moorman to Charles G Greene in 1895
e From Greene to James M Wooten in 1913

Notes:
4/23/1895, e The 1895 deed to Greene appears to have been a financing arrangement, as
11/1/1913 Moorman owned the lot in 1913.

e The 1913 deed was apparently a sale. Moorman continued to live on John Smith
St, but as a renter.

Source: Deed Book/EE/303, NN/379

From James M Wooten to Hattie Johnson

Notes:

1/29/1948 e The house was standing in 1948.

e The now-vacant lot is still registered in Johnson’s name.

Source: Deed Book/EE1/573, Plat Book/6/56 (1984)

The Ben Moorman (or Moman) family

e Little can be found of Moorman’s early history. He and Pallie Moorman were married in 1893.

e Moorman apparently already lived on this lot when he purchased it in 1888.

e After selling the lot in 1913, the Moormans continued to live on John Smith St (presumably in this
house) through the 1930 census.

e In 1910, Moorman worked at a warehouse. In 1913, he sold the house to James M Wooten, who
operated the Farmers Warehouse; likely Moorman worked there. In 1930, Moorman, by then
about 70, was a gardener for a private family.

e There is no record of the Moormans after the 1930 census.

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Green Johnson family

e He and Hattie Harris were married in 1899.

e Green was a farm laborer. The family lived in Springvale and Cuthbert before moving to Shellman
in the 1920s.

e They purchased this house in 1948. They lived here in 1950, but there is no further record of
them. The now-vacant lot is still registered to them.

Source: Ancestry.com link, link
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14 John Smith St (Fictitious street number)
Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in 1871.
From Tom Jones to Oscar A Crittenden (Deed not located)
Notes:
e The 1943 deed reveals that Lizzie McRae lived in the house at the time.
e The early history of the lot is unknown, but there appears to have been a rental house here in
1910.

From Oscar A Crittenden to J W & Ella Johnson

Notes: Lot with house. Bounded north by John Smith St; east by Ben Moorman lot;

9/6/1943 south by lands of Lennie Tennille; west by Buford St. house bought from Tom Jones

and now occupied by Lizzie McRae.

Source: Deed Book/CC1/172

From the heir of ] W & Ella Johnson to Jim & Hattie Johnson

10/3/1973 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/HH2/99, HH2/101 (mortgage), Plat Book/6/56 (1984)

The J W Johnson family

e The Johnsons bought this lot in 1943. They remained here until their deaths; his in 1963 and hers
in 1972.

e No further information can be found on the family.
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Park Ave

Park Ave runs east and west at the northern edge of the 10-acre reserve given to the South Western
Rail Road by John P Ward in 1858. It is old; there is no deed granting it to the city. In the early 1900s,
it was called Northview Ave.

Plats of Park Ave

Plat Book/2/17 (1956)
Plat Book/3/246 (1966)
Plat Book/7/123 (1991)
Plat Book/10/221 (2007)

5 Park Ave

Originally combined with the lot to the east (See 21 Park
Ave)

From Mrs. M J Oliver & Mrs. Ida J Powell to Sam Sheffield
Notes: 300’ N/S x 100" E/W. Mrs. Oliver & Mrs. Powell used the proceeds from this
12/18/1907 f .
sale to help pay off an earlier mortgage they had on this property.
Source: Deed Book/LL/275
9/11/1913, From the Sheffield Brothers to A F Weathers to F G Watson to H C Bower to RM
1/4/1914, EORST al )
12/6/1921, Not‘es: (134’ N/S x 100 I?/W). Boundeq east by Mrs. Ida Powell; north by G M Sears.
2/8/1922 No improvements mentioned. The lot is reduced from 300’ N/S to 134’ N/S.
Source: Deed Book/NN/365, MM/410, QQ/50, QQ/118
10/2/1950, e From Mag Bower White to G E Ro‘bingtt '
4/11/1950, e From Robinett toJ W Walker to his Wlf'e, Mrs. Harrl.et K Walker .
8/14/1969 Notes: It appears that the first house on this lot was built by Walker in 1952.
Source: Deed Book/GG1/508, 111/373, tax records
Later deeds: ZZ1/380-1, MM8/239
The John Watson Walker family
See 57 W Phelps St for information on the Walkers.
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21 Park Ave

e  Part of the Crittenden family holdings acquired in
1871.

e The original lot included two present-day lots: 5 Park
Ave and 21 Park Ave.

P s

i

e From Crittenden Brothers to J B Payne in 1879
e From Payne to B F Brimberry in 1884
e From Brimberry to George W Oliver in 1884
Around 1879, Notes: 1 acre (135’ N/S x 321’ E/.W).
12/25/1884 e Bounded east by the Masonic Hall; south by the SW RR reserve.
o The sales prices suggest that Brimberry built a house on the lot before selling it
to Oliver. An 1882 newspaper article reports that Oliver is planning a new house
(link). Tax records give the date of the house as 1866, but this appears unlikely.
Source: Deed Book/HH/365, HH/366, HH/367
From the estate of Z T Phelps to his daughter, Mrs. Mattie J Oliver
8/26/1890 Notes: 1221’ frontage on the south side of Phelps St; extending from lands already
owned by Mrs. Oliver westward to the Worthy lot.
Source: Deed Book/EE/592
From J T Oliver to his sister, Mrs. Ida J Powell
Notes: Undivided 1/3 interest in 2.5-acre lot with house known as the George W
Oliver Place, “bounded on the south by rail road reserve, on the west by lots of Mrs.
11/15/1901 D E Pace and T R Arthur, on the north by Phelps, and on the east by lots of M W Cox,
Reid Crittenden, and court house.” The lot surrounding the Oliver house is now 2.5
acres; it appears one sibling is selling his share of the house and lot to his sister.
Source: Deed Book/HH/368
From Ida Powell to Mrs. M J Oliver
Notes: Conveys her 1/3 interest in the house and lot which is the George W Oliver
lot. The lot is now subdivided:
e Avacant lot on the corner of Park Road and Park St: 100’ E/W and 152’ N/S. This
8/9/1907 is now 5 Park Ave.
e Avacant lot facing west on Park St: bounded by R F Watson’s lot on the north
and on the east by Cox’s land (86" N/S). This is now 60 Park Ave.
e Of the original 2 % acre lot, 1 %-2 acres remain, including 21 Park Ave.
Source: Deed Book/LL/186, see NN/342, NN/409
From Frankie Mae Powell to Sam Sheffield
Notes: .96 acres (irregular 323’ N/S x 210’ E/W). Bounded north by Mrs. Dixie
3/23/1915 Watson; east by Masonic Hall and M W Cox; south by Park Ave; west by Dr.
Weathers, Mrs. Sears, and Sam Sheffield. Frankie Mae Powell was the daughter of
Ida J Powell; both Ida and her mother were deceased.
Source: Deed Book/NN/485
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e From Sam Sheffield to F C Cox in 1916

e (Claimed for taxes due in 1934

e Reclaimed by the family (Deed not located)
1/12/1916, Notes: .7 acres (210’ N/S x 144.5’ E/W), Bounded north by Mrs. Sears and M W Cox;
4/21/1934 east by Masonic Lodge; south by Park Ave; west by Dr. Weathers. Sheffield had

reduced the lot by selling the northern “dog leg” to Mrs. Sears (60 Park St). Known

as the Ida J Powell house and lot.

Source: Deed Book/00/5, QQ/623 (plat), SS/21, SS/21-2, VV/138 (mortgage),

WW/77 (mortgage), WW/103

From Mabel Cox Robinson to Robert Edward Cook

1/2/1961 Notes: Mrs. Robinson had lived here for many years.

Source: Deed Book/RR1/134-5, RR1/135

e Early deeds mention a “barn or stable” as the southwest boundary of the lot.

e Later deeds: UU4/364, Plat Book/7/123 (1991)

The George Washington Oliver family

e George Oliver was from Randolph County, son of James H Oliver and brother of W J Oliver. He
served in the Civil War, losing a leg at Chancellorsville (link). He returned to Randolph County in
1863, where he married Mary Jane Phelps in 1865.

e George Oliver was a farmer. The family lived on their farm until buying this lot on Park Ave in
1884. He was also tax collector, mayor, RR stationmaster, Southern Express agent, and
postmaster.

e In 1873, Oliver did not promptly remit all of the taxes he collected to the State of Georgia, and a
20% penalty was levied on him. However, he soon paid the taxes, and the legislature passed an
act cancelling the penalty (link).

e George died in 1887 (link). Mattie Oliver remained in this house until her death in 1913.

e In 1890, Mattie inherited 1,221’ frontage on the south side of W Phelps St from her father, Z T
Phelps. She and her daughter, Ida Powell, divided this tract and sold the lots.

Source: Ancestry.com link, biographical sketch

The Jesse Robert Powell family

e Robert Powell was from Terrell County. Ida was the daughter of George and Mattie Oliver. Robert
and lda were married in this house in 1890 (link), and lived here until Ida’s death in 1915. The
family sold the house and moved to Alabama. Robert died in 1943 in Mississippi.

e Robert was a farmer, then a cotton buyer, while living in Shellman.

Source: Ancestry.com; Robert link; Ida link

The Frank C Cox family

Information about the Cox family is found at 204 W Phelps St.
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o

47 Park Ave

Part of Z T Phelps’s 53-acre purchase from the Crittenden family (See Z T Phelps Tract)

From Z T Phelps and the Crittenden family (R F, Fanny, and Hiram A) to the Master

and Wardens of Ward’s Station Masonic Lodge 284 and the Trustees of Shellman

Methodist Church

Notes: .2 acres (105’ N/S x 81’ E/W). Bounded south by the SWRR reserve; east by

John A Payne; west by G W Oliver.

e The deed transfers only the land, stating that the Masonic Lodge owns the 2"
floor and the Methodist Church owns the 1 floor.

e Itis unclear why both parties are grantors on this deed, but perhaps the
boundaries of Phelps’s 53-acre tract are not precisely defined.

Source: Deed Book/GG/310

e |n 1889, the Methodist Church gave its interest to the Ordinary of Randolph
County & the City Council of Shellman

e |n 1967, the member of the Lodge each signed a quitclaim deed to the City of
Shellman.

10/4/1889, Notes:

March-June, e In 1889, the Methodists built a new sanctuary on the lot to the east, and

1967 relinquished their interest in this building. This allowed the 1* floor to be used
for civic purposes.

e In 1967, the Lodge also relinquished its interest, giving sole ownership to the
City. A plat was drawn showing the building and lot.

Source: Deed Book/ CC/141, XX1/205-312, Plat Book/3/246 (1966)

First Public Building in Shellman

e A 2-story frame building was erected in 1873, the first public building in Shellman. Its use evolved
over the years:

o The 2™ floor was used as a Masonic Hall.
o The 1* floor was used as a school from 1873-85. The 1882 closing ceremony was
documented in the Dawson News (link). The

4/7/1887

y . 1] 2 > . A} »
1883 newspaper advertisement at right ‘le d ngh S(-h()()l-
announced the beginning of the third term. The HE THIRD YEAR of tle above
SeEEl oot IR o T hen School, located at Ward Station, Ga.,

Wwill begin on

Monday, January 1, 1883,

Thirty-eight weeks constitute the year;

Shellman Institute was built.
o A Methodist Church was formed in 1878, and

met on the 1% floor until 1890, when their new si.}lmm.llu the first term o
sanctuary was built. plin?ll»lel;r.()f location unsurpassed. Disci
o The Methodist Church relinquished its interest N Instruction thorouzh in all branches
g N anght in high schools generally.
to the Ordinary of Randolph County & the City Terms moderata.

. . d 15 . . :A & incip: .
Council of Shellman. This suggests the room was L S DD RS LHE)

used as a courthouse and as a city hall. This is confirmed by the 1902 map, which labeled
the building “city hall lodge”.
e The building was demolished to build a new city hall, probably shortly after the 1967 transfer by
the Masonic Lodge.
Free and Accepted Masons (F&AM)

e There was a Masonic Lodge in Cuthbert by 1844; Masons living in the vicinity of present-day
Shellman were members there, including Edmund W Hodges and Simon Wooten (link).
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Later a Masonic Lodge was formed in Brooksville, Lodge #184 (See Deed Book/AA/271)
Rehoboth Lodge 192, Nochway (link) was chartered in 1854. The lodge building was erected on a
plot adjacent to Rehoboth Academy. See Rehoboth (US Highway 82) for more information on this
lodge.
When the first public building was erected in Shellman here at 47 Park Ave in 1873, the upper floor
held a Masonic Hall. The new chapter was #284 (link).
o The property was deeded to the church and the lodge in 1887 (Deed Book/GG/310).
o The chapter was active well into the 20" century, but gradually declined. The building stood
was demolished around 1968.
The Masons were a secret society, but they also sponsored public activities. In 1887, they held a
grand celebration on the grounds of Rehoboth Church; over 1,200 were present from surrounding
lodges (link). For a time they hosted annual celebrations of birthday of John the Baptist (link); in
1899, there were 2,000 present (link).
The Masons were segregated. Shellman’s African-Americans formed a Masonic Lodge by 1900.
o The Lodge building was erected at 30 Church St between 1902 and 1905.

= A 1902 deed for an adjacent lot identifies this as “property of Masonic Lodge
Colored” (Deed Book/HH/432); the lot was vacant at the time.
= A 1905 deed refers to the Lodge (Deed Book/JJ/513).
o The location of the building is shown in a 1994 plat; the Lodge was still active and using
the building.
o The building was no longer standing in 2010, when the Lodge swapped the lot for the
adjacent lot to the east.
o The Lodge is still active: Purity Lodge #93, Most Worshipful Prince Hall Grand Lodge of
Georgia (link).

Knights of Pythias

The Knights of Pythias were a fraternal organization formed in 1864 (link).

In 1892, Shellman Lodge 61, Knights of Pythias, was organized (link). The location of its meetings
is unknown; it may have been here at 47 Park Ave. The organization was prominent in the social
life of Shellman (link).

Around 1869, a separate order for African-Americans was formed (Knights of Pythias of North and
South America, Europe, Asia, and Africa)

Endeavor Lodge #42, Knights of Pythias was formed by African-Americans in Shellman (link). The
lodge was already in operation when it purchased the house and lot at 111 Buford St in 1923. It
was presumably inactive when the lot was sold in 1937.
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56 Park Ave South (City Park, fictitious street number)

° Shellman’s City Park was part of the 10-acre reserve
that John P Ward sold to the SWRR in 1858. It was conveyed
to the City of Shellman in 1996 (See 58 Park Ave for details).
° The image of the military band in front of the
bandstand dates to circa 1910.

Shellman City Park

e The ladies of Shellman formed a Mutual Improvement Club in 1901 (link). The club supported the
new Shellman Institute and was taking the first steps for a public park.

e The SWRR leased the land for the park to the Club in November, 1901 (Deed Book/I1/70-72, plat
on Page 72). They initially proposed to name the park for the Central of Georgia RR President,
John Egan. A plat from 1905 shows “Egan Park” (Source: Deed Book/Il/514).

e In 1902, landscaping of the park began on a small scale. A plat from 1908 shows that a bandstand
has been built (Deed Book/KK/241, plat). By this time, the park was known as City Park. In 1911,
the Club began a major project to landscape the park (link).

e Two additional cupolas were eventually added. All have been demolished.

e [N 1928 the lease of the defunct Shellman Cotton Qil Co was divided. The Shellman Garden Club
acquired 70’ x 72’ plot, located in the SE corner of the intersection of Payne St and Park Ave, for a

flower garden This extended the park across Payne Ave. (Deed Book/TT/260-1)
i 2 ' Shellman Military Band
The Shellman Military Band was formed in 1909

(link). Professor S V DeTrennis of Eufaula was the initial
director. Its debut was a concert at the 1909 commencement
of Shellman Institute (link).

° In 1911, the band was honored by being mustered as
the Second Ga. Regiment Band (link). The Macon Telegraph
ol , : declared it “the pride of all Southwest Georgia” (link).
e ...,.,,A., ' “¥  Georgia’s Adjutant General described it in his 1912 report
Glver Socond o e ‘c::i:.:‘?:‘sﬂf':{?"lf::C'E::"f;" o (image below right)

Mr. De Trentis, Director: Arthur White, Carl Crittenden, James Wooten.
Mascot: James Reese.

Baxp, SHELLMAN.
Chief Musician J. T. Oliver, in charge.

e The band gave concerts in the park on There is no commissioned officer at this station
Sundav afternoons and holidavs. av.allable for command, and military instruction of

Y Y ] this Band. Consequently this organization, newly

e The band also traveled, and had their own organized and largely without any previous military
railroad car in which they attended the experience, is almost entirely without military train-

. ing, though apparently an excellent musical organiza-
annual convention. tion. All seem greatly interested and desirous of
e In 1919, the Regiment placed an armory in becoming efficient in all ways; continued improve-

Dawson. and moved the band there. ment may therefore be confidently expected.

Presumably the Shellman band ceased to
function at that time (link).
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https://www.newspapers.com/image/825391156/?terms=%22shellman%20military%20band%22&match=1
https://dlg.galileo.usg.edu/data/dlg/ggpd/pdfs/dlg_ggpd_y-ga-bd410-b-pa1-b1913-h19.pdf
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Source: RANDOLPH COUNTY, GEORGIA. A COMPILATION OF FACTS, RECOLLECTIONS, AND FAMILY
HISTORIES. Randolph County Historical Society. 1977

58 Park Ave

,-

Part of the John P Ward Homeplace purchased
from Edmund Hodges in 1856.

Notes:

From John Ward to the South Western Railroad Co. of Georgia (SWRR)

e Ward sold the right-of-way (75’ on either side of the track) to the railroad
extending through Lots 4/17, 5/302, and 5/269. The depot is built on this strip.

e Ward also granted a 10-acre reserve to the railroad, just north of the depot
(Deed not located).

e The location of the depot was largely determined by two factors:

o There was a major highway from Brooksville to Bainbridge passing

through this area. This appears to be the only major road running north

3/25/1858 and south for several miles in either direction. The depot would logically
be placed with convenient access to this road, which is likely why Ward
purchased the Hodges Homeplace in 1856.

o Ward charged $1 for the right-of-way and the 10-acre reserve, while
most landowners charged much more. Ward made it attractive for the
railroad to choose his preferred location.

e When the town of Ward was incorporated in 1883, the city limits were defined
as a circle extending one mile in all directions from the depot.

Source: Deed Book/P/159-60

Key Dates for the railroad in Shellman

See Land Ownership Around Shellman (1827-1883), Appendix C: The Railroad for a discussion of the
history of the railroad in Southwest Georgia and how it came to this area (link).

e The railroad tracks were built from Smithville westward toward Cuthbert with a crew of 400.

e The tracks reached Little Ichaway-Notchaway Creek around New Year’s Day, 1859 (link). Trains
were running to Ward’s Station by March, 1859 (link).

e Regular scheduled service, including the first mail train, began on March 17, 1859 (link).

e Service to Cuthbert began on June 2, 1859.

e In 1890, the railroad extended the side tracks in Shellman (link), testifying to increased activity in
loading and unloading freight at the depot.
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e The original depot was probably built at the time the tracks arrived. In 1889, the Georgia Railroad
Commission ordered the by-then dilapidated depot to be replaced (link); the work was
completed in 1892 (link).

From the SWRR to the City of Shellman

Notes: The SWRR conveys the remainder of its original 10-acre reserve (3.6 acres)

and the depot.

Source: Deed Book/WW5/161

3/15/1996

79 Park Ave

e Part of the 1880 purchase by J B Payne (See 81 Park Ave)

e The picture above left shows the 1890 church in the background; the picture above right shows
the 1917 church.

From the estate of John A Payne to Shellman Methodist Church

11/5/1889 Notes: vacant lot (80" N/S x 60’ E/W).

Source: Deed Book/DD/635-6

From F Reid Crittenden to the Trustees of the Shellman Methodist Church

Notes: Crittenden sold his lot (with house) to the Church, but retained ownership of

1/31/1917 a plot on the NE corner that is the site of the Princess Theater (75’ N/S x 150’ E/W).

This extends the Church’s lot east to Payne St.

Source: Deed Book/00/182-3

Shellman Methodist Church

e A Methodist Church was formed in 1878, and met on the 1° floor of the Masonic Hall (See 47 Park
Ave).

e The 1889 purchase allowed the Church to construct its first stand-alone sanctuary (link). It was
completed in 1890 at a cost of $3,000 (link). A plat included in Deed Book/PP/522 shows the
location of this building.

e The 1917 purchase allowed the Church to build a larger sanctuary, just east of the 1890 building.
It was completed at a cost of $15,000 and seated 500.
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Shollmary Shellman Historic Buildings
2 _

(1830-1950)

81 Park Ave (Fictitious Adress)

Part of the 53-acre tract purchased in 1873 by Z T Phelps from the Crittenden family.

From Z T Phelps to his son-in-law, J B Payne, who on the same day sold it to his

brother, J A Payne.

Notes: 1.68 acres (185’ N/S x 396’ E/W). Bounded south by SWRR reserve; west by

the “Academy lot” (Masonic Hall and school). The deeds do not reference a house,

but there likely is one:

1/1/1880 o the price ($500) is high for a vacant lot,

o thelotis already fenced and known as the J B Payne place.

A house was probably built here shortly after J B Payne married Phelps’s daughter in

1874. J A Payne died in 1888. His widow did not transfer the property from his

estate until she remarried and moved to Tifton in 1900.

Source: Deed Book/AA/464, AA/466

e From the estate of J A Payne to his son-in-law, A B Stephens, in 1900

e  From Stephens to Reid Crittenden in 1905

e In aseries of deeds from 1914-1917, Crittenden sold this property to E C

3/5/1900, McCurdy, and then repurchased it.

1/3/1905 Notes: 2-acre lot with house. Bounded north by the lots of Eva C Payne and Jessie C

Payne; east by Payne St; south by Methodist Church; west by M W Cox. Crittenden

later mortgaged the property, and sold the NE corner to J M Curry.

Source: Deed Book/FF/518-9, KK/112-3, MM/455, NN/365, NN/487, 00/180

From F Reid Crittenden to the Trustees of the Shellman Methodist Church

Notes: Crittenden sold the lot to the Church, but retained ownership of the NE

corner (75’ N/S x 150’ E/W), which was the site of the Princess Theater (See 85

Payne St). The house was on the portion of the lot which was deeded to the Church,

as shown on the 1902 map. It was demolished for the new sanctuary.

Source: Deed Book/00/182-3, 11/72 (plat)

The J B Payne family

Information on the family is found at 227 W Phelps St.

The John Ashley Payne family

e Payne was from Gilmer County. By 1860, his mother had remarried and lived near Dover. Source:
1860 census link

e After serving in the Civil War, he lived in Lee and Dougherty Counties. He married Sarah Jane
(Sallie) Pickett in Terrell County in 1870.

e The Paynes moved to Shellman from Albany in 1880. He purchased this lot from his brother,
Joseph B Payne.

e Payne was a store clerk before moving to Shellman. Upon moving to Shellman, he built a
warehouse (link).

e Payne died in 1888; his widow remained here. When she remarried and moved to Tifton in 1900,
she distributed the property among family members. She died there in 1913 (obituary).

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Albert B Stephens family

e Stephens and Eva Payne were married at the family home in 1896 (link, link).

e Stephens worked for the Central of GA Railroad. The newlyweds moved to Columbia, AL where
Eva died in 1897 (link).

1/31/1917
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https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?key1=ii&key2=72&county=120&countyname=RANDOLPH&userid=746137&appid=4
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/2025665:7667?tid=23588654&pid=422199540917&queryId=37a11bad60d003fe27fcb3227ad6020c&_phsrc=inO698&_phstart=successSource
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn88054004/1885-04-23/ed-1/seq-2/#date1=01%2F01%2F1870&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F1945&words=Payne+ward+Ward+warehouse&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=1&proxdistance=5&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=ward+shellman&proxtext=payne+warehouse&andtext=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=1
https://www.newspapers.com/image/34214436/?article=2d6aeb5a-c029-44c8-8890-c2657351a73a&focus=0.44026896,0.16993773,0.57351834,0.31789407&xid=3355
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=john+a_payne&birth=1845&death=1888_shellman-randolph-georgia-usa_19431&count=50
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/96127598:62116
https://www.newspapers.com/image/969283420/?terms=%22R%20G%20mccurdy%22&match=1
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053952/1897-10-01/ed-1/seq-2/#date1=01%2F01%2F1880&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2023&words=cane+Shellman+sugar&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=6&proxdistance=1&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=sugar+cane&andtext=shellman&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=13

Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

Stephens purchased this house in 1900, and sold it in 1905, During this time, the house was likely
rented to Reid Crittenden.

The Fernando Reid Crittenden family

Reid Crittenden was from Shellman, the son of H A Crittenden. He married Eula Wells of
Smithville in 1894 (link).

Crittenden bought this house in 1905, but rented it earlier, as confirmed in a plat drawn in 1901
(Deed Book/11/72).

In 1917, Crittenden sold this lot to the Methodist Church, allowing them to build a new, larger
sanctuary. Crittenden died in 1918 (obituary); his widow and a son moved to 3436 Pearl St.
Source: 1920 census link

Crittenden was a farmer and land owner. In 1910, he operated a clothing store, which he sold in
1912 (link). In 1913, Crittenden opened the Princess Theater (See 85 Payne St).

Later Eula moved to Memphis to be with the family of her son Donald (1927-1936), then moved
to New York where she died in 1948 (obituary).

Source: Ancestry.com link

The Donald Crittenden Family

Donald Crittenden was the son of Reid Crittenden. He grew up in the family home on Payne St. He
served in World War |, returning to Shellman in 1919.

Upon his return, he became manager of the Princess Theatre, which had been built by his late
father.

In 1920, Crittenden was renting an apartment at 3436 Pearl St with his widowed mother.

In 1921, Crittenden took charge of a new section of The Dawson News which provided news from
Shellman (link).

In 1922, Crittenden moved to Atlanta and then by 1923 to Memphis. He married Sadie Horton of
Shellman in 1928 (link); they lived in Memphis. They were divorced by 1932, when he married Iva
Mauzy of Memphis (link).

Crittenden was in marketing and sales before becoming EVP of the Home Builders Association of
Memphis in 1947 (link).

Donald died in Memphis in 1978 (link); Iva died there in 1985.

Source: Ancestry.com link
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https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053320/1894-12-23/ed-1/seq-10/#date1=01%2F01%2F1868&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F1899&words=brother+Crittenden&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=8&proxdistance=2&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=crittenden+brother&andtext=&page=1
https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?key1=II&key2=70&county=120&countyname=RANDOLPH&userid=746137&appid=4
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1918-07-09/ed-1/seq-3/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=Crittenden+Reid&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=8&proxdistance=2&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=reid+crittenden&andtext=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=5
https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/6061/images/4300133_00874?pId=64075668
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053210/1912-12-12/ed-1/seq-7/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=Crittenden+Reid&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=8&proxdistance=2&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=reid+crittenden&andtext=&page=1
https://www.newspapers.com/image/769587857/?article=7c4a5125-2618-4153-88b0-779eaf71953b&focus=0.2638085,0.5277835,0.37999317,0.6426383&xid=3355
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=Fernando+Reid_Crittenden&birth=1873_georgia-usa_13&death=1919_shellman-randolph-georgia-usa_19431&child=Donald_Crittenden&child2=Hazel_Crittenden&child3=Melvin+Carlisle_Crittenden&child4=Jack_Crittenden&father=Hiram+Albert_Crittenden&gender=m&marriage=1894_lee-colquitt-georgia-usa_18170&mother=Isabel+Indiana_Reid&residence=_randolph-jackson-georgia-usa_18862&residence2=_randolph-jackson-georgia-usa_18862&residence3=_shellman-randolph-georgia-usa_19431&searchType=t&sibling=Robert+B._Crittenden&sibling2=Fannie+A._Crittenden&sibling3=Hiram+O._Crittenden&sibling4=Elizabeth+Lizzie++M._Crittenden&sibling5=Roger+S._Crittenden&spouse=Eula+Ada+Addie_Wells&treePerson=4234158_122141172599&_phtarg=inO683&queryId=ce8568332467e53d328f20208c155a11&successSource=Search
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1921-05-24/ed-1/seq-5/#date1=01%2F01%2F1905&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F1980&words=CRITTENDEN+DONALD&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=10&proxdistance=1&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=donald+crittenden&andtext=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=1
https://www.newspapers.com/image/768542030/?focus=0.14421794%2C0.27177846%2C0.25866884%2C0.32292038&xid=3398&terms=crittenden&match=1
https://www.newspapers.com/image/769224877/?terms=%22donald%20crittenden%22&match=1
https://www.newspapers.com/image/769603224/?terms=%22donald%20crittenden%22&match=1
https://www.newspapers.com/image/772194036/?article=a79101a0-2c67-4fac-a1dc-0bf93bde5b33&terms=%22donald%20crittenden%22
https://www.ancestry.com/search/?name=donald_crittenden&event=_Shellman-Randolph-Georgia-USA&birth=1896&death=1978_memphis-shelby-tennessee-usa_36307&count=50

Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

89 Park Ave

Part of the Joseph B Payne Home Place

e From J B Payne (half interest) to Wistar T Jay in 1895
e From Jay (half interest) to Mrs. F R Sasser in 1895
e From Mrs. S J Payne (half interest) to J G Sasser, then to his wife, Fannie Sasser,

9/2/1895, ,

10/21/1895, in 1896 and 1898 .

10/1/1896, Notes: Two-acre vacant lot in 1895. Bounded north by Phelps St; west by Payne St;

12/20/1898 south by SWRR right-of-way; east by an 8-foot-wide alley. Known as the John A
Payne Block. These four deeds give sole ownership of the lot to Mrs. Sasser.
Source: Deed Book/EE/347, EE/348, GG/465, GG/466, FF/471 (mortgage), PP/521-2
(plat)
From the Sassers to G A Dozier
Notes: One-acre lot with the hotel building, including furniture. Bounded on the

2/2/1909 north by the town waterworks, lighting power plant, and lands of Mrs. Sasser. This
deed conveys only the southern half of the lot. The Sassers had earlier conveyed the
land for the waterworks and power plant to the City of Shellman (See 86 Payne St).
Source: Deed Book/LL/576
From G A Dozier to E R Cheney

9/10/1910 Notes: Same property as in 1909 deed

Source: Deed Book/NN/82

From E R Cheney to his brother-in-law, T H Anthony

11/23/1921, Notes: Known as the lot where the Hotel was destroyed by fire.

4/19/1922, e Anthony built a gas station on the lot.
11/3/1927, e In 1922, Anthony leased the gas station to the Texas Corp.
8/22/1932 e In 1932, Anthony leased the gas station to Sinclair Refining Co.

Source: Deed Book/QQ/82 (mortgage), QQ/176, TT/20-1 (lease), VV/195-7

From the estate of T H Anthony to L D Acker
Notes: Acker buys the lot, with the gas station. He then divides the lot. The western

5/8/1946 portion is now 52 Payne St; the eastern portion is now 99 Payne St. Refer to those

lots for further details.
Source: Deed Book/EE1/23

The Sasser/Hennie May Hotel

The Sassers purchased a two-acre vacant lot in 1895. They built a hotel on the southern half of
the lot, facing on Park Ave, in 1896 or early 1897. It was knownas [ %7 7 & .
the Hennie May Hotel, presumably for Mrs. E R (Hennie May) \%%nn?j %ﬂy ,{{Otflo
Cheney (link) | i o e B e
In December, 1897 the hotel hosted a New Year’s celebration and | you fesl when stopping at the Sy May
banquet that was reported by the Macon Telegraph (link). l}{:,t?;nn'.f:t::z!::;:uﬂ i it o
In 1898, the hotel advertised in the Morgan Monitor (at right,

link).

The hotel had 12 bedrooms, a dining hall, and a parlor. Later an annex with six bedrooms was
added.

In 1900, the Sassers were resident hotel keepers with five boarders. Later they leased the hotel.
Source: 1900 Census link

A plat prepared by the SWRR (circa 1907) shows the placement of the hotel and annex on the lot.
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https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053952/1897-08-06/ed-1/seq-3/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=Arthur+House+Shellman+SHELLMAN&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=8&proxdistance=1&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=arthur+house&andtext=shellman&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=1
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053320/1898-01-03/ed-1/seq-3/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2023&words=Scandrett+Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=1&proxdistance=5&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&andtext=scandrett+shellman&page=2
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053952/1898-09-22/ed-1/seq-3/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2023&words=Henny+Hotel+May&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=0&proxdistance=2&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=hennie+may+hotel&andtext=&page=1
https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/7602/images/4120081_00575?treeid=&personid=&rc=&usePUB=true&_phsrc=nzO1622&_phstart=successSource&pId=9395946

Shollmary Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

e In 1909, the Sassers sold the hotel to G A Dozier of Dawson (link). At the time, the hotel was
leased to Benjamin Reese, who continued to operate the hotel for a time. In 1910, Dozier lived in
and operated the hotel with seven boarders. Source: 1910 census link

e In 1910, Dozier sold the hotel to E R Cheney.

o Cheney lived nearby (230 W Phelps St) and owned a grocery store across Park Ave (40
Payne St).

o In 1920, the hotel was leased to R E Taylor with five boarders. Source: 1920 census link,
link

e The hotel was completely destroyed by fire on 8/17/1921. Newspaper articles give a detailed
account of the fire as well as a history of the hotel (link, link).
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https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1909-01-13/ed-1/seq-9/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2023&words=Hennie+Hotel+May&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=6&proxdistance=2&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=hennie+may+hotel&andtext=&page=1
https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/7884/images/31111_4327525-00336?treeid=&personid=&rc=&usePUB=true&_phsrc=nzO1625&_phstart=successSource&pId=3739336
https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/6061/images/4300133_00877?treeid=&personid=&rc=&usePUB=true&_phsrc=nzO1619&_phstart=successSource&pId=64075781
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/64076102:6061?tid=168527306&pid=262272598973&queryId=ccac8fadd7072daebc5d4997bb1b8b66&_phsrc=inO666&_phstart=successSource
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1921-08-23/ed-1/seq-2/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=Allen+E+T&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=1&proxdistance=2&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=T+E+Allen&andtext=&page=1
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053283/1921-08-16/ed-1/seq-8/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2022&words=fire+SHELLMAN+Shellman&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=2&proxdistance=5&sort=relevance&rows=12&ortext=ward+shellman+fire&proxtext=&andtext=&page=9

Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

99 Park Ave

Frm L D Acker to A F Weathers, Jr.
Notes: Vacant lot (100" N/S x 40’ E/W). Acker divided his lot, selling the eastern

e Part of the Sasser Hotel Lot (See 89 Park Ave)
e Dividedin 1947

7/7/1947 portion bounded east by the alley. Weathers built a drycleaning establishment on
this lot.
Source: Deed Book/EE1/336
From A F Weathers, Jr. to T C Goddard

2/28/1974 Notes:

Source: Deed Book/HH2/722, HH2/723 (mortgage)

Later deeds: NN2/660 (Tract #2)
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100 Park Ave (Fictitious street number)
This tract was part of the 10-acre tract reserved for the SWRR in 1858.
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Notes In 1904 the Crittendens leased a tract (32.5’ N/S x 91’ E/W) on which to erect
1904 a seed house. Ownership was transferred to the Crittenden Guano Co., probably in

1905. This is shown on the plat above.

Source: Deed Book/11/304

e From the Crittenden Guano Co. to H O Crittenden in 1932
12/15/1932 e Acquired by A R K.enney (Deed not located)

Notes: Iron-clad building.

Source: Deed Book/WW/524

From A R Kenney to W W Lewis and Raymond Coleman

Notes: Lewis & Coleman purchased the western 60’ of the warehouse; Kenney kept

the eastern side. Lweis was a truck farmer; presumably they used the warehouse for
7/3/1942 . ) s 3 »

storing produce for shipping by rail. Refer to 3556 Pearl St for information on the

Lewis family.

Source: Deed Book/BB1/517

There is a building in the approximate location of the one built by the Crittendens. It is of roughly the

same size, and also iron-clad. However, it is further north than the building on the plat, suggesting

that the original Crittenden Guano house is no longer standing, and its site now houses grain silos.

The Crittenden Guano Company

e The guano house was built by 1886 by Crittenden & Brother on land leased from the SWRR. It
measured 87’ E/W x 32.5’" N/S. It is shown on the 1902 map and a plat drawn in 1904 (above).The
Crittenden Guano Co. was formed in 1905 by J F, H O, and R S Crittenden. The company assumed
ownership of the guano house.

AUVIM BlUU A UIDDOUM . c c ccasmamaw-

e Guano was blended with other substances to  Crittenden Guano Co., Crlttenden s Randolph Guano
- Shellman, Ga_-.-.—o-_|] No. 1o cocaeenmaaacnaa-

make a complete fertilizer. In 1909, the Cnttenden s Randolph Guano
company offered five blends (at right, link). Crﬁten?iei'i'iia;iﬂafﬁﬂ"dﬁiﬁa

e |n 1914, the Crittenden Guano Plant had a No. 933 et
capacity of 2,000 tons (link). Acid Phosphate 14% .. -cc----

e The company transitioned to synthetic _ Acid Phosphate 16%......--.

fertilizers, invented in 1913, as they replaced
guano. The company also owned the iron-clad building at 3127 Calhoun St, which had been used
as a feed mill at one point. Its use by the Guano Company is unknown.
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Notchaway Fertilizer Co. (See 116 Park Ave).

e The Guano Co. was still mixing fertilizer in 1925. It divested its assets in 1932, with most going to
H O Crittenden, including the guano house. It isn’t known when the company ceased operations,
but it is reasonable that it did so around 1932.

e The Crittenden family interests in the fertilizer business were carried on by O A Crittenden’s

111 Park Ave

It then passed to Payne’s wife, Nancy. This
suggests the store and warehouse were
operating together.

e The store was operated with different
partners over time:

o JBShelley operated a hardware and
grocery store “in the Payne stand,
north of Depot” here in 1887 (link)

o John Ward and Payne were partners
in the 1890s

o Payne was sole proprietor in 1897
when the ad at right was published
(link).

e Two railroad surveys circa 1920 show this
location with a building owned by H H Hart.
Source: Deed Book/PP/522-3 (plat), QQ/623 (plat)

e Joseph B Payne owned a warehouse and store north of the railroad by the mid-1880s. The
warehouse was located in this approximate location; the store was on the lot to the east (See
Phelps Storehouse Lot #8). The store was owned by Payne’s father-in-law, Z T Phelps, until 1890

J.B.PayneCo.

SHELLMAIN, . . = - GEORCGTA.

DEALERS IN

- HARDWARE, PAINTS,
([[GILS, CROGKERY, HOUSE FURNISHING.) ,

;GODDE&, STOVES, SASH, DOORS BLIITDS

AND BUILDERS® SUPPLIES.

Our stock ix entively new. Weo dow't keop gonds in our fine, hul »¥ I
them. Weo O \\ and WILL ke ol aa ol sp as any bouse in the State,

desire 1o build « up our trade to the Lighest ™ aut. M you will cotue an
will do the rest,

e Later deeds: QQ1/323, RR4/103, RR4/105

e Lot #8 of the Phelps Storehouses was later absorbed into this lot, making the lot 119’ E/W.
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https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn88054004/1887-10-06/ed-1/seq-2/#date1=01%2F01%2F1763&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F2023&words=Jay+T+W&searchType=advanced&sequence=0&index=8&proxdistance=1&sort=date_asc&rows=12&ortext=&proxtext=W+T+Jay&andtext=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&amp=&page=3
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/lccn/sn89053952/1897-03-26/ed-1/seq-3/#date1=01%2F01%2F1880&nottext=&date2=12%2F31%2F1917
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(1830-1950)

116 Park Ave

e This tract was part of the 10-acre tract reserved for the South Western Rail Road (SWRR) in 1858.

e W ] Oliver leased the eastern portion of the tract in several different leases; not all of the leases

have been located.

From SWRR to W J Oliver

Notes: Vacant tract (127’ N/S x 66’ E/W) for “the purpose of erecting a steam gin

house”. Oliver’s first lease was to

Source: Deed Book/DD/408 (plat)

W J Oliver Mills & Gin

o Newspaper articles document that Oliver was operating mills in 1890 (link). He built a large brick
building with “a steam ginnery, grist mill, planing mill, and other machinery” in 1894 (link).

e The plat below places Oliver’s “mill & gin” on the SWRR reserve in 1901. The plat was drawn to
document Oliver’s plans for a cottonseed oil mill to the west, and two storage tanks to the south.
It is unclear whether Oliver’s ills were relocated here 1894, or if they were here from 1890 and

rebuilt in 1894.

9/24/1894
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e The plat below shows the oil mill circa 1908. It does not show the “mill & gin” as a separate
building. Oliver organized the Shellman Gin Co. and built a new gin by 1903; the original building
on this lot was likely absorbed into the new oil mill. It is no longer standing.
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(1830-1950)

@i Shellman Historic Buildings

A 1915 fire completely destroyed the “storage house” of the oil mill, but there was little damage
to the “main building and equipment” (link). Perhaps the old “mill & gin” building was being used
as the “storage house.”

. 1_ AURER T T R wi
... =+ Oliver/shellman
e § Se g N 0il Co.

photo (left) of
the Shellman Oil
Mill was
published in The
Atlanta
Constitution in

- 1903.
The photo (right) is of the building around 2015.
Leased from the SWRR by W J Oliver in 1900
Notes:
Source: Deed Book/IlI/44-6 (plat, 1901), KK/241 (plat, 1908)
From A H Pinson to Shellman Oil Co.
Notes: The deed seems to transfer the SWRR leases of the mill to Shellman Qil Co.
7/15/1918 Pinson, who was from Sylvester, was apparently dissolving his partnership with
Oliver. This deed refers to several earlier leases which cannot be located.
Source: Deed Book/00/441
In 1920, the company leased additional space in the SWRR right-of-way to build a
7/23/1920 storage tank next to the tracks.
Source: Deed Book/PP/353-4
From the Shellman Oil Company to A P Vason, trustee; then to Albany Trust &
4/27/1922, Banking Co.

6/23/1900,
9/5/1901

5/3/1922, Notes: A lien had been placed on the property by the H L Barnes Construction Co.
6/24/1922, The mill was sold by vote of the shareholders and directors. No deed can be located
7/17/1922 transferring the property by the Albany Bank & Trust.

Source: Deed Book/QQ/186-7, QQ/190, QQ/233, QQ/235-6
Cottonseed Qil Mill of W J Oliver and later Shellman Qil Co.
(continued on next page)
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Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

In 1901, W J Oliver constructed a $20,000 cottonseed oil mill just west of his “mill & gin” (link).
The storage room was completely destroyed by fire in 1915, but there was little damage to the

main building and equipment (link).

Initially the mill produced cottonseed oil and hulls.

peanuts began replacing cotton. The mill
advertised that it was offering seed peanuts as
well as producing peanut oil in 1916 (link).
W J Oliver was the organizer of the Shellman
Oil Co, probably in 1918.
o In 1918, Oliver’s cottonseed oil mill
was transferred to the company
o In 1919, the Shellman Gin Co. (Oliver
was also its organizer) was
consolidated into the Shellman Oil Co.
The mill was sold in 1922. The new owner was
likely the Edison Milling Co., who may have

As the effect of the boll weevil was felt,

FOR SALE.

Beleving that Peanuts must take the place of cotto
in the boll weevil section, and lest there be a scarcity ¢
of seed, we have left off crushing for 30 days, ;and wi
offer our stock of Spanish peanuts for seed at Ge p
pound f.o.b. Shéllman Georgia, :

These are the kind that find ready cashisale at tl
oil mill. _Orders filled as received, while Stock ‘last
prior to Dec. 1st. <

SHELLMAN OIL MILL

Shellman, Georgi

continued to operate the mill for a time, but it closed by 1928.
In 1928, the lease held by the Shellman Qil Co for the land on which the building stood was

transferred:

o The western end was assumed by Oscar A Crittenden (see below)
o The eastern end was assumed by L W Brown. Brown was associated with the Americus Oil
Co. No further details on this section of the building have been found. Source: Deed

Book/TT/163

2/14/1928, .
8/29/1945, .
8/23/2011

Crittenden, in 1945.

e Leased by Oscar A Crittenden in 1928, then transferred to his son, Zac

In 2008, the RR conveyed the property to a descendant of Zac Crittenden.

Sold to Crittenden’s grandson in 2011

Notes: Crittenden acquired the Shellman Oil Mill’s lease with the railroad in 1928. He
also acquired the western end of the facility; those deeds have not been located.
Source: Deed Book/TT/132, HH10/140, BB11/268, Plat Book/10/221 (2007)

Oscar Crittenden Family Businesses

Crittenden and his descendants operated a series of businesses from the facility, including:

In 1928, Crittenden took over the 1918 lease from the railroad to Shellman Qil Co. for the
“western end of the old oil mill building”. He planned to use the building as a peanut and

cottonseed warehouse.

Notchaway Fertilizer Co.-- founded by O A Crittenden in 1925 as the Crittenden Guano Co. was
declining due to competition from synthetic fertilizers. It had the capacity to mix 1,000 tons (link).
Crittenden Tractor Co.-- for many years an Allis-Chalmers dealership, operated by Zac Crittenden,
Sr. (son of Oscar Crittenden) and then by Zac Crittenden, Jr.
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Shellman Historic Buildings
(1830-1950)

Phelps Storehouse Lots, Park Ave

Phelps Storehouse Lots

Z T Phelps purchased an 8-acre tract from Benjamin F Adams in 1863 (See Z T Phelps Tract). The
tract extended from his house southward along Pearl St to the railroad reserve (now Park Ave).
Around 1890, he divided a strip of land on the southern boundary of the reserve into eight
“storehouse" lots. These extended from Pearl St on the east to the Payne warehouse lot on the
west (236’ E/W (fronting on Park Ave). The lots were divided to his heirs in 1891.

Deeds are unclear, but it appears that four of the lots were eventually built upon.

Eventually the lots were acquired by T R Arthur and absorbed into his residential lot to the north
(See 3265 Pearl St). A plat (Deed Book/QQ/623) shows the tract circa 1920.

Lot # 8 of the Phelps Storehouses

Lot # 8 of the Phelps Storehouses

From Z T Phelps to his daughter, Mrs. J B Payne

Notes: .1 acre (100’ N/S x 38.5’ E/W), with store house. Bounded by RR reserve on
south, J A Payne’s warehouse lot to the west, and Lot # 7 on the east.

o e The store existing on the lot at the time of the sale is probably the one shown in
the 1888 plat below, which was operated by G W Schramm as a shoe shop
(Refer to 270 Buford St).
e Source: Deed Book/CC/329, CC/125 (plat, 1888)
From the Phelps estate to Mrs. Nancy Payne
8/26/1891 Notes: 1/16-acre lot with tenant house. This extended Phelps’s Storehouse Lot # 8 to

the north.
Source: Deed Book/CC/557

An 1899 article reported that J B Payne & Son was erecting a “crate and canning factory” (link). Its
location is unknown, but it is plausible that it located near this lot. It may have been the predecessor
of the canning plant owned by the City of Shellman in 1956. Source: Plat Book/2/17 (1956)

1/9/1902

From Mrs. Nancy Payne to Jesse Merritt

Notes: 100’ N/S x 38.5’ E/W, with improvements. Now bounded the alley beside
Sasser’s lot on west; the warehouse is not mentioned.

Source: Deed Book/HH/253

12/13/1905, From Jesse Merritt to J S Plowden to E W Plowden to T R Arthur
2/23/1907, Notes: Lot containing Mrs. Payne’s store.
10/1/1908 Source: Deed Book/JJ/511, LL/403, LL/404, QQ/623 (plat)

In 1956, deeds for 111 Park Ave suggest this lot was the site of a canning plant operated by the
City of Shellman. Source: Deed Book/MM1/372, M1/372-3 (mortgage release), QQ1/323, Plat
Book/2/17 (1956)

Later absorbed into 111 Park Ave

See J. B. Payno & Co.. BHelmam  Payne & Ward Store

(fa, when you want Hardware, Ma. © |0 1890,) B Payne & John Ward opened a store, adjacent to
hine Oil, Cutlery, Stoves, Linseed and likely in joint operation with Payne’s warehouse next door
Oil, Paiuts, Axes, Guns, Tinware, (link). Payne became sole proprietor by 1897, when the

Pistols, Saws, Atmunition, eto,, ete, advertisement at left was published (link).

Thoy also have a full assortment of

Caskets and Coffins. Call on them
and save money,

Lot # 7 of the Phelps Storehouses
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